





Handbook:

Wholesale and Traffic Exchange Services Maintenance Release 23

www.portaone.com

Copyright Notice & Disclaimers

Copyright © 2000-2011 PortaOne, Inc. All rights reserved

PortaSwitch® Handbook: Wholesale Services, May 2011 Maintenance Release 23 V1.23.7

Please address your comments and suggestions to: Sales Department, PortaOne, Inc. Suite #408, 2963 Glen Drive, Coquitlam, BC, V3B 2P7 Canada.

Changes may be made periodically to the information in this publication. The changes will be incorporated in new editions of the guide. The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement, and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms thereof. It is against the law to copy the software on any other medium, except as specifically provided in the license agreement. The licensee may make one copy of the software for backup purposes. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopied, recorded or otherwise, without the prior written permission of PortaOne Inc.

The software license and limited warranty for the accompanying products are set forth in the information packet supplied with the product, and are incorporated herein by this reference. If you cannot locate the software license, contact your PortaOne representative for a copy.

All product names mentioned in this manual are for identification purposes only, and are either trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

| | Preface | 5 |
|----|---|--|
| 1. | Setting up a Wholesale Traffic Exchange | 6 |
| | Checklist | 7 |
| | Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch® | |
| | Create Destinations | |
| | Create PortaSIP Node | |
| | Create a Vendor Tariff | |
| | Enter Rates in Tariffs with Routing Extensions | |
| | Create Vendors | |
| | Define Connections | |
| | Create Route Categories Create Customer Tariffs | |
| | Enter Rates | |
| | Create a Routing Plan | |
| | Create a Product | |
| | Create a Customer Class | |
| | Create a Customer | |
| | Create Accounts | |
| | Set up Dialing Rules for a Customer (Optional) | |
| | Test Routing with Test Dialplan | |
| | Test the Whole System | 33 |
| | Check Log Files with SIP Log Viewer | 33 |
| | Check Call History | 34 |
| 2. | Routing Info - LCR Blending | 36 |
| | | |
| | Create a Report | 37 |
| | Create a Report Behind the Web Interface | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 41 |
| | Behind the Web Interface | 41 41 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports | 41 41 43 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use | 41 41 43 48 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import | 41 41 43 43 48 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing | 41 41 43 43 43 49 49 51 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import | 41 41 43 43 43 49 49 51 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information | 41 43 43 43 43 43 43 49 51 53 57 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes. | 41 43 43 43 43 43 49 51 53 57 58 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information | 41 43 43 43 43 43 49 51 53 57 58 |
| 3. | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes. | 41 43 43 48 49 51 53 57 58 66 |
| | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes Summary | 41 43 43 49 51 53 57 58 66 68 |
| | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import. Review File Parsing Review File Parsing Review Rate Information. Managing New Prefixes Summary Wholesale Termination via a Gateway Typical Business Case Setting up Your Network Components | 41 43 48 49 51 53 57 58 66 69 70 |
| | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes Summary Wholesale Termination via a Gateway Typical Business Case Setting up Your Network Components Checklist | 41 43 48 49 53 53 58 66 68 69 70 73 |
| | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing. Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes Summary Wholesale Termination via a Gateway Typical Business Case Setting up Your Network Components Checklist PortaSwitch® Configuration | 41 43 48 49 51 53 57 58 66 68 69 73 74 |
| | Behind the Web Interface How to Manage LCR Blending Reports When & How to Use Rate Import Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff Start the Import Review File Parsing Review Data Fields Definition Review Rate Information Managing New Prefixes Summary Wholesale Termination via a Gateway Typical Business Case Setting up Your Network Components Checklist PortaSwitch® Configuration Initial Configuration of PortaBilling | 41 43 48 49 51 53 57 58 66 68 69 70 73 74 74 |
| | Behind the Web Interface | 41 43 48 49 51 53 57 58 66 69 70 73 74 74 74 |

| | Create a Vendor Tariff |
|----|--|
| 5. | Adaptive Routing and Quality of Service94 |
| | Setting up Adaptive Routing95Add / Edit Routing Criteria95Define Routing Criteria for Individual Destination Groups96Define Routing Criteria for Specific Connection97Tracking Connection Status98 |
| 6. | Configuration Examples for Cisco Gateways100 |
| | Bill Customers Who Are Connected via T1 / E1 Directly to a Port on Your Gateway |

Preface

This document provides PortaBilling[®] users with step-by-step instructions and examples for setting up wholesale services on a VoIP network.

Where to get the latest version of this guide

The hard copy of this guide is updated at major releases only, and does not always contain the latest material on enhancements occurring between minor releases. The online copy of this guide is always up to date, and integrates the latest changes to the product. You can access the latest copy of this guide at: www.portaone.com/support/documentation/

Conventions

This publication uses the following conventions:

- Commands and keywords are given in **boldface**
- Terminal sessions, console screens, or system file names are displayed in fixed width font

The **exclamation mark** draws your attention to important information or actions.

NOTE: Notes contain helpful suggestions about or references to materials not contained in this manual.

Timesaver means that you can save time by taking the action described in the paragraph.



Tips provide information that might help you solve a problem.

Trademarks and Copyrights

PortaBilling®, PortaSIP®, PortaUM® and PortaSwitch® are registered trademarks of PortaOne, Inc.



1 Setting up a Wholesale Traffic Exchange

This chapter will demonstrate how to set up a wholesale exchange platform, when you will be accepting calls from your customers (a customer in this context is a carrier, which terminates calls to your network) and sending these calls to the actual carriers, thus earning your profit margin on each call.

Please refer to the **PortaBilling Web Reference Guide** PDF file for detailed instructions on how to navigate and operate the web interface, as well as detailed explanations of particular fields.

Checklist

Print the following page and use it to check off the operations you have completed while performing system setup according to the instructions in this chapter. Please be sure to perform all of the operations (all of the boxes must be checked), otherwise the service will not work.

| Operation | D | one |
|---|---|-----|
| General configuration | | |
| Enter company data in My Company. | [|] |
| Specify a base currency. | [|] |
| For any other currency you plan to use, specify the exchange rate | [|] |
| source and define exchange rates. | | |
| Create all the required destinations you plan to serve. | [|] |
| Network configuration | | |
| Create a node for PortaSIP. | [|] |
| Rating configuration (Vendor) | | |
| Create a tariff A, which describes your termination costs and | [|] |
| routing for the first vendor (make sure it has the Routing type!). | | |
| Enter rates in tariff A for destinations you plan to terminate to | [|] |
| this vendor. | | |
| Create an off-net calls vendor A. | [|] |
| Create a connection for this vendor using tariff A. | [|] |
| Create any other vendors required. | [|] |
| Rating configuration (Customer) | | |
| Create route categories. | [|] |
| Create a tariff B, which contains your selling rates to customers. | [|] |
| Enter rates in tariff B for the destinations your customers will | [|] |
| call. | | |
| Create a routing plan which will be applied to your customers. | [|] |
| Create a wholesale exchange product. | [|] |
| Create rating entry for this product, using the PortaSIP node and | [|] |
| tariff B. | | |
| Account provisioning | | |
| Create a customer class for your traffic exchange customers. | [|] |
| Create a retail customer who will use the traffic exchange service. | [|] |
| Create an account to authorize this customer. | [|] |
| Testing | | |
| Check the routing by using the Test Dialplan feature. | [|] |
| Make a test call. | [|] |

Initial Configuration of PortaSwitch®

The following steps are normally performed only once, after the system is installed. Proceed as follows:



Visit **My Company** on the main menu. Enter information about your company and set up your base currency. Naturally, this does not limit your operations to this currency only. However, on cost / revenue reports and the like different currencies will be converted to the one you specify here.

NOTE: Once you set up a base currency it cannot be changed. If you make a mistake, you will have to start with a new PortaBilling $\mbox{$\mathbb{R}$}$ environment.

From the main menu, choose **Users** and create login entries for users who will be working with the system. It is not recommended that the default PortaBilling® root user (pb-root) be used for any operations other than initial setup. Make sure you are able to login as the newly-created user, and change the password for the pb-root user.

If you plan to do billing in multiple currencies, define them and specify exchange rates in **Currencies** section.

| | | \$ | | e 🕨 🖌 🖸 | | | Curi | rencies | | | | |
|-----|------|-----------------|------------|--------------------------|----------------|--------|------------------|---------------------------|-------------------|----------------|----------------------|--------|
| | 🗈 Ac | ld 🖬 | Save | 🖬 Save & Close 🛛 🛞 Close | | | | | | | N Logou | t 🔳 |
| | | | | | | | Sear Currency | | Country | | | |
| E | dit | ISO 43 alpha | 217 num | Name | Dec. digits | Major | Minor | Exchange Rate Source * | Payment System | Payment Method | Minimum Payment * | Delete |
| | | | | | | | | × | × | | | |
| [| Ξ | CAD | 124 | CAD - Canadian Dollar | 2 | dollar | cent | Manual | AuthorizeNet | | 20.00000 | |
| E I | = | USD | 840 | USD - US Dollar | 2 | dollar | cent | XE.com | AuthorizeNet | | 100.00000 | |

Create Destinations

This step is only required if you have not previously defined the necessary destinations. There are two ways to insert a new destination into the system:

- One-by-one, using the **Add** functionality on the web interface.
- A bulk update, by uploading destinations from a file.

NOTE: PortaBilling[®] supplies a file with a set default destination, which you can download and then upload to the server. However, it is possible that your business requires different types of prefixes, so please check the data in the file before uploading.

Creating Destinations "One-by-One"

1. In the Rating section of Admin-Index, choose Destinations.

- 2. Click on the **Add** button.
- 3. Fill in the required information. This includes the phone prefix and country name. The country subdivision is optional. You can use the **Description** column to store extra information about the destination (for example, if it is a mobile or fixed number).

| ۵ | II \$ | 8 | P 🏚 - | 2 🔍 | Destinations U Europe/Ket | | | | | | | | | |
|---|-------|--------|---------|------------|-------------------------------|-----------|---------------------|-------|-----------------------|--------|----------|-------|--|--|
| • | 🔁 Add | 属 Save | 🛞 Close | 🗵 Download | 🗷 Get default set | 👗 Up | load | | | | M Logout | 目 Log | | |
| | | • | | Prefi | × Country D | escriptio | n 🕨 A B C D E F G H | IJKLM | 1 N O P Q R S T U ¥ ¥ | XYZ | | | | |
| | | Edit | Prefix | r* | Country | | Subdivision | | Description | Delete | • | | | |
| | | - | 778 | Not A | pplicable | ~ | Not Applicable | * | Mobile | × | | | | |
| | | = | 1866 | UNITE | D STATES OF AMERIC | A | | | USA | × | | | | |

- 4. Click Save.
- 5. Repeat these steps for any additional destinations you would like to add.

Uploading a Set of Destinations from a File

- 1. In the **Rating** section of Admin-Index, choose **Destinations**.
- 2. Click on **Get default set** to download a set of destinations as a CSV (Comma-Separated Values) file.

| 1 | • 🔰 🗟 |) 👒 🛃 🔒 | 🖴 🕓 I 💝 😅 I 🔀 🛍 | * 🎸 🖻 * C * 📾 🏞 👬 🎰 🏏 🏙 🧭 💼 | 🗟 🔍 I 🕜 | | | | |
|----|--------|-------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|-----------|---|---|---|---|
| | Arial | | • 10 • B <i>I</i> <u>U</u> ∣≡ | E = = = 🎝 % 😵 號 😹 ∉ ∉ 🗋 • | 🖄 • 🗛 • 🛔 | - | | | |
| A1 | | 💌 🏂 🗵 | = Action | | | | | | |
| | A | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | - |
| 1 | Action | Prefix | Two-letter ISO Country Code | Description | | | | | - |
| 2 | add | 670 | TL | Proper | | | | | |
| 3 | add | 1684 | AS | Proper new | | | | | |
| 4 | add | 1829 | | Proper new | | | | | |
| 5 | add | 93 | AF | Proper | | | | | |
| 6 | add | 93229 | AF | Kabul | | | | | |
| 7 | add | 932290090 | AF | Operator | | | | | |
| 8 | add | 93321 | | Kandahar | | | | | |
| 9 | add | 9344000 | AF | Herat City | | | | | |
| 10 | add | 9344001 | AF | Herat City | | | | | |
| 11 | add | 9344002 | AF | Herat City | | | | | |
| 12 | add | 935051 | AF | Mazar-I-Sharif | | | | | |
| 13 | add | 93702 | AF | Mobile | | | | | |
| 14 | add | 93708 | AF | Mobile | | | | | |
| 15 | add | 355 | | Proper | | | | | |
| 16 | add | 35538 | | Mobile | | | | | |
| 17 | add | 3554 | AL | Tirana | | | | | |
| 18 | add | 35542 | AL | Tirana | | | | | |
| 19 | add | 35568 | AL | Mobile | | | | | |
| 20 | add | 35569 | AL | Mobile | | | | | |

- 3. Open this file in Microsoft Excel or any other suitable program. Edit the data if necessary.
- 4. Save the file and close it in Excel.
- 5. Switch back to the PortaBilling® web interface, and clickUpload on the Destinations screen.

| | | 88 🕴 📴 🏚 | ~ Q | Destinations Upload | | | ? Hel |
|---|--------|----------------|---------|-------------------------------------|--------|----------|-------|
| • | 🖬 Save | 📄 Save & Close | 🛞 Close | | | 💵 Logout | |
| | | | Filo | PADam-ADafash Danadaking Say and | Reamon | | |
| | | | File | C:\Demo\Default Description Set.csv | Browse | | |

- 6. Type in the filename for the file you have edited, or click on the **Browse...** button and select the file.
- 7. Click Save&Close.

Create PortaSIP Node

Now you have to enter your SIP server and, optionally, other gateways as nodes. PortaBilling® requires some key information about your network equipment, such as the IP address, Node ID, Radius shared secret, and so on.

| ۵ | | \$ | 88 | * | P | • ~ Q | | Node M | lanagem | ent | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|---|------|----|-------|------------------------------|----------------------|----|------------------------|---------|-------------------|------------|----------------------|----------|--------|
| • | • | Add | 8 | Close | 🖾 II | nternode Routi | ng | | | | | | M Logout | 🛢 Log |
| | | | | | | | | Node ID IP | | Client No ⊙All | Show Nodes | | | |
| | | | | | | Name | | Node ID | IP | Manufact | urer Type | RADIUS Client Delete | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ۵ | | 1 | 88 | Ť | P 1 | | | Ad | d Node | | | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
| • | | Save | | Save | & Close | e 🛞 Close | | | | | | | り Logout | |
| | | | | | e Name ufacture Node i | PortaOne PortaSIP | ~ | • | | | | | | |
| | | | | Nod | e ID | | | demosip.mydomain.com * | RADIUS | Client | | | | |
| | | | | NAS | -IP-Add | ress | | 207.52.37.45 | RADIUS | Key | dit1head | * Auto | | |
| | | | | Auth | . Transl | . Rule 😰 | | | RADIUS | Source IP | 207.52.3 | 7.45 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | RADIUS | Dictionary | Cisco | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | POD Ser | ver | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- 1. In the Networking section of the Admin-Index page, choose Nodes.
- 2. In the Node management window, click the 🗄 Add icon.
- 3. Fill in the New Node form:
 - Node name a short descriptive name for your SIP server (this will be used in the select menus).
 - Manufacturer select PortaOne.
 - **Type** VoIP node type; select **PortaSIP**.
 - Node ID PortaSIP® server's hostname (recommended: hostname.domainname).
 - NAS-IP-Address the IP address of the PortaSIP® server.
 - Auth. Translation rule leave this blank (you can use customer-based translation rules later to allow your customers to dial a number in their own numbering format).
 - Radius Client Make sure this check-box is enabled, since the gateway (node) must be able to communicate with PortaBilling via RADIUS.
 - **Radius Key** Enter the RADIUS secret key you have specified in the configuration of the gateway.

- Radius Source IP See the Node ID, NAS IP address and Radius source IP section in the PortaBilling Administrator Guide for more information. Unless your PortaSIP® server uses multiple network interfaces, the value here should be the same as the NAS-IP-Address.
- **POD Server** This checkbox relates to ISP billing. Leave it unchecked for now.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

Create a Vendor Tariff

s 🛿 🕯 🗁 🌬 🔍 Tariff Management Add 🕺 Close 🗳 Off-Peak Periods 🗃 xDR Re-rating 🐼 LCR Rates 🕅 Logout 📒 Log Applied To Managed By Search ANY × ANY × ANY **~** Search Currency Applied To Service Managed By Routing Description Delete Name 20 1 In Add Tariff 🖬 Save 📓 Save & Close 🛞 Close 🕅 Logout 目 Log Currency USD - US Dollar Name GlobalNet Termination * Applied To Vendor . ~ Service Voice Calls ~ Routing 🔽 General Info Default Off-Peak Period NOT DEFINED ~ Destination Group Set ~ Free Seconds Post Call Surcharge 0.00000 % Login Fee 0.00000 Connect Fee 0.00000 Round Charged Amount XXXXX.XXXXX -Default Formula *fx Short Description Description

The tariff is a price list for calling services or for your termination costs.

- 1. In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Tariffs.
- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose 🖬 Add.
- 3. Fill in the **Add Tariff** form:
 - **Name** A short name for the tariff object; this is the name you will then see in the select menus.
 - **Currency** Indicates the currency, in which the vendor charges you.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff may be chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

• **Applied To** – Choose **Vendor**, as this tariff describes your vendor's termination costs.

- **Routing** Leave the box **Routing** checked, as this tariff will be used not only to calculate termination costs, but also to route SIP calls.
- Service Choose Voice Calls here.
- Short Description A short tariff description.
- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click **Save**.

Enter Rates in Tariffs with Routing Extensions

Rates define how a call to a specific destination will be charged (e.g. what the price per minute is, how to round off the total call duration, etc.). Please refer to the *Call Billing Parameters* section in the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide** for more details on available parameters for rating voice calls.

Managing Rates Online

Managing rates online is very convenient for maintaining existing rate tables, as well as for reference purposes. For new price lists or for major updates, importing the rates from a file is better.

| | | # F F / Q | | Rates for tari | ff 'GlobalNet | Terminati | on' | | | | | | |
|--------|-------------|--------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|------------|-----------|-----------|--------------------------|--------------|------|-------|
| • | 🖸 Add | 🖬 Save 🛞 Close 🔺 Uploa | d 🔠 Tariff | | | | | | | | Mỹ Lo | gout | 📒 Log |
| | | | Effective | From | Destinat Number | ion Prefix Grou | p Country | | | | | | |
| | | Country | | Rout | ting | Interv | al, second | Price, US | D/ minute | C Effective From | | | |
| Edit D | estination) | Description | Peak/Off-Peak | Route Category | Preference Hunts | op First* | Hext * | First* | Hext* | YYYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:55 | s e 2 | 10 | Delet |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 420 | CZECH REPUBLIC | Peak Off-Peak: NOT DEFINED | High quality - | 6 😳 | 1 | 1 | 0.13000 | 0.13000 | 2011-01-24 15:31:43 | | | |
| | 1866 | UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | Peak Off-Peak: NOT DEFINED | Default - | 5 | 1 | 1 | 0.10000 | 0.10000 | 2011-01-24 15:32:01 | | | |

- On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of the available tariffs. Click the **Rates** icon before the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on **Rates** in the toolbar.
- 2. On the Edit Rates screen, click 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - Destination A destination prefix may be entered directly, e.g.
 420 for Czech Republic, or you can access the destinations directory by clicking the Destination link (in the column header). Here you can find the desired prefix by country name.

NOTE: The phone prefix you are trying to create a rate for must already exist in Destinations.

- **Route category** You can split your available routes into several categories, such as "High quality", "Premium", and so on, and then create routing plans for your customers. Choose one of the previously created route categories applicable to this particular route.
- **Preference** Routing priority for the specific destination. 10 is the highest priority, 0 is the lowest (i.e. do not use destination for routing at all). For now, you can just set all of your vendor rates at preference 5, and the system will organize available routes according to cost (LCR).
- Huntstop Do not try any routes with a lower preference.
- o Interval First first billing unit in seconds
- Interval Next next billing unit in seconds
- Price First per minute price for first interval
- Price Next per minute price for next interval
- **Off-peak Interval First** first billing unit in seconds for off peak time
- Off-peak Interval Next next billing unit in seconds for offpeak time
- Off-peak Price First per minute price for first interval for offpeak time
- **Off-peak Price Next** per minute price for next interval for off-peak time

NOTE: Off-peak fields appear only if an **off-peak period** has been defined for the tariff.

- Rate Formula Wizard 5 Launches the wizard for creating a custom rating formula
- Effective from If you want this rate to take effect sometime in the future, you can either type in a date manually, or use the calendar (click on the DD-MM-YYYY link).

NOTE: When using the calendar, you can specify that the date you are entering is in a different time zone than your present one. PortaBilling® will then automatically adjust the time.

- The **Payback Rate**, **Hidden**, **Forbidden** or **Discontinued** flags are optional.
- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left side of the row.
- 5. Repeat these steps if you need to enter more rates.

Importing Rates from a File

Please see the next section on how you can import rates from a .CSV or .XLS file for complete details.

 \mathbf{X}

Perform the *Create Tariff* and *Enter Rates* steps described above until you have created a tariff with the termination costs for each termination partner you have; these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Vendor".

Create Vendors

Vendors are your termination partners, i.e. companies you send calls to.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. On the Vendor Management page, choose 🗄 Add.

| ₼ | | 00 | | . | | | 0 | | | A | d Vendo | or | | | | demoroot | 2 Help |
|---|------|--------------|--------|----------|--------|---------|-------|---------------|------|------------------------------|--------------------|-----------|-------|-----------------|-----|-----------|--------|
| Þ | Save | | Save | & Clo | se | 8 C | ose | | | | | | | | | M) Logout | |
| | | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - 1 | | ۰ | /endc | or Na | me G | loba | INet | | | Curr | | | USD - US Dollar | × × | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | Oper | ning Bala | ance | 0 | | | |
| | 1 | | | | Addr | ess Inl | ю | Additional Ir | fo | User Interface | | | | | | | |
| | | | _ | | onyt | Nomo | Gla | balNet | | | Contact | | | | | | |
| | | | | /r./Ms | | vanie | | bannet | | | Phone | | | | | | |
| | | | | irst N | | | - | | _ | | Fax | | | | | | |
| | | | | A.I. | - anno | | | | | | Alt. Phor | e [| | | | | |
| | | | | .ast N | Jame | 4 | | | | | Alt. Cont | | | | | | |
| | | | | \ddre | | | 12 | 3 Main St | ree | t. | E-mail | info | o@qla | obalnet.com | | | |
| | - 1 | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | Descript | ion 📃 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | _ | rovin | | toto | CA | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Posta | | | 54: | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | City | 1000 | ie | | Angeles | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | n/Re | egion | US | | | | | | | | | | |
| | _ | | | Joann | iyire | gion | 00. | · | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ₼ | | | | 2:0 | | | Q) | | | Edit Ver | dor 'Glo | balNe | et' | | | | ? Help |
| • | Save | | Save | & Clo | se | 8 C | ose | 🔳 xDRs | * | Connections | | | | | | M) Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | r | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ven | dor Na | ame | GIODA | ainet | | | | | Baland | g Balance (e (| IUSD | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | bulan | | | | 1 | | | |
| | | Add | ress I | nfo | Mai | intena | nce | Additional | Info | User Interface | Accounts | Notep | pad | | | | |
| | Log | n | 9 | lobalı | net | | | | | Time Zone | | Burop | e/Pr | ague 🏻 | • | | |
| | Pas | sword | 3 | ia2ez | :cl | | | Auto | | Web Interfa | e Language | en - | Engl | ish | * | | |
| | Acce | ess Le | vel V | rendo | r | | | | ~ | | | | | | | | |
| | 0.1 | out Fo | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | mat | | | | | | _ | | | _ | | | | | |
| | Dat | | | | | M-DD | | | | 2003-12-31 | | ~ | | | | | |
| | Tim | e e & Tir | ne | | 24 : M | | 11124 | :MI:SS | - 2 | User Defined User Defined | | ~ | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | over bernied | | | | | | | |
| | Inpu | t Forn | nat | | _ | | _ | | _ | | | | | | | | |
| | Dat | | | | | | | | | 2003-12-31 | | ~ | | | | | |
| | Tim | е | | HH2 | 24:M | I:SS | | | L | User Defined | | ~ | | | | | |

3. Fill in the **Add Vendor** form. Please note that there are three tabs available on the screen. The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- **Vendor name** short name for the Vendor object; this will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** the currency in which this vendor charges you.

• **Opening balance** – starting balance for the vendor; the default is zero.

Additional info:

• **Billing period** – split period for vendor statistics.

User Interface:

- **Time zone** the time zone that the vendor uses for his billing period (when sending you an invoice). Statistics will be split into periods in this time zone, so your statistics will match the vendor's.
- 4. Click **Save**.
- 5. Three more tabs now appear on the screen. If you plan to terminate your calls to the vendor's SIP server, typically he will provide you with a username / password authorizing you to send calls to his server. Click the **Accounts** tab, then click 🖸 **Add** and enter this information.

| ₼ | | \$ | 88 🛉 🗄 | P 🖌 🖌 | E | dit Vendor | 'GlobalNet' | | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|---|------|------------------|----------------|----------------------|------------------------|----------------------|--------|---------------------|----------|--------|
| • | • | Add | 🖬 Save 🛛 | 🖥 Save & Close | 🛞 Close 🔳 xDRs | 💥 Connections | | | | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | Vena | lor Name G | obalNet | | Opening Bal Balance | ance OUSD OUSD | | | | |
| | | | Address Inf | o Maintenance | Additional Info User | r Interface Ac | counts Notepad | | | | |
| | | Edit | N GlobalNet-S | lame * | Login * | globals | Password ecret123 | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | £ | | | | | 'GlobalNet' | | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| • | • | Add | 🖬 Save | 🖬 Save & Close | 🛞 Close 🔳 xDRs | X Connections | ; | | | 💐 Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | Ven | dor Name G | lobalNet | | Opening Bal Balance | ance 0 USD 0 USD | | | | |
| | | | Address In | fo Maintenance | Additional Info Use | r Interface Ac | counts Notepad | | | | |
| | | Edit | | Name * | Login * | | Password | Delete | | | |
| | | | Glo | balNet-SIP | demoGlobal | | ****** | × | | | |

- 6. Click **Close** in order to return to the **Vendors** admin page.
- 7. Repeat steps 2-6 to add all of your vendors.

Define Connections

Connections are points at which calls leave or enter a network and are directed to or from vendors, whereby costing occurs.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. Click on the **Connections** icon next to the vendor name.

| ₫ | | | 00 | | ₽ | Q | | Vendo | Mana | gement | | | | 🕐 Help |
|---|---|-----|-----|------|---|------|-----------|-------------|----------|---------|--------------------|--------|----------|--------|
| • | • | Add | 8 (| lose | | | | | | | | | 📲 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | Search | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Search | | | | |
| | | | | | | xDRs | Name | Connections | Currency | Balance | E-mail | Delete | | |
| | | | | | | Q | GlobalNet | 0 | USD | 0.00000 | info@globalnet.com | × | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| ₫ | II \$ | 00 | • | :• 1 | . ~ Q | | Connect | ion Manag | jemer | nt for | 'Glob | oalNet' | | America/Van | couver | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
|------|-------------|------|-------|-------------|------------------------|------------|------------------|----------------|---------|--|----------|------------|------------|--------------------|---------|---------------|--------|
| • | 🗈 Add | ۲ | Close | | | | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | | | | | | Service Type | Type | | | Sea | arch | | | | | |
| | | | | | | ANY | | | ~ | 1 | | | arch | | | | |
| | | | | Descr | intion Service | | me Catewayllo | de ID Port Acc | eee Cod | le/Tech I | rafiv Tr | anel Pula | Vendor / | Account Tariff Del | ete | | |
| | | | | Deser | puon service | e type t | spe oacewayno | de la Fore Ace | 000 000 | ie/reenr | TOTA TO | anon Kule | Venuor 2 | tecount rann ber | 010 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ₫ | B (\$ | 00 | • | 8 |) ~ Q | | Add Cor | nection F | or 'Gl | obali | let' V | /endor | | America/Van | couver | demoroot | 2 Help |
| • | 🖬 🖬 ave | | Save | & Clos | e 🛞 Close | 2 | | | | | | | | | | M) Logout | 🔳 Log |
| | | - | | | 1- | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Descriptio | n Terr | mination to Glob | alNet | Туре | • | U | VoIP to V | /endor | ¥ . | | | |
| | | | | | Service Ty | vpe Voi | ce Calls | • | Rout | ing Crite | ria 🛛 | None | | ~ | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Gene | ral Info |] | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 🔲 нз23 🗵 | loo | | | | _ | | | | | |
| | | | | | Routing Pro | | _ | JSIP | | _ | | | | | | | |
| | - E | | | | Remote Ga Remote IP | | 70.68.127. | 107 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Remote IP | | 70.00.127. | 107 | | - | | | | | | | |
| | - E - | | | | CLD Tech I | | | | | | 2 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | RTP Proxyi | | Direct | | | Image: A state of the state | <u>_</u> | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Tariff | | | . Terminatio | n | • | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Capacity | | 30 | | | * | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Caller Iden | tity | Do Not St | apply | | ~ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Vendor Acc | count | GlobalNet | -SIP | | ~ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Translation | n Rule | | | | | 2 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Outgoing R | Rule | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | CLI Transla | ation Rul | e | | | | 2 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Additional § | SIP Settir | ngs | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 00 | | • • | | | | | _ | | 1.01.4 | 100.00 | | | _ | | |
| 6 | I \$ | _ | | e (* | | | Connect | ion Manag | jemer | nt for | Glob | oalNet' | | America/Var | couver | demoroot | ? Help |
| • | 🔁 Add | 81 | lose | | | | | | | | | | | | | N Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | | | | | | Service Type | Туре | | | Se | earch | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Voi | ce Calls 🛛 😽 | ANY | ¥ | | | Se | earch | | | | |
| | Descrip | tion | | Service | туре Т | уре | Gateway/Node | IP | Port Ac | cess Co | de/Tech | Prefix Tra | ansi. Rule | Vendor Account | | Tariff | Delete |
| Terr | nination to | Glob | alNet | Voice | Calls VolP to | o Vendor | | 70.68.127.187 | | | | | | GlobalNet-SIP | GlobalN | et Terminatio | n 🗙 |

- 3. Press 🖸 Add to add a new connection.
- 4. Fill in the connection information. Choose the type of connection (for a wholesale exchange platform, usually **VoIP to Vendor**) and enter the remote IP address (address of the vendor's gateway or SIP server). Choose the tariff which defines your termination costs for this connection / vendor. **Description** and **Capacity** are mandatory for all connection types. For VoIP connections where you have been assigned a login name and password, choose the corresponding vendor account.
- 5. Click **Save&Close**.
- 6. Repeat steps 3-5 to add more connections to the same vendor, then click **Close** to exit to the **Vendor Management** screen.
- 7. Repeat steps 2-6 to add connections for other vendors.

Create Route Categories

Route categories are tags (e.g. Cheap or Premium) which you use to designate specific routes, so that later you can organize individual routing plans for your customers. It is possible to have a separate route category for every termination carrier, although this is not advisable, as it would make maintenance of routing plans quite complicated due to the large number of categories in each. The recommended method is to create several route categories (Low-cost, Normal, Expensive, etc.) and then assign each route to one of them.

| | | | Route Categories | | | demoroot | 😢 Help |
|--------------------------------|-----------|--------|--------------------------------|--------|---------------------|----------|--------|
| 🕨 🗄 🚮 dd 🔒 Save 🔚 Save & Close | 🛞 Close | | | | | 📲 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | |
| | Edit | Name * | Description | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | 🔳 Low-cos | t | Cheap routes, low quality | × | | | |
| | 🔳 Premiun | n | Expensive routes, good quality | × | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | . | | |
| | 0 - | | Route Categories | | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| Add Save Save Close | 🛞 Close | | | | | N Logout | 目 Log |
| • | dit | Name * | Description | Delete | | | |
| | Economy | | Cheap routes, average quality | × | | | |
| - | Low-cost | 1 | Cheap routes, low quality | × | | | |
| | Premium | 1 | Expensive routes, good quality | × | | | |
| | _ | | | | | | |
| V | | | | | | | |
| | | | Route Categories | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| 🕨 🕑 Add 📓 Save 🗟 Save & Close | 🛞 Close | | | | | M Logout | 🛢 Log |
| | | | | | | | |
| E | Edit | Name* | Description | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| [| Economy | y | Cheap routes, average quality | × | | | |
| [| E Low-cos | t | Cheap routes, low quality | × | | | |
| [| E Premium | 1 | Expensive routes, good quality | × | | | |

- 1. In the **Routing** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Route** Categories.
- 2. On the Route Categories Management page, choose 🖪 Add.
- 3. Enter the route category name and description.
- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left end of the row.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 if you need to create more route categories.

Create Customer Tariffs

| 奋 | | \$ | | <u>ن</u> | P 🕨 🗹 🔍 | | | Tariff Mar | agement | | | | ver | | 2 | |
|---|-----|-----|-----|----------|------------------|----------|-----------------|-------------|------------|------------|---------|-------------|--------|----------|---|-----|
| • | • | Add | 8 (| lose | 🔱 Off-Peak Perio | ds (| 🔋 xDR Re-rating | 😰 LCR Rates | | | | | • | 🕅 Logout | | Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - 2 | | | | Applied To | | Service | | Managed By | 1 | | Search | | | | |
| | - 1 | | | ANY | | ~ | ANY | M ANY | | × | | Se | earch | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | |
| | | | R | ates | Name | | Currency | Applied To | Service | Managed By | Routing | Description | Delete | | | |
| | - | 7- | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| ₼ | \$ | 88 | * | . | ₽ | ~ | Q | | | | A | dd Ta | ariff | | | | | ٩ | America/Vancouv | /er o | demoroot | P H | elp |
|---|------|----|-----|----------|-----|---|---------|---------------------------|---------|------------------------------|--------|--------|--------------|--------------|-----------------------|-----|----|---|-----------------|-------|----------|-----|-----|
| • | Save | | Sav | e & C | ose | 8 | Close | | | | | | | | | | | | | M | 🕅 Logout | 🔳 L | og |
| | | | | | | | _ | ed To | Custome | le XCHG - ar strator c | | | Curi Serv | ency ⁄ice | USD - US Voice Cal | | ar | ~ | ×. | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | lt Off-Peak ation Grou | | Veekend | | | | ~ | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Free S | econds | | 0 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Post C | all Surcha | rge | 0.00000 | % | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Login | Fee | | 0.00000 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Conne | ect Fee | | 0.00000 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Round | Charged | Amount | ***** | XXX | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Defau | lt Formula | | | | | | | | °f∗ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Short I | Descriptior | | Gold pad | kage (| monthl | y fee) | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Descr | iption | | What we us trai | | | | | who send n | | | | | | | | |

- 1. In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Tariffs.
- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the Add Tariff form:
 - **Name** A short name for the tariff object; this is the name you will then see in the select menus.
 - **Currency** Indicates the currency in which you charge your traffic exchange customers.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff may be chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

- Applied To Choose "Customer" in the Applied To field.
- **Managed By** Choose "**Administrator Only**" here (this option is only visible after you select **Applied to: Customer** above).
- Service Choose Voice Calls here.
- **Default Off-peak Period** If you do not differentiate between peak and off-peak rates, just choose **Not defined**; otherwise, select one of the previously defined off-peak periods.
- Destination Group Set If you wish to enter rates in the tariff not for every individual prefix, but for a whole group of prefixes at once, you should create a destination group set and destination groups beforehand. Leave this select menu empty for now.
- Round Charged Amount Instead of calculating xDRs with a 5-decimal-place precision, round up xDR amount values (e.g. to cents, so that 1.16730 becomes 1.17). Set the rounding pattern to XXXX.XX000 (as shown on the picture) so every call will be rounded to the equal cent amount.
- **Default Formula** Default rating formula, which will be applied to every rate created in the tariff. If you leave this empty, the "old-style" rating will be used.
- Short Description A short tariff description. This will be shown in the rate lookup on the admin interface and the self-care pages for your accounts and customers.



- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click **Save**.

Enter Rates

| ۵ | | | 20 | ÷ | 2:0 | ٠ | - 0 | 2 | | Rate | s for t | ariff | 'Whole | esale X | CHG | - Gold' | | | | | | | 2 | |
|-----------|------|-----------|------------|-----|-------|---------|-----|---------------------|-----------|----------|----------|----------|---------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|--------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|----------|---------------|--------|----|----------|
| • | 🗈 🏚 | bb | a 5 | ave | 8 | Close | | Upload | | ſariff | | | | | | | | | | | M) Lo | ogout | | Lo |
| | | | | | | | | Effe | ective Fi | om | | | ſ |)estination | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | 1 | Jow [| ~ | | | Numb | per Pre | ifix | Group | Countr | У | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Cou | intry | | | | | In | ıterval, | second | Р | rice, US | SD/ minute | Ø | Effective | | | - | | Ľ. | |
| | E | Des | tinati | | Desci | ription | | Peak | Off-Pea | k | Firs | t * | Next * | Fir | st* | Next * | | YYY-MM IH24:MI: | 1-DD 55 * | Vfx 🚑 | 7 - | Delete | e | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | NOT | C DEFIN | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | V | / | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | _ | _ | | | Dore | _ | | | | s for ta | ariff | 'Whole | sale X | снб | - Gold' | | Q | Americ | a/Vancou | demo | | | |
| | • Ad | _ | 88 🖬 5 | | _ | Diose | _ | 2) Upload | | | s for ta | ariff | 'Whole | sale X | снд | - Gold' | | 0 | Americ | a/Vancou | dema ÞØ La | | | |
| | | _ | _ | | _ | _ | _ | Upload | | ariff | s for t | ariff | | esale X | | - Gold' | | 0 | Americ | a/Vancou | | | | |
| _ | | _ | _ | | _ | _ | _ | Upload Effe | ective Fr | ariff | s for ta | ariff | | estination | | | Countr | | Americ | a/Vancou | | | | |
| <u>ධි</u> | • Ad | id | . 5 | ave | 8 | _ | _ | Upload Effe 3 | ctive Fr | om | | | | estination per Pre | : fix | | đ | y Effective | From | | Þ¶) Lo | gout | | |
| _ | • Ad | id | _ | ave | Cou | Close | _ | Upload Effe 3 | ective Fr | om | | terval, | I Numb | estination er Pre Pr | : fix | Group | Ø | y | From | a/Vancou | Þ¶) Lo | gout | | He Lo |
| _ | • Ad | id Des | . 5 | ave | Cou | Close | _ | Upload Effe 3 | ctive Fr | om | In | terval, | C Numb second | estination er Pre Pr | fix (rice, US st * | Group iD/minute | 0 } | y Effective YYY-MM | : From I <u>-DD</u> 55 * | Vf. |)) C | ogout | | |

- On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of the available tariffs. Click the **Rates** icon before the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on **Rates** in the toolbar.
- 2. On the Edit Rates screen, click 🗄 Add.
- 3. Fill in the required information (please refer to the *Enter Rates in Tariffs with Routing Extensions* section above for the detailed description of the available rate attributes).
- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left side of the row.
- 5. Repeat these steps if you need to enter more rates.

Perform the *Create Tariff* and *Enter Rates* steps described above until you have created a tariff for each billing scheme for your clients; these tariffs are created as "Applied to: Customer". For example, if you plan to have two types of clients (e.g. Silver and Gold) with different rates, you will need two separate tariffs.

Create a Routing Plan

 \mathbf{X}

A routing plan allows you to apply individual routing methods to certain customers, i.e. blocking them from using certain carriers for termination, or, conversely, only allowing them to use certain carriers in a specific order. If you do not define any custom routing plans, the system default routing plan will be used, allowing access to all available carriers.



| ۵ | II \$ | 88 🗼 | 0.0 | • | Q | Routing Plans | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|--------|-------------|-----|-----------|--|---|--------|---------------------|-----------|--------|
| • | 🕂 Add | 🛞 Close | e | | | | | | NU Logout | 🛢 Log |
| | | | | | Ham | Name Search e Selection Code Description Route Categories Included Dele | ete | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| ۵ | ۲ 💽 | 88 🚯 | 0 | ▶ ~ | Q | Add Routing Plan | | | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
| • | 🔁 Add | 🖬 Save | | Save & Cl | ose 🛞 Close | | | | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | Name [*] Selection Code Description | Standard Wholesale 169 Standard routing - cheap carriers | | | | |
| | | | | | Included | Route Categories Profit Guarantee | | | | |
| | | | | | Edit Order R | Default V Default category | Delete | | | |
| | | - | | | | | 1 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| ۵ | II \$ | | 80 | | 0 | Add Routing Plan | | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot | 2 Help |
| • | 🔁 Add | 🗟 Save | | Save & Cl | ose 🛞 Close | | | | N Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | Name [*] Selection Code Description | Standard Wholesale 189 Standard routing - cheap carriers | | | | |
| | | | | • | Included | Route Categories Profit Guarantee | | | | |
| | | | | | Edit Order R | oute Category Description | Delete | | | |
| | | | | • | | | | | | |
| ۵ | III \$ | 88 👍 | 20 | P | <u>u</u> | Edit Routing Plan 'Standard Wholesale' | _ | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| ٠ | 🔁 Add | 🗟 Save | | Save & Cl | ose 🛞 Close | | | | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | Standard routing - cheap carriers Route Categories Profit Guarantee | | | | |
| | | | | | Edit Order R | | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | 99 💙 🗄 | Default V Default category Default Category | × | | | |

- 1. In the **Routing** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Routing Plans**.
- 2. On the Routing Plans Management page, choose 🖬 Add.
- 3. Fill in the "Add Routing Plan" form:
 - **Name** The name of the routing plan.
 - Selection Code The code your customers will dial before the destination number to select this routing plan.
 - **Description** Your designation of the intended purpose of this routing plan.
- 4. Click Save.
- 5. Define which route categories will be included in this routing plan:
 - 1. Click the **Add** icon on the **Included Route Categories** tab.
 - 2. Choose a route category from the list and define its order in the routing list. Higher numbers will be at the top of the routing list. It is possible to include two or more categories with the same order number; in this case, PortaSwitch® simply sorts the routes according to preference and cost. If you do not include a certain route category in the list, customers will not have access to any routes in that category.

- 3. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left end of the row.
- 4. Repeat steps 1-3 if you need to include more route categories.
- 6. Click the **Profit Guarantee** tab and define your settings:

| 奋 | II \$ | SS 🚹 | 0. 0 | ∕∙ 🔄 | Q | | Edit Rout | ing: | Plan 'Standard Wholesale' | | | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|---------------|--------|---------|--------|----------------|----------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|--|--------|-------------------|-----------|--------|
| • | 🔁 Add | 🖬 Save | | Save & | Close | 🛞 Clos | e | | | | | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | Se | scription | Standard W 2006 189 1 Standard ro ded Route Catego | uting | ale - chesa carriers Profit Guarantee | | | | |
| | | | | | Ed | it Order | Route Category | | Description | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | L.G | 99 \ | | | eap routes, average quality | DOIOTO | | | |
| | | | | | | 99 💊 | Default | Def | ault category | × | | | |
| | | | | | | 99 💊 | Economy | Che | ap routes, average quality | × | | | |
| 6 | II \$ | 😫 🗼 | | ħ 2 | Close | 1 | Edit Rout | ing |) Plan 'Standard Wholesale' | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| - | 1 30YC | S JOYC | | | Na Se De | Send r Choos Minimum | ded Route Catego eal-time alerts ab e only routes whic Absolute Profit | uting pries out c: h gu: | cheap carriers Profit Guarantee alls with losses | | _ | τη Logout | Log |

Choose only routes which guarantee profit – If this checkbox is selected, vendors whose price per minute is higher than the selling price to the customer will be automatically removed from the routing list. It is highly recommended that you use this option for wholesale traffic exchange, as it may protect you from financial losses in the case of routing problems.

7. Click **Save**.

Create a Product

Accounts for accessing your SIP services will be issued for a specific product. Products are a powerful feature that defines different ways to bill an account. Product definition is always done in two steps: product definition and creation of rating list.

| ۵ | II \$ | 88 🛉 | 0;0 0 | ₽ | ~ | Q | | Pro | oduct Ma | nagement | | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|-------|--------|----------|---|---|---|-----|------------|----------|------------|-------------|--------|-------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🔁 Add | 🛞 Clos | e | | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - E | | | | | | | Managed By | | Search | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | ANY | | * | | Search | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Ŵ | | | | | | \$? | Name | Currency | Managed By | Description | Delete | | | |



| ۵ | II \$ | 88 🚯 | | 0 | | Add Product | | © / | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|--------|--------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------|---------------|------------------|-------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Sawe | 🛞 Clos | e | | | | | | | 💵 Logout | |
| | | | Product Name Managed By General J | Administrato | only 💟 | Currency USD - | US Dollar | × * | | | |
| | | | Breakage Overdraft Prote Account Defau Default Discou Info URL Description | tion Debit a | ccounts only self-care | V V V | | _ | | | |
| 6 | | * * | ••••• | 0 | Edit Produc | t 'Wholesale X(| CHG - Gold' | 0 / | America/Vancouver | demorcot | ? Help |
| • | 🔁 Add | 🖬 Save | 📓 Save & C | ose 🛞 Close | 🧕 Rate Lookup | Clone | | | | り Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | Managed By | Wholesale XCHG Administrator only | | Currency USD | | | | | |
| | | - | General Ir Please define at | ifo Maintenance least one Services | | Services and Rating | Subscriptions | Service Features | Notepad | | |

- 1. In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Products.
- 2. On the Product Management page, click the 🖪 Add icon.
- 3. Fill in the "Add product" form:
 - **Product name** Product object name.
 - **Currency** Product currency; only tariffs which have the same currency will be permitted in the rating list.
 - Managed by If you want this product to be used for your reseller's accounts, so the reseller himself can change the parameters of this tariff and create new accounts using this product, choose a customer name from the menu. Otherwise, choose Administrator only here.
 - **Breakage** This parameter is typically used only for prepaid accounts, so leave it empty.
 - Account Default ACL The access level assigned by default to new accounts created with this product. The ACL determines which operations may be performed by accounts on the self-care pages. The default value is "Account self-care" (pre-defined ACL), which allows all possible operations.
 - Default Discount Plan Leave None as the selected entry if you do not plan to offer any discounted rates based on call volume.
 - Info URL If you have an external server with a description of product features, enter the URL here (e.g. http://www.myproduct.com). Your customers will be able to go there from their self-care page.
 - **Description** your comments about the intended use of this product.
- 4. Click **Save**.
- 5. On the Services and Rating tab, edit this product's rating list.

Enter Node and Tariff in the Product's Rating List

The rating list has two functions: it defines permitted access points (nodes and access numbers) and specifies which tariff should be used for billing in each of these points.

| 🖆 🖩 🗟 🚯 🖻 🖻 🖉 🔍 🛛 Edit Product 'Wholesale XCHG - Gold' | 9 America/Vancouver demor | ot 🛛 🛛 Help |
|---|---------------------------|-------------|
| Image: Save Save Close Signate Lookup Close | ►¶ Log | out 目 Log |
| Product Name Wholesale XCHG - Gold Currency USD Managed By Administrator only | | |
| General Info Maintenance Online Signup Services and Rating Subscriptions Service Feature Please define at least one Services and Rating entry | es Notepad | |
| | | |
| | | |
| 🝈 主 🖉 🗄 🖻 🖻 🖉 🔍 Add Services and Rating to Product 'Wholesale XCHG - Gé | demor | |
| Save Save & Close & Close | ÞØ Log | out |
| Product Name Wholesale XCHG - Gold Product Currency USD Service Voice Calls M General Overdraft Protection | | |
| | | |
| Node DemoSIP Access Code Tariff" Wholesale XCHG - Cold M Info Digits ANY | | |
| | 2 | |
| | | |
| 🛕 🗏 🖻 🗄 🖻 🖻 🗹 🔍 Add Services and Rating to Product 'Wholesale XCHG - Gé | demor | ot 🛛 🕑 Help |
| Save Save & Close Solution Close | ÞØ Log | out |
| Product Name Wholesale XCHG - Gold Product Currency USD | | |
| Service Voice Calls | | |
| | | |
| General Overdraft Protection | | |
| Check Minimum Funds Do not check | | |
| Min. Session Deposit 0.00000 USD | | |
| Max. Session Deposit USD | | |
| Max. Authorization Chunk USD Overuse Notification | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | America/Vancouver demor | |
| Add Save Save Close Science Representation Representatio Representation Representation Repres | Þ¶ Log | out 目 Log |
| Product Name Wholesale XCHG - Gold Currency USD | | |
| Managed By Administrator only | | |
| | | |
| General Info Maintenance Online Signup Services and Rating Subscriptions Service Feature | es Notepad | |
| Voice Calls | | |
| | Delete | |

- 1. When the **Services and Rating** tab is selected, click on the **Add** icon.
- 2. Choose Voice Calls in the Service select menu.
- 3. In the **Add Services and Rating** window, select the PortaSIP® node and choose the appropriate tariff which applies to your customers when they make outgoing calls.
- 4. The **Access code** or **Info Digits** fields only make sense when a call originates from your customer in a public telephony network. Therefore, just leave this empty for the SIP service.
- 5. Configure overdraft protection for this product on the **Overdraft Protection** tab. (Please consult the *Rating* section in the **PortaBilling**

Web Reference Guide for a description of parameters available here.)

6. Click **Save** to save this rating entry.

Create a Customer Class

Customer class provides the ability to define a group of parameters in a centralized way, then apply those parameters to many customers at once. (If you have already created a customer class that you can use for prepaid card distributors, skip this step and go to the next one.)

- 1. In the **Billing** section of the Admin interface, choose **Customer Classes**.
- 2. On the Customer Class Management page, choose 🖪 Add.

| | Add Customer Class | () America/Vancouver | demoroot | 😢 Help |
|--|--|----------------------|----------|--------|
| 🕨 🖬 Save 📓 Save & Close 🛞 Close | | | M Logout | |
| Name Wholesale General Info | Exchange Managed by Administrator | only V | | |
| Send Statistics | Summary Only | v | | |
| Invoice Template | Wholesale Invoice | ~ | | |
| Send Invoices | | | | |
| Terms | Due on receipt | ~ | | |
| Invoice Grace Period | 14 Days | | | |
| Collection Threshold | 200 | | | |
| Notify Customer | 7,4,1 Days before due of | iate | | |
| Re-send Invoice | 1,4 Days after due da | te | | |
| Attempt to charge the Credit Card | Days after due da | te | | |
| Suspension Time | 7 Days | | | |
| Suspension Warning | g Time 5 Days | | | |
| Closing Time | 30 Days | | | |
| Charge Credit Card Billing Period Is Clos | | | | |
| Description | Default settings for the wholesale customers | | | |

- 3. Fill in the customer class parameters:
 - Name Short name for this customer class.
 - Send Statistics Select whether you want to send statistics to a customer.
 - Invoice Template Select the appropriate template which will be used to create a PDF file with the invoice for your SIP customers. If you have not created a template yet, simply leave **Do not create invoice** for now. Later you can create an invoice template and assign it here.
 - **Terms** Choose the appropriate description for the invoice payment terms.
 - **Send Invoices** Check the box to automatically send an invoice to a customer at the end of the billing period.
 - Please consult the **PortaBilling Web Reference Guide** for a description of other parameters available here. For now you may leave these empty. If you change them later, these

changes will automatically affect all customers who are already assigned to this customer class.

- **Description** Your comments about the intended use of this customer class.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

Create a Customer

A customer is a company which sends you traffic for termination and pays you according to the amount of traffic sent. The customer's contact information is used to distribute account usage information, call statistics, invoices, and so on.

In this example we will describe how to create a new customer manually, without using a Quick Form.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the Customer Management page, click 🖸 Add Customer and choose Manually.

NOTE: If no Quick Forms have been created, you will go directly to the **Add Customer** page.



3. Fill in the **New Customer** form. Please note that there are several tabs with extra information available on the screen.



| 6 🗉 🕏 🗱 | 🛉 📪 Þ 🛩 🔍 | Add Customer | America/Vancouver demoroot |
|---|--|---|----------------------------|
| 🕨 🖬 Save 🖃 | Save & Close 🛞 Close | | ▶¶ Logout |
| | Asgard Telecom * | Currency USD - US Dollar V Opening Balance 0 Customer Class Wholesale Exchange V | |
| Address Infe | User Interface Dialing Ru | es Additional Info Payment Info Service Features Custor | n Fields |
| Mr./Ms./ First Name M.I. Last Name | Argard Telecorn Gmbh | Contact Klauz Zeispiler Phone Fax Alt Phone Alt Contact E-mail info@asgardtelecom.com BCC Description | |
| Postal Code City | North RHine-Westphalia 44139 Dortmund Germany | | |

The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- **Customer Name** short name for the customer object; this will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** the currency in which this customer will be billed.
- **Opening balance** a starting balance for the customer; the default is zero.
- **Type** Since your normal wholesale traffic exchange clients send you calls and pay for them, they are your **Retail** customers. Even if they resell the traffic to somebody else, they are not resellers in PortaBilling®, since they do not manage their subscribers in your system.
- **Customer Class** Choose the customer class you created in the previous step.

Address info tab

- **E-mail** An email address for the distribution of accounting information. After the billing period is over, a list of xDRs and other statistics will be sent to this address
- **Bcc** Blind carbon copy in email; may be used for debug and archiving purposes.

Additional info tab

- Billing Period Frequency of invoice generation. For more details about the different available billing periods, see the PortaBilling Administrator Guide.
- Send Statistics If you choose "Summary only", the statistics email will include only a brief call summary, without an attached details file; for most customers, the xDR file will be too large to send via email.

Payment info tab

- **Credit Limit** For prepaid traffic exchange, enter 0 in this field, so that the customer can only send you calls after he makes a payment (deposit).
- **Balance Warning Threshold** The customer can be notified by email when his balance is dangerously close to the credit limit and service will soon be blocked. Here you can enter the value for such a warning threshold. This can be entered:
 - as a percentage (e.g. 90%). The warning will be sent when the customer's balance exceeds that percentage of his credit limit. So, if the credit limit is USD 1000.00 and the threshold is 90%, a warning will be sent as soon as the balance exceeds USD 900.00. This is only applicable when the customer has a positive credit limit.
 - as an absolute value. The warning will be sent as soon as the balance goes over the specified value. For prepaid traffic exchange, where the credit limit is zero, you can enter 100.00 here.

User Interface tab

- Time Zone The time zone in which customer will see his xDRs and also that which defines his billing period. For example, if you choose America / New_York here and the billing period is Monthly, it means the billing period will start on the first day of the month, 00:00 New York time.
- Web Interface Language language to be used on the customer self-care web interface.

Service Features tab



This tab allows you to define global call parameters for this customer's environment. Most of these are related to the IP Centrex service and are not used for wholesale traffic exchange, but there is one important:

 Limit simultaneous calls – This allows you to limit the number of concurrent calls for accounts of this customer. This may be useful in preventing service abuse. If selected Yes for this feature you will also have to specify the maximum number of simultaneous calls.

Dialing Rules tab

Here you should specify how the customer will be dialing phone numbers; you may also use one of the pre-defined examples. For instance, if your customer wishes to use a tech-prefix when sending calls to your network, you may describe this in the dialing rules. PortaSwitch® will then automatically strip this tech-prefix from all incoming calls from this customer.

4. Click **Save&Close**.

Creating a new Customer using a Quick Form:

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the Customer Management page, click 🖬 Add Customer and choose one of the available Quick Forms.
- 3. Fill in the Add Customer form.





| ۵ | II \$ | 0 | 1 | F 10 | Þ | ~ | Q | Add Customer | / Quick Form 'New Cust | omer' | demoroot |
|---|-------|---|------|------|---|---|---|---|------------------------|-------|----------|
| • | 🖬 Sav | e | 8 CI | ose | | | | | | | 💵 Logout |
| | | | | | | | | Customer Info Customer Name * Company Name * First Name * Last Name * | | | |
| | | | | | | | | New Accounts | | | |
| | | | | | | | | Account ID * | | | |

Create Accounts

Accounts enable authorization of the customer's actual end-points. There are two main types of applicable authorizations:

- via SIP digest (the most robust and secure method)
- via remote gateway (or proxy) IP address

In the following examples, we assume that you are using the SIP digest method. In the case of IP authentication, the only difference is that the account ID must be identical to the signaling IP address of the remote gateway / proxy, and the password must be cisco.

1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the one containing the list of customers). It should resemble the screenshot below.

| ۵ | | \$ | 88 | ÷ | 8 :0 | € | 2 | Q | | Custo | omer Mar | nagemen | t | | | | demoroot | 2 | |
|---|------|----|----|-------|-------------|-------|-----|-----------------|----------|----------|--------------------|---------|--------|----------|--------|---------|----------|---|-----|
| • | 🗈 Ad | d | 8 | Close | : | | | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | | Log |
| | | | | | | | | _ | | | _ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | Туре | | | Representati | ive | Search | | | dvanced | | | |
| | | | | | Dire | ct Cu | sto | mers | * | ANY | | * | | Search | | search | | | |
| | | | | | | | D - | Name | A | C | Credit Limit | Delenen | C 2 | Status I | Dalaéa | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Rs | Name | Accounts | Currency | Crea π Limπ | Balance | E-mail | status I | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 0 | <u>Aardvoip</u> | | USD | | 0.00000 | | | × | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | 0 | Asgard Telecom | | USD | | 0.00000 | | | × | | | | |
| | | | | | | 2 | 0 | EasyCall Ltd. | Ð | USD | | 0.00000 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- 2. Next to the customer name, click on the icon (the one in the **Accounts** column) to go to the account management for that customer.
- 3. Click on 🗄 Add.
- 4. In this example, we assume that you are creating the account manually, so choose **Manually** from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options).



| ۵ | | \$ | 88 🛉 | P | ~ | Q | Account | s of Retail | Custome | r 'Asgard To | elecom' | ④ America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|------------|-----|----------------------|----------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|---|-------------------|---------------|----------------|---------------|------------------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🔁 A | dd | 🗈 Accou | nt Gener | ator | 🛞 Close | | | | | | | り Logout | |
| | | | | | Αςςοι | | Batel | | Ctrl # | SIP Status | Show Accour | Advanced ts <u>Search</u> | | |
| | | | | | | | Add Acco | unt | | | | | | |
| | | | | | QFo QFo Qui sav | unt(s) from ti rm A rm A | e Quick Form le list below: or BasyCall | that will be used | to add | | | | | |
| ~ | | \$ | SS 🖡 | P Þ | ~ | Q Ad | | | :1 C t | | T-11 | America/Vancouver | | ? Help |
| | _ | | | | | | ια Αςcou | it for Keta | li Custon | er 'Asgard | Telecom | America) vancouver | demoroot | ⊡ нер |
| • | a 5 | ave | 🕞 Save | & Close | 8 | Close | | | | | | | M Logout | |
| | | | iccount ID Nocked | 75.124 | .67.9 | 8 * | Product Opening | USD Balance 0 | - Wholesale | XCHG - Go.W | | | | |
| | | _ | Accou | nt Info | User | Interface | Subscriber | Additional Inf | o Life Cycle | Service Featur | res Custom Fi | elds | | |
| | | Т | /pe | | ODe | bit 💿 Cred | t Ovoucher | | | | | | | |
| | | 0 | redit Limit | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 5 | ervice Pas | sword | isco | | Auto | | | | | | | |
| | | E | -mail | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | atch | Γ | | | None | | | | | | | |

- 5. Fill in the "Add Account" form:
 - Account ID SIP ID which will be used to authorize calls coming from the customer's SIP proxy or gateway, or the IP address for the customer's SIP proxy or gateway.
 - **Product** Choose the previously created wholesale exchange product.
 - **Blocked** You may create your account as blocked, although this is rarely done with SIP service accounts.
 - **Opening balance** The initial balance on the account.

Account Info tab

- **Type** Select credit (yes, in general credit accounts are used for a post-paid service, but since credit limit is controlled on the customer level you can set it up in such a way that customer will be working in the pre-paid mode).
- **Credit Limit** For wholesale services you would normally assign a credit limit on the customer level (to be applied to all of the customer's accounts), so you may leave the credit limit empty for individual accounts.
- Service Password The account ID and this password will be used to authenticate SIP server login. Make sure you choose a password which is difficult to guess or crack. Use the **Auto** button next to the **Password** field to generate a secure password.
- **E-mail** Enter the account owner's e-mail address here. If he ever forgets his password for the web self-care pages, he will be able to reset it, and a new password will be sent to this email address. You can also just leave this field empty.

• **Batch** – You normally don't need a batch for your wholesale customer (since there will only be a few of them) so you may leave that space empty.

Life Cycle tab

- Activation date Account activation date.
- **Expiration date** Account expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.
- Life Time Relative expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.
- 6. After clicking Save&Close, you will see a confirmation screen announcing that a new account has been created.
- 7. Repeat steps 3-6 if the customer has more than one phone line (extension).

Creating a new Account using a Quick Form:

- 1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the one containing the list of customers).
- 2. Next to the customer name, click on the icon (the one in the **Accounts** column) to go to account management for that customer.
- 3. Click on **Add** and choose one of the available Quick Forms.



4. Fill in the "Add Account" form.



Set up Dialing Rules for a Customer (Optional)

Your customer may wish to use a custom numbering format, e.g. if his VoIP system requires a tech-prefix for routing or adds an international dialing prefix to a number.

- 1. On the Customer Information screen, select the **Dialing Rules** tab.
- 2. Select Enable Dialing Rules from drop-down menu.
- 3. Click on the **Dialing rules wizard** button.

| | | | Dialing | Rules Wizard | ? Help |
|---|--------|--|---------------|--|--------|
| • | 🖬 Save | 🝙 Save & Close 🛞 Close | | | |
| | | Routing plan selection enabled Apply these dialing rules to the number that follows the selection code | | | |
| | | Your country code | | Sample Settings | |
| | | Your area code(s) | | Australia, Sydney | |
| | | Always dial the area code as a part of the number | | E.164 Europe, Czech Rep., always dial using the areacode Europe, Czech Rep., local and domestic dialing (obsolete) | |
| | | Prefix for accessing the outside phone network | 78949# | North America, 10 digit dialing | |
| | | Prefix for domestic calls, but outside of your area code (e.g. 1, 0) | | North America, BC, 10 digit dialing North America, WA, 7 digit dialing Ukraine, Kiev, 7 digit dialing | |
| | | International dialing prefix (e.g. 011, 00, 0011) | | Ukraine, Lugansk, 7 digit dialing | |
| | | Emergency numbers (e.g. 911, 112) | | | |
| | | Exceptions (e.g. *98) | | Clear Reset Load Sample | |
| | | National Exceptions (e.g. *98) | | | |
| | | Local dialing number length | | | |
| | | Convert ANI (CLI) for incoming calls into this dialing format | | | |
| | | Check Yourself | | | |
| | | To call 1234567 outside of your office, but within the area you dial | ie same | 78949# 1234567 | |
| | | To call long distance 5 1234567 (within your coun | iny) you dial | 78949# 5 1234567 | |
| | | To call 1 405 1234567 internationally you dial | | 78949# 1 405 1234567 | |

- 4. Click Save&Close to exit the wizard screen.
- 5. Now the new dialing rules are created and displayed on the screen, but are not yet stored in the database. Click Save&Close in the toolbar to save the new customer information.

Test Routing with Test Dialplan

You may check the routing in your system prior to actually making a phone call. This significantly simplifies troubleshooting, especially when test calls are to be performed by the customer, who may be not be available at the moment.

- 1. In the **Routing** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Test Dialplan.**
- 2. Enter the destination phone number and choose a specific routing plan.
- 3. Click **Search** to display a list of applicable routes.

| ۵ | | 88 | ÷ :• | 1€ | ~ (| 2 | | | Test Di | alplan | | | | | | |
|---|-------------|--------|------|----------|--------|-----------|-------------|--------------|--------------|----------|------------|--------------|------------------|-------------|-------------|------------|
| Þ | 🛞 Clos | e | | | | | | | | | | | | | N) Logou | t |
| | | | | | Р | 'hone Nur | mber | | Routing Plan | | Protocol (| w | Time 24:MI:SS | | | |
| | | | | 55213 | 32322 | 00 | | A11 A | vailable Ro | | | | | arch | | |
| # | Destination | Countr | V | Descri | ption | Pe | enalization | Route Catego | y Preference | Huntstop | Price, USI | D Route CLD | Route To | Vendor | Connection | Tariff |
| 1 | 552133 | BRAZI | BRAZ | IL RIO E | DE JAN | IEIRO | N | Default | 5 | N | 0.00118 | 552133232200 | 193.28.87.120 | bridge test | bridge test | bridge tes |

Test the Whole System

Make sure that the PortaBilling® Radius and PortaSIP® servers are running.

Configure the remote gateway or SIP proxy to send calls to your PortaSIP® server (make sure the authorization username and password are also configured on the remote side). Initiate a call and monitor the results in PortaBilling®.

Check Log Files with SIP Log Viewer



You can browse the SIP log file from the PortaBilling® web interface using a SIP log viewer, which offers added convenience: for instance, automatically drawing call flow diagrams for you.

- 1. Choose the **SIP Log Viewer** item from the main menu.
- 2. Choose your PortaSIP® node in the **PortaSIP node** select menu and select the time interval on the right side of the screen. Now you will see all call attempts in that interval. Press the **Generate** button to produce a call attempts list.

| ۵ | III \$ | 88 | 1 10 14 | Q | SIP Log Viewer | | America/Vancouver | | 🛛 Help |
|---|--------|----|-------------------------------|-------------------------|---|----------|---|----------|--------|
| • | 🛞 Clo | ie | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | |
| | | | | | PortaSIP Node * 193.28.87.36 - PortaSIP - 193.28. Trace a call | 87.36 🗸 | | | |
| | | | Call-ID * but not H32: | | | Show c | all attempts (current day only) | | |
| | | | Another Call optional, e.g | I-ID I. for callbaci | i calls | For last | 30 minutes V Use carefully for large interval, | | |
| | | | Search log f | ile for * | SELECT | | may produce huge list of calls. | | |
| | | | | | include log file for the previous day in the search | Filter | 🗹 do not show selftest calls | | |
| | | | Output form | at | I log with call diagram | | | | |
| | | | | | 🔿 only text log | | Generate | | |
| | | | | | Get log | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |



| 🕼 🗉 S 😂 | i : 1 / / Q | | SIP Log Viewer | (| America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|--|---|--|--|--------------------------|------------------------------|----------|--------|
| S Close | | | | | | 💵 Logout | |
| Lis | t of call attempts in current | sip.log file on 193.2 8 | 3.87.36 PortaSIP node since 11/1/2010 15:0 | :35 UTC (UTC +0000) from | m log server 193.28.8 | 7.36: | |
| Setup Time (in SIP server TZ) | Caller's IP:UdpPort | CLI CLD | Call-ID | | Caller's User | Agent | |
| 11 Jan 15:04:42.370 | 91.212.34.242:53062 | 999100 *20 | dc4a318f-38d30381 | 10.254.254.56 Linksys/S | PA941-5.1.8 | | |
| Send log(s) to PortaOr | ne support ticketing syster | n. Trouble ticket: | Send V | • | | | |
| PortaSIP node: | | _ | | | | | |
| Call-ID: H323-Conf-ID: | dc4a318f-38d30381 14F15EDC FEB211DE | | | | | | |
| | 11115200 12021102 | . 91200000 100 | | | | | |
| PortaSIP UA server 91.212. | 34.242 | proxv 193.28.87.36 | b2bua 193.28.87.36 | AAA | UA 193.28 | .87.37 | |
| $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{Linkays}\\ \textbf{Linkays}\\$ | <pre>//BAG41-5.1.8 10//J) 100 Trying</pre> | BortaSTP => (A? 101/T) → T => (A? 101/A) ACR => (A? 101/A) ACR => (A? 101/A) ACR => (A? 102/T) → T => (A? 102/T) → T => (A? 102/T) → T => (A? 102/T) ACR => (A) | PortaSTP | 0 0 | | | |
| Via: SIP/2 From: <sip: Call-ID: d CSeq: 101 Max-Forwar Contact: < Expires: 2</sip: | :ds: 70 <sip:999100@10.254.25 240 :: Linksys/SPA941-5.1</sip:999100@10.254.25 | 5:5062;branch=z9 5>;tag=d52e0a381 254.254.56 54.56:5062>;+sip | | 000-000K08DA0867>" | | | |

3. To obtain a detailed log view, click on the call-id for the call you are interested in. In the lower frame you will see a detailed copy of all SIP messages in this call. The upper frame provides a call-flow diagram, representing the main participating entities (SIP phone, SIP proxy, B2BUA, remote SIP UA, etc.). If you click on a particular dialogue element here, the lower frame scrolls automatically to display the corresponding SIP message.

Check Call History

If you want to see a list of all calls going through the system, or perhaps only ones for a particular destination, use the **Trace Session** function.

| Voice C. View Error Re View Error Re | | | ⊙ R Servi 100 <u>F</u> 100 T | 0m 20 2 20 | ny service D10-07-15 YYYY-P | (M-DD 15:28:28 H | H24:MU:S5 H24:MU:S5 | | | | Þ₩ Logout |
|--|-----------------|------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|------------------------|------------------|--------------|----------|-----------------------|
| View Error Re | | | ⊙ R Servi 100 <u>F</u> 100 T | ate Pattern % ce & om 20 2 20 | ny service D10-07-15 YYYY- D10-08-15 YYYY-P erver Time Zone (UT | MM-DD 15:18:28 H | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | Servi Er Tu | ce Aa om 20 1 20 | ny service D10-07-15 YYYY- D10-08-15 YYYY-P erver Time Zone (UT | MM-DD 15:18:28 H | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | | 0m 20 2 20 | 010-07-15 YYYY- 010-08-15 YYYY- erver Time Zone (UT | (M-OD 15:18:28 H (M-OD 15:28:28 H C) | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | 10 T | 2 20 | 010-08-15 YYYY-P erver Time Zone (UT | (M-DD 15:28:28 H | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | _ | | erver Time Zone (UT | c) 💌 | H24:MI:SS | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | Time | Zone se | | | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | | | Search Session | _ | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | | | | \$ | | | | | |
| View Error Re | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Ø | eport 🗢 CLI(ani | | | | | | | | | | |
| | |) 🕆 CLD(dnis) 🕆 Countr | y © Description | Connect Tin | me 🔅 Disconnect Time | Duration, min:sec | Amount | Account/Alias | Customer | • Vendor | Disconnect Reasons |
| | | 123002 | | 2010-08-10 19:45 | 5:20 2010-08-10 19:45:21 | 0:01 | <u>0</u> | <u>123000</u> | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | | 123002 | | 2010-08-10 19:45 | 5:20 2010-08-10 19:45:21 | 0:01 | <u>0</u> | <u>123002</u> | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:55 | 5:08 2010-07-26 16:00:08 | 5:00 | 0 | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Normal, unspecifie |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:55 | 5:08 2010-07-26 16:00:09 | 5:00 | 0 | 900 | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:55 | 5:08 2010-07-26 15:55:08 | 0:00 | <u>0</u> | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Destination out of or |
| ٤ | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:43 | 3:57 2010-07-26 15:47:44 | 3:47 | <u>0</u> | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:43 | 3:57 2010-07-26 15:43:57 | 0:00 | <u>0</u> | 999000100 | redRat | INTERNAL | Destination out of on |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:43 | 3:57 2010-07-26 15:47:44 | 3:47 | <u>0</u> | <u>900</u> | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:42 | 2:06 2010-07-26 15:43:36 | 1:30 | Q | 900 | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P . | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:42 | 2:06 2010-07-26 15:42:06 | 0:00 | 0 | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | |
| | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:42 | 2:06 2010-07-26 15:43:36 | 1:30 | <u>0</u> | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| <u> </u> | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:41 | 1:52 2010-07-26 15:42:03 | 0:11 | <u>0</u> | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:41 | 1:52 2010-07-26 15:42:03 | 0:11 | <u>0</u> | 900 | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 15:41 | 1:52 2010-07-26 15:41:52 | 0:00 | Q | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Destination out of on |
| | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 13:33 | 3:20 2010-07-26 13:33:23 | 0:03 | Q | 900 | SIP Accounts | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| | | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 13:33 | 3:20 2010-07-26 13:33:23 | | Q | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Normal call clearin |
| P | 900 | 999000100 | | 2010-07-26 13:33 | 3:20 2010-07-26 13:33:20 | 0:00 | <u>0</u> | <u>999000100</u> | redRat | INTERNAL | Destination out of on |

- In the Helpdesk section of Admin-Index choose **Trace Session**.
- Fill in the check phone number form:
 - h323-conf-id if you need to trace a specific call, enter h323-conf-id here; otherwise leave this empty.
 - Rate Pattern the phone number you are looking for or a destination pattern (first digits and a percent sign, for example 380%).
 - From, To Date the date range. Click on the "10 min." icon to limit the time interval to the last 10 minutes only.
- Click Search Session.

Network error

For the administrator's convenience, account xDRs may also be accessed from the Account Management window by clicking the **xDR** icon for the account.

2. Routing Info -LCR Blending

In a multi-carrier environment where every termination partner offers different prices to the same destinations, it can be a challenging task to come up with a proper (profitable) price list for your resellers and customers. This is because you have to consider the price of every carrier while making decisions on how exactly to charge end customers. Further, you might use different routing plans for different products, which requires precise pricing in order to avoid losses on cheap calls via expensive premium vendors. So it all seems like a not so easily manageable task. PortaBilling®, however, incorporates an LCR blending report tool, which is just what you need to deal with these issues.

NOTE: This type of report is available for root and admin users only.
The Goal

The ultimate goal is to analyze the available routes, calculate the average termination price for each destination, and then use this as a basis for computing the rate for a given customer. The most important step is to "blend" the prices of different vendors according to a realistic scenario. For example, if there are three available carriers for destination 4471, with rates of \$0.12, \$0.18 and \$0.30 per minute, calculating just a plain average (0.12 + 0.18 + 0.30) / 3 = 0.20 would be incorrect, since it assumes that each of these carriers gets an equal share of traffic. Since you are using a real-time routing engine in PortaBilling®, you will be utilizing least-cost routing and other features so that the cheaper carrier will get more calls, thus increasing your revenue. As a result, the cheaper carrier's rate will have a bigger effect on the average termination price. Therefore, routes are assigned "weight" parameters, where the weight reflects the share of calls going to this route compared to the other routes. In our example above, we may assign a weight of 80 to the first route, 15 to the second one, and 5 to the third (thus assuming that calls are distributed 80% / 15% / 5% between the three vendors). As a result, the

Create a Report

You can easily access this type of report from the main page of the web interface – just follow the Custom Report link:

1. On the **Custom Reports** management page, click 🖬 Add.

average termination price will be \$0.138 per minute.

Select the "Routing info – LCR blending" report type, then click
 Save.



3. Once the report type is saved, new configuration options are available – "Input Parameters" and "Output Data":

Porta 🌄 Switch

| ₫ [| ≣ \$ | 88 i | | (| - Q | | | Add Que | ry | | ③ Europe/Kiev | demoroot | ? | Help |
|-----|------------|------|-------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|------------------------|------------------|----------------|---------------------|-------------|-------------------|----------|---|------|
| • | Save | 🖬 S- | ave & Clo | ose 🤅 | ③ Close | 🗈 Ехе | ute | | | | | り Logout | 8 | Log |
| | | | Qu | : Type Jery Inl g Plan * | Routing Routing i | nfo - LCF It Parame | lending | ZONE Europe/I | ondon | M | × | _ | | |
| | | | Use Or | nly Dest | ination Pi | refixes * | Matching the Pat | ern 🔘 From a D | estination Group Se | it 🔘 From a | n Existing Tariff | | | |
| | | | 🝺 <u>Da</u> | <u>te</u> | | | YYY-MM-DD Now | * 3 | HH24:MI:SS | | * | | | |
| | | | Numbe | er of Ro | utes * | | 3 | | | | ~ | | | |
| | | | Weight | of Rout | te N≌1 | | 80 * | | | | | | | |
| | | | Weight | of Rout | te Nº2 | | 15 * | | | | | | | |
| | | | Weight | of Rout | te N≌3 | | 5 | | | | | | | |
| | Protocol * | | | | | | SIP | | | | ~ | | | |
| | | | Curren | cy * | | | USD - US Dollar | | | | ~ | | | |
| | | | Selling | Rate M | arkup, % | |) | | | | | | | |
| | | | Compa | are with | Tariff | | Test Research | | | | ¥ | | | |

| ۵ | | \$ | 88 (| ÷ :• | Þ | Q | | | | Add Que | ry | | | | () Europe/Kiev | demoroot | 🕐 Help |
|---|------|----|----------|----------|---------|-------------|----------|---------|-----|-------------------------|-------------|--------------|------------|-------|----------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Sa | ve | <u> </u> | 5ave & (| lose | 🛞 Close | 🗈 Ех | ecute | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | | | | | e Routing i | | | | Timezone Europe/L | ondon | M | | | | - | |
| | | | | Outp | ut Fori | mat | | | | | | Data Sorting | J | | | | |
| | | | | | Colu | imn | Visible | Form | nt | Post Processing Rule St | uppress Dup | Column | Sort | Up/Dn | | | |
| | | | | Desti | nation | | V | E.164 | ~ | | | Country | ₽ļ | - | | | |
| | | | | Coun | try | | V | Text | ~ | | V | Destination | ≙ ↓ | | | | |
| | | | | Desc | ription | | V | Text | ~ | | | Description | — | | | | |
| | | | | Route | e N Ver | ndor | V | Text | ~ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Route | e N De | stination | | E.164 | ~ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Route | e N Pri | ce | V | 1234.12 | 3 🗸 | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Route | 9 N, % | | V | 1234 | ~ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Aggre | gated | Price | V | 1234.12 | 3 🗸 | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Sugg | ested | Sale Price | V | 1234.12 | 3 🕶 | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tariff | Destin | ation | V | E.164 | ~ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tariff | Price | | V | 1234.12 | 3 🗸 | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tariff | Differe | ence | V | 1234.12 | 3 🗸 | | | | | | | | |

Let's have a closer look at the input & output parameters we can configure:

List of Input Values:

| Name | Mandatory | Range of values | Description |
|---------|-----------|-----------------------|----------------------------|
| Routing | Y | Available routing | Produce a routing list |
| plan | | plans; "All available | according to the specified |
| | | routes" by default | routing plan. |



| Use only Destination | Y | Destination pattern | The available options are: • Matching the Pattern – |
|-------------------------|---|------------------------------------|---|
| Prefixes | | | Produces a routing list only for a specific destination, e.g. 49%. To produce a list of all available destinations, use %. From a Destination Group Set - Produces a routing list only for destinations available in the specified destination group set (which can be selected from the drop- down list). From an Existing Tariff – The report will only include destinations present in the specified tariff. The tariff can be |
| | | | chosen from the drop- down list. |
| Date | N | Date + time; by default – empty | Calculate routing at a specified time (if empty, use the current time at report generation). |
| Number of routes | Y | Numeric up to 10; default – 3 | How many routes (from all available routes) should be displayed for each destination. |
| 1st route weight | Y | Numeric | How often this route is used e.g. if the first route has a weight of 80 and the second, 20 – this means that we assume that, on average, 80% of calls go via the first route. Note: weight is not a percentage; rather, it is the number of calls which go via this route during the sampling interval. So, if you enter 7 for the first route, and 3 for the second, it means that, on average, for every 10 calls 7 calls will go |

| | | | via the first route and 3 will go via the second (or 70 / 30% split). Of course, you can enter the actual percent values here; e.g. in this example, you can achieve the same result by entering 70 and 30. |
|---------------------------|---|--|--|
| Nth route weight | Y | Numeric | Same as above, for 1st route weight field. |
| Currency | Y | List of "available" currencies (base + ones with a defined exchange rate) | By default the base currency should be selected. |
| Selling rate markup, % | N | Numeric, can be negative; by default, empty (0) | Percentage to be added to the average vendor destination price as your profit. |
| Compare with Tariff | N | List of available tariffs; by default, empty | The list produced and its price will be compared with the selected tariff (use only if you need to compare the result with some existing tariff; if not, leave this blank). |

List of Output Fields:

| Column | Description |
|--------------------|---|
| Destination | Phone number prefix of the destination. |
| | |
| Country | Country corresponding to the current |
| | destination. |
| Description | A short description of the specified |
| | destination. |
| Route N vendor | |
| Route N price | |
| Route N, % | |
| Aggregated Price | Average price to the specified destination. |
| Suggested Sale | Suggested price calculated in accordance with |
| Price | the selling rate markup. |
| Tariff Destination | The destination in the tariff that was chosen |
| | for comparison. |
| Tariff X price | The price for this destination in the specified |
| | tariff. |
| Tariff <x></x> | Difference between "Tariff_x_price" and the |

difference

suggested sale price.

Behind the Web Interface

How are all the things mentioned above compiled into a human-readable report? Let's assume we are generating an LCR blending report for all available routes where the "Destination pattern" is 44 (Great Britain), "Number of routes" is 2, and "1st route weight" is 80% (or just 80) while "2nd route weight" is 20%.

When the Execute button is pressed, the system finds all vendors who can terminate a call to the destination defined in the report parameters. Prices from all matched vendors' tariffs with a destination like 44% are fetched and processed in accordance with the defined "route weights" for each available vendor.

NOTE: If you set "Number of routes" to 2, all other routes available for that routing plan will be ignored. So the best way to get a clear and correct report is to set the "Number of routes" parameter equal to the number of routing categories included in that particular routing plan.

The next step is to calculate the average price for all the vendors involved. In our example, 8 out of 10 calls will go to the 1st route (we set its "weight" at 80%). Then all the gathered data is analyzed and the average price is calculated. The 1st vendor's price will have the highest "priority" in the calculations, to reflect the fact that it will be the most used.

NOTE: When calculating the aggregated price only vendors are taken into account, not connections. This helps to prevent a situation when one single vendor with 5 gateways (5 different connections – same price) occupies a whole list of routes where we have specified displaying only 2 routes. In such a case, the "aggregated price" will be equal to this vendor's price, which is not correct.

Additionally, the percentage defined as "selling rate markup" is added to the average destination price calculated during the previous step to form the recommended selling prices for each destination matching the 44% pattern.

The final step is to display the prices of an existing tariff next to the new ones produced by the LCR blending report (if you have specified a tariff for comparison when configuring the report).

How to Manage LCR Blending Reports

When a report has been configured and saved, two additional tabs appear. These tabs are related to effective management of this specific report.

Schedule tab

This allows you to run a report in "unattended" mode, and may be configured to run this report at any time on any date. Additionally, this can be done as a periodical task with daily, weekly and monthly intervals. You can schedule this report to run on a weekly basis at 1:00 pm on Fridays, so that by the time your weekly meeting is over, the report will be compiled and ready for review:

| ₫ | | \$ | 00 | • | | Q | Edit qı | iery "R | outing | j info + | LCR | blending | n | ③ Europe/Kiev | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
|---|---|-----|-----------|------|------------|-----------------------------------|------------|---------|----------|----------|--------|----------|---|---------------|-----------|--------|
| • | • | Add | | Save | 🗟 Save & C | ose 🛞 Clos | e 🗈 Execu | te | | | | | | | M) Logout | 🖬 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Na | me Ro | uting info + L | R blending | • Time | zone Eu | rope/Lon | don | • | | | | |
| | | | | Re | | uting info - LCF | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | - | - | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Query Info | Input Param | eters Outp | ıt Data | Schedule | Report | s Note | epad | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | |
| | | | | Edi | | Time [*] D HH24:MI:SS | Periodic | Last Ru | n Status | Suspend | Delete | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | 2010-11-15 | 09:00:00 | Daily | - | Waiting | - | × | | | | | |

To create a new periodical task, click 🖿 Add.

- 1. **Start time.** Date and time when the report should be produced. You may use the **YYY-MM-DD HH24:MI:SS** link (in the column header) to easily access the calendar and assign a start date.
- 2. **Periodic**. Specifies whether the report should be produced only once, or generated every day, week, or month. Use the drop-down menu to select the desired interval. Add an interval if you want this report to be periodic. The possible values are: daily, weekly, monthly.
- 3. **Last run**. The date when the report was last executed (if applicable).
- 4. **Status**. Current status of the report. Waiting Report execution has not started yet, and is scheduled for the future. Completed The report was to be executed only once, and this has already been done. Running The report is currently being produced.
- 5. **Suspend**. Allows you to temporarily disable report execution (but not delete the entry from the report schedule). This may be convenient if you are leaving for vacation and would like to avoid having reports pile up in your inbox during your absence.
- 6. Click the **Save** button.

NOTE: Start time specifies only the preferred start time for the report. Report execution will not start earlier than the specified time, but it may start later if there are some other conflicting tasks at that time. For instance, if two reports are scheduled to be executed at 6:00 am, only one of them will start at that time, while the other will start after the first one has finished.

Reports tab

This tab allows you to browse results for up to ten previous report executions stored in CSV format. Thus you do not have to run the reports again if you did not save the original result. Click on the icon to see the corresponding file.

| ₼ | | 5 | 88 | • | • | ₽ | 2 | Q | | dit | query " | Routing | info + | LCR ble | nding | ן" | Euro | pe/Kiev | demoroot | 2 | Help |
|---|------|----|----|------------|--------------|---------------|------------------|----------------|--|------------------|---------------------|----------|---------|---------------|-------|----|------|---------|----------|---|------|
| • | 🖬 Sa | ve | | Save 8 | t Clo | se | 8 C | lose | Execut | e | | | | | | | | | 💵 Logout | | Log |
| | | | | Nar Rep | ort | Fype ery 1 | Rou | ting in | nfo + LCR b fo - LCR ble Parameter | nding | g Tin Itput Data | Schedule | Reports | on Notepad | 1 | • | | | - | | |
| | | | | 201 | 0-11 0-11 | -11 | 13:38: 14:30: | 45 20 10 20 | Completion 10-11-15 1 10-11-11 1 10-11-11 1 | :43:36 :33:35 | ø | | | | | | | | | | |

When & How to Use

New routing plan created

One example of cases in which this report is applicable is a situation where you have created a new routing plan for premium customers, and need to generate a price list to bill calls accordingly. For providing services to the most demanding premium customers, you will most likely be using a special routing plan like "Premium". This will definitely include the most expensive and most reliable vendors with the highest ASR and sound quality. When the new routing plan is ready to use, you will need to have an appropriate tariff & product to make use of it. Please refer to the Voice Services section in the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide** for more details on how to configure routing parameters and routing plans.

It is then time to start using LCR blending reports. They can save you a lot of time, since recommended prices are generated automatically according to route analysis and routing cost. Open the Report template and enter the appropriate data in all the necessary fields on the Input Parameters tab and, if needed, the Output Data tab as well. See the *List of Input* and *Output Values* above for a detailed description of all the available fields. As you are not comparing any tariffs, in this case you may leave the **Compare with Tariff** field blank. This report will use the following input parameters:

- o Routing plan Premium
- Use only Destination Prefixes Matching the Pattern "%" (meaning every available destination)
- Number of rotes 3 (there are 3 vendors in the routing plan)
- Weight of route 1 80% (you assume 80% of calls will go to this vendor)
- Weight of route 2 15% (you assume 15% of calls will go to this vendor)
- Weight of route 3 5% (you assume 5% of calls will go to this vendor)
- Selling Rate Markup 8% (expected profit margin)

- **Currenc**y US Dollar
- **Compare with Tariff** skipped for now

NOTE: You need to select a newly created routing plan in the "Routing plan" field in order to have the correct results, since by default the "All available routes" option is selected.

Press Execute in the upper toolbar when you are ready. This is a rather large report, so it can take a while to produce the result, which will open in a new window:

| | | | Repor | t results f | or "Routin | g info | + LCI | blend ک | ing", "2 | 010 -: | 11-15 1 | 4:09 | :23" | | |
|------------------|-----|------------------|-------------|---------------|------------------------|------------------|-----------------|------------------------|------------------|----------------|-----------------------|--------------|--|---|--|
| S Clo | se | Download | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Report Type: | Rou | uting info - LCF | R blending | | | | | | | | | | Descriptio | n | |
| Timezone: | Eur | ope/London | | | | | | | | | | _ | | shows routing o ested selling pr | |
| Input Values: | F | touting Plan | Destination | Date | Number o Routes | | ight of oute | Protocol | Currency | Sellin Mark | | ariff | Input Param | atare | |
| | | | | 14:09:23 | | - 5; | | | | | | | Output Field Destination, Price, %, Au Tariff Price, Default orde Country(ase | Country, Descr ggregated Price Tariff Difference ering: c), Destination(e | iption, For ev , Suggested : ;e. usc) |
| Destination | n | Country | D | escription | Route 1 Destination | Route 1 Price | Route | Route 2 Destination | Route 2 Price | Route | Route 3 Destinatio | Rou n Pri | | Aggregated Price | Suggeste Sale Price |
| 12 | | AFGHANISTA | N | | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242 | | | E | Bahamas | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242357 | | | Baha | imas - Mobile | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242359 | | | Baha | ımas - Mobile | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242375 | | | Baha | imas - Mobile | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242376 | | | Baha | imas - Mobile | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1010005 | | | Baha | imas - Mobile | 1 | 1.00000 | 80 | 1 | 1.00000 | 15 | 1 | 1.00 | 000 5 | 1.00000 | 1.08000 |
| 1242395 | | | Darre | mobile | | | | | | | | | | 1.00000 | 1.00000 |

How to read it

When you created the "Premium" routing plan you included 3 vendors in it. All of them have a different priority, so that the first one will handle the vast majority of calls (since it is first on the list, with the highest priority), while other vendors will have the opportunity to terminate a call in case the first one fails to do so for some reason. This first vendor's info is shown as Route 1 and as Route 1 Price on the LCR blending report results page. The Route 1 price will be the basis for the suggested sale price, since you will be sending about 80% of calls to it. In spite of possible differences in prices, the Route 2 and Route 3 prices will have less influence on the resulting sale price, since you will be using those vendors mostly as a failover solution.

The results page provides you with a routing and price data overview for each of the 3 vendors. The most important columns are:

- **Destination** destination phone prefix.
- Route 1 % you assume that on average 80% of calls go via the first route.
- **Route N %** you assume that on average x% of calls go via the Nth route.
- **Route 1 Price** the price vendor 1 charges you for calls to that destination.

- **Route N Price** the price vendor N charges you for calls to that destination.
- Aggregated Price the average price of all vendors combined, with each route's weight taken into consideration.
- **Suggested Sale Price** the aggregated price + 8% (which you have defined as the selling rate markup).

Modifying the report format

As the only intention is to generate a profitable price list, and no routing analysis is needed in this case, you can hide some unnecessary data.

In the Visible column, un-tick the checkboxes next to the unneeded elements to prevent them from showing up on the results page (in this example, only "Destination", "Description", "Suggested sale price" are left).

There is also a post-processing rule. Here you can define a Perl regular expression which will accordingly rewrite the original values.

| 2 | | \$ | 00 80 | • | • | ~ | Q | | Ed | it qu | ery " | Routing | info + | LCR bl | ending" | | | /Kiev | demoroot | 2 H |
|---|------------|------|----------|----------|------------|--------|-------|----------|----------|-------|--------|--------------|-----------|--------|--------------|----|-------|-------|----------|-----|
| | a 9 | iave | | Save | & Close | ۲ | Close | E E | kecute | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | |
| | | | | Na Re | | | - | | LCR bler | _ | Tin | nezone Eu | rope/Lond | on | • | | | | | |
| | | | | | Query | Info | Inpu | t Parar | neters | Outpu | t Data | Schedule | Reports | Notepa | d | | | | | |
| | | | | Ou | tput For | mat | | | | | | | | | Data Sorting | g | | | | |
| | | | | | Col | umn | | Visible | For | mat | Post | Processing F | | | Column | | Up/Dn | | | |
| | | | | De | stination | | | V | E.164 | • | | | | | Country | ₽Ļ | | | | |
| | | | | Co | untry | | | | Text | • | | | [| 7 | Destination | 2↓ | | | | |
| | | | | De | scription | | | V | Text | • | | | [| | Description | | | | | |
| | | | | Ro | ute N Ve | ndor | | | Text | • | | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ro | ute N De | stinat | tion | | E.164 | • | | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ro | ute N Pri | се | | | 1234. | 123 🗸 | | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ro | ute N, % | | | | 1234 | • | | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Agg | pregated | Price | | | 1234. | 123 🗸 | | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Su | gested | Sale F | Price | V | 1234. | 123 🗸 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tar | iff Destir | nation | | | E.164 | • | - | | [| | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tar | iff Price | | | | 1234. | 123 🗸 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Tar | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

The report results page will look like this (no extra data, just destination and price):

| | | | Report re | sults fo | r "Rou | ting i | nto + I | CR blen | ding | g", "2010-1 | 11-15 13:55:05" |
|-------|---|-------------|-----------|----------------|---|---------|-----------|-----------------------------------|--------|--|---|
| ► ⊗ (| lose 🔳 | Download | | | | | | | | | |
| ype: | Routing ir Europe/Lo Routing Plan premiun | Destination | - | of Routes 3 | Weight of Route 1 - 80; 2 - 15; 3 - 5; | Protoco | USD | Selling Rate Markup, % 8 | Tariff | with a sugge Routing Plan, route, Protoc Output Fields Destination, (Price, %, Agg Tariff Price, T Default order | nows routing options for every destination and comes up sted selling price. Iters: Destination, Date, Number of Routes, Weight of every ol, Currency, Seling Rate Markup, Tanff country, Description, For every route: Destination, Vendo regated Price, Suggested Sale Price, Tanff Destination, anff Difference. |
| | | | | De | stination | | Descrip | tion | Sugge | ested Sale Price | |
| | | | | | 12 | | | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 1242 | | Baham | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 242357 | | lahamas - | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 242359 | _ | lahamas - | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 242375 | | lahamas - | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 242376 | _ | lahamas - | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | | 242395 | | lahamas - | | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | 10 | 242422 | E | lahamas - | Mobile | | 1.08000 | |
| | | | | 11 | 242423 | F | lahamas - | Mohile | | 1.08000 | |

After successful completion, the system will email the report to the addresses defined on the **Query Info** tab, and you can also download it from the results page. Click Download on the upper menu bar and choose the location where you want to save it. Now, having the LCR blending report in a CSV file, it is a matter of just a couple mouse clicks to convert it into a profitable price list.

Quick way to check and redesign existing tariffs

In addition to the information about routes and the suggested price list for the selected routing plan, an LCR blending report can compare its suggested price with a specified existing tariff. It may be helpful to compare your current prices for different end-user groups with those computed with the help of the LCR blending report, and to modify the existing tariffs, if needed.

Before starting report compilation, simply define the tariff you wish to compare the report's results to on the Input Parameters tab, and then execute the report:

| Destination | Description | Aggregated Price | Suggested Sale Price | Tariff Destination | Tariff Price | Tariff Difference |
|-------------|------------------|------------------|----------------------|--------------------|--------------|-------------------|
| 12 | | 0.00000 | 0.00000 | 12 | 0.00000 | 0.00000 |
| 1242 | Bahamas | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242357 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242359 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242375 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242376 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242395 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242422 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242423 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242424 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242425 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242426 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242427 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242428 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242429 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |
| 1242431 | Bahamas - Mobile | 1.00000 | 1.08000 | 12 | 0.00000 | -1.08000 |

With a tariff defined, the results page will have several new columns:

- **Tariff Destination** the corresponding destination in the tariff that was chosen for comparison.
- **Tariff Price** the price to make calls to this destination within the defined tariff.
- **Tariff Difference** the difference between the recommended sale price and the current price in the tariff.

Fields like "Route N Price" and "Route N %" have been excluded from this report to give you a clearer view of the new columns on the results page.

Tariff upload

Uploading vendors' tariffs is not a problem, since vendors themselves provide you with a file containing all the destinations and prices. In case this is your own tariff, you will need to create such a file yourself. If the suggested sale price suits you, you can create a new tariff and easily upload rates for it, using a CSV file with report results as a template. Refer to the "Rate Import" chapter of this guide for more information about uploading rates.

NOTE: You must have at least the **Destination** and **Suggested Sale Price** data fields visible to be able to use a CSV file for tariff upload.

Summary

The LCR blending report is a tool primarily designed to display routing options for each destination and produce a suggested selling price. It creates a list of available routes for every destination and presents them in a form that allows easy calculation of "blended" route pricing.



3. Rate Import

When operating as a VoIP service provider, you will routinely receive rate updates from your partners. Each carrier may send you updates as frequently as several times per week, so you can expect to need to work on uploading new rates daily in order to keep your rating and routing consistent. Obviously, you want to be able to upload the files you receive and let the system process them automatically, instead of entering each rate manually.

Upload Rate Data Into a Tariff

Unfortunately, each carrier uses a different format for rate presentation: some use CSV files, while others use Microsoft Excel format; the layout of columns in these files usually varies; some carriers will provide phone numbers in E.164 format, while others will provide them in the local dialing format. If you were to process the data in each file individually so as to convert it into a format acceptable to your system, it would require a fair amount of manual processing each day, and might result in data errors.

PortaBilling® offers the ability to program data processing rules (called templates) for each type of rate file you receive, so that you can eliminate the need for any manual data conversion and save yourself a lot of time. Also, the rate upload process is interactive and provides a comparison between new rates and existing ones, so that you can review the rates being uploaded for validity and accuracy.

Let's have a look at how a rate import is performed. We will perform the rate upload for the "X-Telecom" termination tariff, proceeding step by step. You can then use this as a model for uploading any other tariffs.

NOTE: In PortaBilling[®], the proper name for the initial portion of the phone number (used to determine which location or type of phone network this number belongs to) is **destination** (e.g. 44 for the United Kingdom and 442 for London, United Kingdom). In the VoIP business the same entity is frequently called **prefix** – so we will use these terms interchangeably.

Start the Import

- 1. On the Tariff Management page, click on the tariff name.
- 2. In the Edit Tariff window, click the Upload button. You will see a screen like the one below:

| ۵ | II \$ | 88 🚯 | * * - | 2 🖾 | | E | Edit Ta | riff 'X-T | elecor | n' | andrew | 🛛 Help |
|---|--------|------|---------------------------|----------------------------|---------|------------|----------|-------------------------|----------|---|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Save | Sav | e & Close | 8 Close | 🗷 Dov | wnload | 🔺 Uplozd | 🗉 Rates | 🕑 Test | 街 Objects | M Logout | 🖬 Log |
| | | | Name Applied Routin | X-Tel To Vende g Yes | | | | urrency US ervice Vo | | | | |
| | | | Ge | neral Info | Web U | ipload & I | Downloau | Email Uploa | d Notepa | d | | |
| | | | Default (| Off-Peak Pe | eriod N | OT DEFI | NED | Ŧ | | | | |
| | | | Destinat | ion Group S | Set | | - | • | | | | |
| | | | Free Sec | conds | 0 | |] | | | | | |
| | | | Post Cal | I Surcharge | e 0. | .00000 | % | | | | | |
| | | | Login Fe | e | 0. | .00000 | USD | | | | | |
| | | | Connect | Fee | 0. | .00000 | USD 🔳 | | | | | |
| | | | Round C | harged Am | iount 🗴 | xxxx.xxxx | x | (A) | | | | |
| | | | Default F | ormula | | | - 1 | | 75 | and the second se | | |
| | | | Short De | escription | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Descript | ion | | | _ V | 1 | | 1 | | |

| ₼ | II \$ (| 8 🕴 🗈 | P ~ Q | Rate Upload f | or Tarif | ff 'X-Telecon | n' | America/Vancouver | andrew | В | lelp |
|---|---------|----------|-----------------------|--|-------------|-----------------------|----|-------------------|----------|---|------|
| • | 8 Close | 📲 Objec | ts | | | | | | M Logout | | og |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Fil | e Upload | | | | | | | | |
| | | File | C:\Temp\rates.csv | | Browse_ |] | | | | | |
| | | | | ile to the existing rates kisting rates with the rates from | the file | | | | | | |
| | | | Rates with 'effective | from' date in the past should be | uploaded as | effective immediately | | | | | |
| | | v | Skip rates with the | same data | | | | | | | |
| | | Temp | late | Create New Template | • | | | | | | |
| | | Time | zone | Current settings, America/Var | Next | | | | | | |

Let's now discuss the available options and their effect.

Add or replace rates

This radio button controls behavior in respect to rates which were already defined in the tariff at the time of import. The default is to **add** new rates into the tariff. So when the new rates appear, and there is an existing rate for a certain prefix, the new rate will simply overwrite the old one. If a rate for a certain prefix is in the tariff but is not given in the file you received from the carrier, it will stay unchanged. This mode is frequently used, since most of the time your partners will send you rate updates only, i.e. the file will contain only a small subset of prefixes for which the price has changed.

In some cases, however, you need to ensure following import that the tariff structure matches the provided file exactly, so that there are no "old" rates remaining. This is normally done when your carrier changes the structure of the prefixes and sends you a "replacement" rate update. In this case, you will want to use **replace** mode, which uploads all the new rates and then marks rates for all prefixes not present in the uploaded file as discontinued.

NOTE: To prevent a situation where some rates would be discontinued erroneously because a new rate was not uploaded due to a data error (e.g. a typo in the price column), discontinuation of rates will take place only if there were no errors in uploading the new rates.

In our example, we assume that a normal, "incremental" rate import is being used; thus we will be **adding** rates.

Effective from

PortaBilling® allows each rate to be assigned an "effective from" date, so that an automated rate change can be easily scheduled for the future. Thus if your carrier sends you a file which indicates the date when a specific rate becomes effective, this can be extracted from the file and added to the rate information in PortaBilling®. Sometimes it may happen, though, that you receive the file later than expected, when the moment at which the rate was supposed to become effective has already passed. In order to protect data integrity, it is impossible to upload the rate and assign an "effective from" date in the past, since CDRs for calls previously made will have already been rated according to the old rate and stored in the database (see the xDR rerating topic for more information about how this situation can be resolved). By default, a rate entry effective from a date in the past will be rejected and not inserted into the tariff. Alternatively, you may choose to insert these rates into the tariff, but effective from the current moment; to do so, please tick the appropriate check-box.

Skip duplicate rates

Sometimes carriers will include all prefixes in a rate update file, even if for some of them no change in pricing has occurred. If you upload the whole rate file, it will create duplicate rate rows. This has no effect on the way calls are billed, but it will increase the amount of entries in the rate table and, in the long run (if it occurs continually), have a negative effect on performance.

In order to prevent this, simply activate the option to skip duplicate rates. This will slightly increase the time it takes to upload the whole rate file (since PortaBilling® will have to check the already existing rates and compare them with the new ones). If rate parameters such as price, preference, and so on turn out to be identical, no extra (excess) rate will be inserted. We use this mode in our example (and certainly recommend using it whenever possible).

Finally, choose the rate file and click **Next**. The file is uploaded to the server, and we move on to the next step.

Review File Parsing

The purpose of this screen is to verify that the general structure of the file has been determined correctly, so that the data can be properly extracted. There are different ways to organize data files: for instance, CSV files, despite their name (comma-separated values) can use semi-colons or other characters as a separator. PortaBilling® attempts to make a best guess, but it is important to review the results and, if necessary, change the settings according to your preference.

| 8 Close | Objects | | | | | | | NØ Logout | E | 1 |
|-------------|---------------------------|--------------|-------|--------|---|---|---|-----------|----------|---|
| Revie | ew File Parsing | J | | | | | | | | |
| | A | | В | С | D | E | F | | | |
| 1 | AFGHANISTA | N | 93 | 0.24 | | | | | • | |
| 2 | ALBANIA | | 355 | 0.18 | | | | | | |
| 3 | ALGERIA | | 213 | 0.28 | | | | | | |
| 4 | ANDORRA | | 376 | 0.12 | | | | | | |
| 5 | ANGOLA | | 244 | 0.2119 | | | | | = | |
| 6 | ANGUILLA | | 1264 | 0.2204 | | | | | | |
| 7 | ANTIGUA/BARBUDA | | 1268 | 0.1359 | | | | | | |
| 8 | ARGENTINA | | 54 | 0.0132 | | | | | | |
| 9 | ARGENTINA BUENC | SAIRES | 5411 | 0.0052 | | | | | | |
| 10 | ARGENTINA CELI | ULAR | 549 | 0.1333 | | | | | | |
| 11 | ARMENIA | | 374 | 0.3092 | | | | | | |
| 12 | ARUBA | | 297 | 0.092 | | | | | | |
| 13 | ARUBA CELLU | AR | 29773 | 0 1575 | | | | | T | |
| A Show more | | | | | | | | 4 | | |
| Delimiter | | , (comma) | - | | | | | | | |
| Text Qualit | fier | " (double of | | | | | | | | |
| Delimiter F | For Multiple Destinations | , (comma) | | | | | | | | |
| Data Start | At Row | 1 | | | | | | | | |

Multiple prefixes in the same cell

Typically one row in the table contains the rate information for a single phone prefix (destination) such as 447 or 447527. Sometimes you may receive a file from the vendor where multiple prefixes are placed in the same table cell as shown in the screenshot below.

| Eile Edit View Insert Format Io | ols <u>D</u> ata <u>W</u> indo | w Help N | itro PDF | | | Type a question for help | - |
|---------------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------------|---|-------|
| 📁 🖬 🖪 🖪 🔍 🖤 🖏 🖇 🗅 | | | | Z 1 Ma | 4 100% | ▼ 🕡 📑 Arial 🔻 9 💌 🖪 🖌 | υ 🔳 Α |
| 1 1 1 2 0 1 5 0 8 h | | | | | ~ | | |
| | iliai) 🗘 Kepiy wid | r <u>u</u> nanges c | iju Kevie | | | | |
| A22 - RUK-M | obile Hutchison 3 | G | | | | | |
| A | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н |
| | | | | | | • | |
| Listing of STANDARD Rat | es with Mob | ile/City C | odes | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Destination | Time of Day | Effective | Curr | Rate Per Minute | Country Code | City/Mobile Codes | |
| U.K. | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.0054 | 44 | 44 | |
| U.KMobile Hutchison 3G | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.1066 | | 447400 447401 447402 447402 447533 447755 447575 447576 447577 44 17578 447586 447723 447727 447729 447735 447757 447787 447782 28 447630 447823 447823 447881 447864 447868 447865 447859 447861 447862 447863 447865 447868 447868 447868 4478677 447878 447868 447863 447868 447868 447868 447868 447898 44791 5,447316,447888 | |
| U.KMobile Orange 05 | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.1223 | | 447527 447529, 447529, 447529, 447539, 447539, 447559, 447559, 44759, 44759, 4 | |
| U.KMobile Others | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.1554 | 44 | 447 | |
| U.KMobile T-Mobile 05 | STD | 01/12/2009 | U5\$ | 0.0856 | | 44796, 447504, 447505, 447507, 447507, 447509, 447539, 447539, 447 508, 447530, 447504, 447504, 547507, 447530, 447524, 447539, 447 7, 447758, 447804, 447806, 447847, 447852, 447803, 447804, 447805, 447806, 447806, 447804, 7447813, 447830, 447831, 447892, 44 7089, 447806, 447801, 447812, 447813, 447830, 447831, 447892, 44 7089, 447806, 447801, 447812, 447853, 447804, 447814, 447892, 44788 54, 847859, 447806, 447801, 1447802, 447863, 447861, 447882, 447883, 447894, 447896, 447806, 447804, 1447862, 447863, 447881, 447882, 447883, 447894, 447896, 447806, 447804, 74878, 447863, 447861, 447882, 447883, 447894, 447896, 447806, 447804, 74878, 74883, 74883, 74883, 74883, 748844, 74884, 74884, 74884, 74884, 74884, 74884, 74884, 74884, 7 | |
| U.KNGN 0844 | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.4600 | 44 | 44843, 44844 | |
| U.KNGN 0845 | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.0488 | | 44845 | |
| U.KNan 0870 (BT Only) | STD | 01/12/2009 | US\$ | 0.2422 | 44 | 44870 | |

You can easily process such files – you just need to specify which character (e.g., comma (,), semicolon (;) or something else) will be used to separate the individual prefixes in the **Delimiter For Multiple Destinations** field. This way, during the upload, the system will treat each occurrence as if there is a separate row in the table for each prefix. In our case, it looks as if the file was parsed properly, so we can click **Next** and move on to the next step

Review Data Fields Definition

This is a very important step, since we need to identify where individual data elements (e.g. destination prefix or price) are located in the file, and map them to the attributes (data fields) for the rate. You can imagine what would happen if the system were to confuse them.

PortaBilling® applies some artificial intelligence, and usually guesses quite well where the specific columns are; but, obviously, you need to check whether the data fields have been assigned to the proper columns, and adjust them if necessary.

| Close 📲 | Objects | | | | | | | ▶Ø Logout |
|---------|------------------------------|-------------|--------|---|---|------------|---------------------------------|-----------|
| | t 2345≥≥ Tota | | on | | | 1-20 of 81 | Available Fields | |
| | Destination | Destination | Price | | | | Price Destination | * |
| | A | в | С | D | E | F | Destination Descrip | ntion 😑 |
| 1 | AFGHANISTAN | 93 | 0.24 | | | * | First Interval Next Interval | |
| 2 | ALBANIA | 355 | 0.18 | | | | First Price Next Price | |
| 3 | ALGERIA | 213 | 0.28 | | | | Payback Rate | - |
| 4 | ANDORRA | 376 | 0.12 | | | | Properties | |
| 5 | ANGOLA | 244 | 0.2119 | | | | Link With | |
| 6 | ANGUILLA | 1264 | 0.2204 | | | 8 | Format | |
| 7 | ANTIGUA/BARE | 1268 | 0.1359 | | | | | - |
| 8 | ARGENTINA | 54 | 0.0132 | | | | Default Value | |
| 9 | ARGENTINA BL | 5411 | 0.0052 | | | | Delault value | |
| 10 | ARGENTINA CI | 549 | 0.1333 | | | | Apply default value | |
| 11 | ARMENIA | 374 | 0.3092 | | | | Only if there is no | existin 🔻 |
| 12 | ARUBA | 297 | 0.092 | | | | Postprocessing Ru | ile |
| 13 | ARUBA CELLU | 29773 | 0.1575 | | | | | |
| 14 | ARUBA CELLU | 29774 | 0.1575 | | | . | | |
| • | III | | | | | Þ | | |
| Dener | 1 <u>2 3 4 5 ≥ ></u> Tota | 1. C | | | | 1-20 of 81 | | |

On the right you see the **Available Fields** select menu, which represents all the attributes of the rate record. You can drag and drop fields from here to the table headers in order to associate a particular data field with a column. A blue label will then remain at the top of the column, signaling that the values in this column (e.g. column A) will be used for the specified rate data field (e.g. **Destination**). Also, the data field in the list will be highlighted – this allows you to quickly see which data fields are already assigned.

You can also drag a label to a different column (thus associating the data field with a different column) or back to the **Available Fields** menu (the data field will then not receive any input values from the file).

The **Format** select menu allows you to adjust the way PortaBilling® interprets the values in the table cells, e.g. whether a leading 00 should be stripped off or considered part of the phone prefix, or whether a comma (,) or a dot (.) should be considered as a decimal separator for numbers.

Finally, you have the post-processing rule. Here you can write a miniprogram in Perl which will alter the original value, e.g. append or remove characters, increase or decrease numeric values. It can also perform advanced operations, e.g. look up the current exchange rate for the vendor's currency and convert the value into the currency you use.

Please see the *Configuration Examples for Cisco Gateways* chapter for examples of programming various post-processing rules.

What if the file does not contain a value for a certain data field?

This is another common situation: the carrier may not have included some important information (e.g. rounding intervals) in the file, or it could be that you simply need to assign the value based on your own decision (e.g. when uploading rates from carrier ABC, you will mark them as the Cheap route category). In this case, you may leave the data field unassigned to any column in the file, and simply type a value in the **Default Value** field.

| se 🗐 (| Objects | | | | | | | M Logou |
|--------|--------------|-------------|--------|---|---|------------|---|-----------|
| | w Data Fiel | | on | | | 1-20 of 81 | | |
| ages. | Destination | Destination | Price | | | | Available Fields Destination Descrip | tion 🔺 |
| | A | В | C | D | E | F | First Interval Next Interval | |
| 1 | AFGHANISTAN | 93 | 0.24 | | | • | First Price Next Price | = |
| 2 | ALBANIA | 355 | 0.18 | | | | Payback Rate | |
| 3 | ALGERIA | 213 | 0.28 | | | | Forbidden Hidden | - |
| 4 | ANDORRA | 376 | 0.12 | | | | Properties | |
| 5 | ANGOLA | 244 | 0.2119 | | | | Link With | |
| 6 | ANGUILLA | 1264 | 0.2204 | | | 8 | Format | • |
| 7 | ANTIGUA/BARE | 1268 | 0.1359 | | | | sec | • |
| 8 | ARGENTINA | 54 | 0.0132 | | | | Default Value | |
| 9 | ARGENTINA BL | 5411 | 0.0052 | | | | 60 | |
| 10 | ARGENTINA CI | 549 | 0.1333 | | | | Apply default value | |
| 11 | ARMENIA | 374 | 0.3092 | | | | Only if there is no | existin 🔻 |
| 12 | ARUBA | 297 | 0.092 | | | | Postprocessing Ru | le |
| 13 | ARUBA CELLU | 29773 | 0.1575 | | | | | |
| 14 | ARUBA CELLU | 29774 | 0.1575 | | | | | |
| • | | | | | | • | | |

What if you need to associate a single column with more than one data field?

For instance, the carrier only supports a single "rounding interval" rating parameter, and so they provide a single column only (column D, in our example). In PortaBilling®, however, you have **First Interval** and **Next Interval**. In this case, you will associate one data field with the column, and then click on the other data field and link it to the first one (select the first field name in the **Link With** menu).

| Revie | w Data Fiel | ds Definiti | on | | | | |
|----------|---------------------|-------------|--------|----------------|---|------------|--|
| Pages: 1 | 2 <u>345≥≥</u> Tota | l: 5 | | | | 1-20 of 81 | |
| 5 | Destination | Destination | Price | First Interval | | | Available Fields Price Destination |
| | A | в | С | D | E | F | Destination Description |
| 1 | AFGHANISTAN | 93 | 0.24 | 1 | | • | First Interval Next Interval |
| 2 | ALBANIA | 355 | 0.18 | 60 | | | First Price Next Price |
| 3 | ALGERIA | 213 | 0.28 | 1 | | | Payback Rate |
| 4 | ANDORRA | 376 | 0.12 | 60 | | | Properties |
| 5 | ANGOLA | 244 | 0.2119 | 1 | | | Link With |
| 6 | ANGUILLA | 1264 | 0.2204 | 1 | | = | _ |
| 7 | ANTIGUA/BARE | 1268 | 0.1359 | 1 | | | Price |
| 8 | ARGENTINA | 54 | 0.0132 | 1 | | | Destination Destination Descript |
| 9 | ARGENTINA BL | 5411 | 0.0052 | 1 | | | First Interval |
| 10 | ARGENTINA CI | 549 | 0.1333 | 1 | | | Apply default value |
| 11 | ARMENIA | 374 | 0.3092 | 1 | | | Only if there is no existin • |
| 12 | ARUBA | 297 | 0.092 | 1 | | | Postprocessing Rule |
| 13 | ARUBA CELLU | 29773 | 0.1575 | 1 | | | |
| 14 | ARUBA CELLU | 29774 | 0.1575 | 1 | | - | |
| • | 111 | | | | | • | |

What if you want to "preserve" some of the already assigned rate attributes?

Quite often you will initially upload all the rates from a given carrier with a default preference (e.g. 5) or route category (e.g. Default). After that, you start to fine-tune your routing based on quality reports, testing, customer feedback, and so on. Let's assume that, in this particular vendor's tariff, the preference for prefix 44 was changed to 8 (to reflect the fact that this is our preferred vendor for this destination) and the preference for prefix 447 was changed to 3 (here we actually decided to move the vendor to the bottom of the routing list for this particular destination). Now, if we were to simply upload the rate file, it would assign the default value (5) for preference to all the new rates, and our subsequent routing adjustments will be lost.

To prevent this, you may specify that the default value should only be applied if there are no existing rates for this prefix in the tariff. 60

60

| lose 🐔 | Objects | | e Upload foi | | | | | ▶Ø Logout | |
|--------|--------------|-------------|--------------|---|---|------------|--------------------------------------|-----------|------|
| | ew Data Fiel | | on | | | 1-20 of 81 | Available Fields | | |
| | Destination | Destination | Price | | | | First Price Next Price | | |
| | A | В | С | D | E | F | Payback Rate Forbidden | | |
| 1 | AFGHANISTAN | 93 | 0.24 | | | * | Hidden | = | |
| 2 | ALBANIA | 355 | 0.18 | | | | Route Category Preference | 1 | |
| 3 | ALGERIA | 213 | 0.28 | | | | Huntstop Discontinued | - | |
| 4 | ANDORRA | 376 | 0.12 | | | | Properties | | |
| 5 | ANGOLA | 244 | 0.2119 | | | | Link With | | |
| 6 | ANGUILLA | 1264 | 0.2204 | | | = | Format | • | |
| 7 | ANTIGUA/BARE | 1268 | 0.1359 | | | | 1234 | • | |
| 8 | ARGENTINA | 54 | 0.0132 | | | | Default Value | | |
| 9 | ARGENTINA BL | 5411 | 0.0052 | | | | 5 | | |
| 10 | ARGENTINA CI | 549 | 0.1333 | | | | Apply default value | | |
| 11 | ARMENIA | 374 | 0.3092 | | | | Only if there is no Only if there | | stif |
| 12 | ARUBA | 297 | 0.092 | | | | Always | | |
| 13 | ARUBA CELLU | 29773 | 0.1575 | | | | | | |
| 14 | ARUBA CELLU | 29774 | 0.1575 | | | + | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | Þ | | | |

Thus the parameter value from the existing rate will be copied into the new one, so that the new rate for 44 will retain preference 8, and the rate for 447 – preference 3.

Tip: In PortaBilling® you configure the rate information using two parameters: the price for the first interval (**First Price**) and the price for subsequent intervals (**Next Price**). Most of the wholesale carriers do the rating using only one parameter: price per minute. So when importing such a file into PortaBilling® you would need to assign the **First Price** data field to the column that contains the price and then link the **Next Price** to it. Since it is a very common operation, for your convenience the rate import wizard contains a special data field: **Price**. If this "virtual" data field is assigned to a column, then the value found there will be used for both **First Price** and **Next Price** rate parameters.

Ready to move forward?

In order to proceed, you must assign the **Destination** and **Price** data fields to columns in the file.

The **Destination Description** field is not required for the actual rate import, but it will be very useful later on if there are any new destinations created.

Tip: In order for the destination description to be *automatically* filled in it is needed to create a "**Destination Description**" column and fill in some descriptive information in the file before the upload procedure.

Click **Next** to proceed.

Review Rate Information

The rate import wizard will process the rate data according to the rules previously specified and present the results on the screen for review before storing them in the database.

| Reviev | v Rate Inf | ormation | | | | | | | | |
|--------|------------------|---------------------|-----------|-------------------|---------|---------|----------|-------|------|-----------|
| • | | Prefix Country De | scription | A B C D E F G H I | JKLMN | OPQRSI | | z | | |
| _ | ates with correc | | | | | | | | | |
| Pages: | 2345≥≥ | Total: 5 | | | | | | | | 1-20 of 8 |
| | Destination | Country | Status | Price | | Off-Per | ak Price | Inte | rval | Off-Pe |
| | Deconnector | Description | | First | Next | First | Next | First | Next | First |
| 1 | 93 | AFGHANISTAN | | 0.23000(-0.01000) | 0.24000 | 0.24000 | 0.24000 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| | | | • | 0.24000 | 0.24000 | 0.24000 | 0.24000 | 00 | 00 | |
| 2 | 355 | ALBANIA | | 0.18000 | 0.18000 | 0.18000 | 0.18000 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| 3 | 213 | ALGERIA | | 0.28000 | 0.28000 | 0.28000 | 0.28000 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| | 376 | | • | 0.13000(+0.01000) | | 0.12000 | 0.12000 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| 4 | 370 | ANDORRA | * | 0.12000 | 0.12000 | 0.12000 | 0.12000 | 60 | 60 | |
| 5 | 244 | ANGOLA | | 0.21190 | 0.21190 | 0.21190 | 0.21190 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| | | | | 0.21040(-0.01000) | | | | | | |
| 6 | 1264 | ANGUILLA | + | 0.22040 | 0.22040 | 0.22040 | 0.22040 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| 7 | 1268 | ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA | | 0.13590 | 0.13590 | 0.13590 | 0.13590 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| | | UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.03000(+0.00100) | | | | | | |
| 8 | 44207 | London | | 0.02900 | 0.02900 | 0.02900 | 0.02900 | 60 | 60 | 1 |
| | | LINITED VINGDOM | | | | | | | | ~ |

The **Status** column shows the comparison between the current rate and the new rate in the PortaBilling® file so you can quickly understand exactly how the rate will change. A red arrow indicates a price increase (this destination is more expensive) and a green arrow indicates a price decrease (making it cheaper to call that destination). In **Price** field you can also view the actual price differences.

You can edit the rate data right here (for instance, you negotiated a special last-minute rate change with the carrier or wish to fix a data error in the file) – just double-click on the specific cell in the table and enter a new value.

| Revie | ew Rate In | formation | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------|-------------------|---------|---------|----------|-------|-------|----------|--------|
| • | | Prefix Country | Descri | ption • A B C D E | FGHIJK | | QRSTUN | wxyz | | | |
| Sh Pages: | ow only rows with 1 Total: 1 | h data errors | | | | | | | | | 1-9 of |
| . agos | | Country | 0 | Price | | Off-Pe | ak Price | Inte | arval | Off-Peal | |
| | Destination | Description | Status | First | Next | First | Next | First | Next | First | Ne |
| 1 | 447 | UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.26300(+0.01000) | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 1 | 1 | 1 | ^ |
| | 447 | Mobile | * | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.20300 | 0.25300 | ' | 1 | 1 | |
| 2 | 4470020 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.35300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 30 | 6 | 1 | |
| 3 | 4470431 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 1 | 1 | 1 | |
| 4 | 447060 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 1 | 1 | 1 | |
| 5 | 4470740 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.25200 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 0.25300 | 30 | 6 | 1 | |
| 6 | 4470775 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 0.46000 | 30 | 6 | 1 | |
| 7 | 4471 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 30 | 6 | 1 | |
| 8 | 4472 | UNITED KINGDOM UNITED KINGDOM | | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 0.41029 | 30 | 6 | 1 | ~ |
| < | | | | | | | | | | | > |

As you can see in the screenshot, for the 447 destination, the price per minute has increased by 0.01. Also, the value of the **Preference** parameter of this rate is 3 (while most other rates have preference 5) – this is because there is an existing rate for this destination, and it is already assigned preference 3.

Click Next in order to proceed.

Managing New Prefixes

This screen only appears if the rate file contains any prefixes you haven't yet defined in your system and it allows you to add new prefixes quickly and efficiently. This process takes a very little time and reduces the chances for error.

| lose | 街 Objects | | | | | N∏ Log | jout 目 |
|--|--------------------|------------------------|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|--------------|--------|
| Cre | ate New | Destinations | 1 | | | | |
| | | Prefix | Country Description | A B C D E F G H I J K L M | | STILVW V V 7 | |
| | ide destinations w | ith assigned groups | Beschpion - | K D C D E I G II I J K E II | norųn | 3100 W X 12 | |
| Contract of Contra | | ith assigned countries | | | | | |
| Page | s: 1 Total: 1 | | | | | 1-10 of | 10 |
| | Destination | Country | Description | Destination Groups | | | |
| | Destination | oounny | | Other | _ | | |
| | 551692 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | - | | |
| | 553392 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | | - | | |
| | 551580 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | - | | |
| | 552286 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | - | | |
| | 559888 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Ð | - | | |
| | 57562957 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | ۲ | - | | |
| | 57591564 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | ۲ | - | | |
| | 57591562 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | ٠ | - | | |
| | 5759096 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | Ð | - | | |
| | 57562959 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | - | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Carriers frequently send rate files containing prefixes that have not yet been defined in your system. These prefixes must be added into the system in order for rates to be created for them – so the big questions are: 'how will this affect the routing and billing on your system in general?' and 'how will other carriers and customers be affected?'

When adding a new destination, extra parameters may be provided in addition to the actual prefix - see below.

Assigning the country

Each destination is associated with a country. For a new destination the association has to be made before it can be inserted into the database. It is a good idea to upload the default set of destinations provided with PortaBilling®, or some other set that contains, at the least, destinations for each country, e.g. United Kingdom – 44, Germany – 49, etc. Then PortaBilling® can correctly assign the country name to the majority of new prefixes. Thus you do not need to choose the country for *each* destination manually (e.g. if you try to upload a destination 33040, but there is already a more generic one 33 in the system and the country has been defined as France – the upload wizard will propose assigning the number 33040 to France as well). If required, a country for the new destination may be chosen from the drop-down list on the **Create New Destinations** page.

NOTE: This is a required step – the rate import cannot proceed until each of the new prefixes has been assigned to a country.

Sadly, both the US & Canada pose the biggest challenges, since they (plus a handful of other countries, like Bermuda) share the prefix 1. This makes it impossible to guess the country code just by looking at the phone number. For instance, 1204 is Manitoba, Canada and 1205 is Alabama,

US! In these cases you will need to manually assign country codes for these destinations. The good news is that new area codes for the US & Canada do not appear that often.

| = s 🛤 👬 🔁 🏞 | a R | ate Upload for T | ariff 'X-Telecom' | America/Vancouver | andrew | 12 н |
|-------------------|--|---|-----------------------------|-------------------------|----------|------|
| 🛞 Close 🕷 Objects | | | | | M Logout | |
| Create New | Prefix | | ▶ A B C D E F G H I J K L | M H O P Q R S T U V W X | ΥZ | |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 | 5 | | | | 1-1 of 1 | |
| Destination | Country | Description | Destination Groups Other | | | |
| 1205 | - | ALABAMA | + | | | |
| | TOGO TOKELAU TOKELAU TOKELAU TOKELAU TURENA TOKEN TURENA TURENA TURENA TURENA UGANDA UGANDA UGANDA UGANDA UGANDA UNITED STATES OF URUGUAY UZERKISTAN VANCAR CITY | ISLANDS ATES NOR OUTLYING ISLANDS | | | | |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 | VENEZUELA | | * | | 1-1 of 1 | |

In our example we will assign the 670 destination to the country East Timor.

| ₲ 🗉 | \$ 88 | * * > | 2 Q Ra | ate Upload for T | ariff 'X-Telecom' | 0 | 9 America/Vancouver | andrew | ? Help |
|-----|-------------------|-------------------|---|--|-----------------------------|------|---------------------|----------|--------|
| 8 0 | lose 🖣 | 🛙 Objects | | | | | | 💵 Logout | 🔳 Log |
| | ► Hie ▼ Hie | de destinations v | Destinations Prefix (with assigned groups with assigned countries | Country Description | ▶ A B C D E F G H I J K L M | ΝΟΡΟ | Q R S T U V W X Y | 7 Z | |
| | | | | | Destination Groups | | | | |
| | | Destination | Country | Description | Other | | | | |
| | | 670 | SOLOMON ISLANDS | TIMOR L'ESTE | • | - | | | |
| | | | SOMALIA SOUTH AFRICA | D SOUTH SANDWICH ISLANN MAYEN ISLANDS | D25 | | | | |
| | Pages | : 1 Total: 1 | | Back | Next | | | 1-1 of 1 | |

Including a destination into a destination group

Destination groups are invaluable for saving hours of time and for avoiding mistakes, since one can change the rate for a whole group with just a single click instead of modifying rates for many destinations (and many could literally mean thousands), manually. So for instance, when the new destination 4473 is being added – it may be a good idea to immediately include it into a destination group (within the destination group set that's associated with this tariff) – UK-Mobile in this case. Then the next time someone updates the UK-Mobile rate, the change will be applied to this prefix as well. See the screenshots below for the sequence of actions.

| ☆ = \$ 8 | | R | ate Upload for Ta | ariff 'X-Te | lecom' | | America/Vancouver | andrew | ? Hel |
|-------------|---------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|-----------------|--------------------------|--------|---|----------|-------|
| 🕨 🛞 Close 🐗 | 0bjects | | | | | | | N Logout | 🖬 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | Create New | Destinations | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | ▶ 44 | Prefix | Country Description | ABCDEF | G H I J K L M N O | PQRST | г и | | |
| | Hide destinations v | | | | | | | | |
| | Hide destinations v | vith assigned countries | | | | | | | |
| | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | 1 | | | | | 1-1 of 1 | | |
| | Destination | Country | Description | Desti Tariff | nation Groups Other | | | | |
| | 4473 | UNITED KINGI - | UK MOBILE VODAFONE | • | • | • | | | |
| | 4475 | UNITED KINGI + | OR MOBILE VODAI ONE | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - E | | | | | |
| | | | | • | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | | | | | 1-1 of 1 | | |
| | 5 | | Back | Next | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 🙆 🎟 S 😫 | | R | ate Upload for Ta | ariff 'X-Te | lecom' | | | | |
| 🕨 🛞 Close 🧕 | 🛙 Objects | | | | | | | N Logout | 🔳 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | Create New | Destinations | | | | | | | |
| | create new | Destinations | | 1 | | Assign | Destination Group | | × |
| | ▶ 44 | Prefix | Country Description | ABCDEF | Search | | Name | Prefix | |
| | Hide destinations v | | | | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | | 1-3 of | 3 |
| | Hide destinations v | vith assigned countries | | | Group | | Prefixes | | ÷ [] |
| | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | | | Brasil-Mobile | | Frenxes | | |
| | Destination | Country | Description | Dest | Colombia | | | | |
| | | | | Tariff | UK-Mobile | | | | |
| | 4473 | UNITED KINGI - | UK MOBILE VODAFONE | • | | | | | |
| | | | | | 1 - 1 - 1 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | 1 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | | 1-3 of | 3 |
| | | | | | | | | | _ |
| | Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | Dent | Mart | | | | Clo | se |
| | | | Back | Next | | _ | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Porta Switch

| ☆ ፡፡ \$ \$\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ | Rate Upload for Ta | ariff 'X-Tele | com' | ④ America | /Vancouver | andrew | 🛛 Help | | | | | |
|---|---|--------------------|----------|-----------|------------|-----------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
| ► Sclose 4 Objects | | | | | | ND Logout | 🛯 Log | | | | | |
| Create New Destin | ations | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ▶ 44 | Prefix Country Description | ABCDEFGI | тэксмвоі | PQRSTUVWX | Y Z | | | | | | | |
| | Hide destinations with assigned groups Hide destinations with assigned countries | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 | | | | | 1-1 of 1 | | | | | | | |
| Destination Cou | ntry Description | Destination Groups | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Tariff | Other | | | | | | | | | |
| 4473 UNITED | KINGI - UK MOBILE VODAFONE | UK-Mobile | ۲ | — | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 | Back | Next | | | 1-1 of 1 | | | | | | | |

In some cases it may also be beneficial to include this destination into groups that are in other destination group sets. In our example, the new destination 4473 (UK-Mobile-Vodafone) is detected while uploading rates into the tariff of carrier X-Telecom (which has the X-Telecom destination group set associated with it). You may want to immediately add it into the UK-Mobile destination group in the Retail-Customers destination group set. This way the next time your colleague is generating rates to be applied to your customers – this prefix will appear and he can apply the special pricing for it.

| ☆ # \$ \$\$ (| ¥ 20 | • • • | R | ate Upload for Ta | riff 'X-Tele | com' | | ③ America/Vano | ouver andrev | / 🛛 Help |
|---------------|----------------|-------------------------|---|--------------------|--------------|-----------|-----------|----------------|--------------|----------|
| 🕨 🛞 Close 🐗 | Objects | | | | | | | | M Logo | ut 目 Log |
| | ► 44 | 4 ide destinations v | Destinations Prefix (with assigned groups with assigned countries | | ABCDEFG | HIJKLMN(|) P Q R S | TUVWXYZ | | |
| | E.m. | s: 1 Total: 1 | nur assignet countries | | | | | 1 | 1 of 1 | |
| | | | - | | Destinati | on Groups | | | | |
| | | Destination | Country | Description | Tariff | Other | | | | |
| | | 4473 | UNITED KINGI - | UK MOBILE VODAFONE | UK-Mobile | • | - | | | |
| | Pages | s: 1 Total: 1 | | Back | Next | | | 1 | -1 of 1 | |
| | | | | | • | . | | | | |

Rate Import

Porta 🗹 Switch

| Image destinations with assigned countries Pages: 1 Total: 1 Image destinations with assigned countries Image destinations Image destinations <t< th=""><th>interacte New Destinations 44 Prefix indice destinations with assigned groups indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 intermet Assia intermet Prefixes intermet Intermet Aprics East Africa intermet Intermet Aprics Intermet Access intermet Intermet Access intermet Intermet Access intermet ViceCoNNET X.Telecorn UK-Mobile Retail WiceControl intermet Intermet Aprics Intermet Access intermet ViceCoNNET X.Telecorn UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile</th></t<> | interacte New Destinations 44 Prefix indice destinations with assigned groups indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 indice destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 intermet Assia intermet Prefixes intermet Intermet Aprics East Africa intermet Intermet Aprics Intermet Access intermet Intermet Access intermet Intermet Access intermet ViceCoNNET X.Telecorn UK-Mobile Retail WiceControl intermet Intermet Aprics Intermet Access intermet ViceCoNNET X.Telecorn UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile |
|--|--|
| +44 Peters Country Description Name Peters + Hide destinations with assigned countries Pages: 1 Total: 1 1:13 - Destination Country Description Retail Description - Velocom Brasil Mobile Retail Description - Velocom Colombia 255, 258, 260, 261 - Velocom Colombia 263 - Velocom Velocom Velocom - Velocom | 44 Prefix Country Description 14 Hede destinations with assigned groups 14 Hede destinations with assigned countries gges: 1 Total: 1 1 Destination 2 Country Destination Country Description A B C D E F G H I J K L M HO P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Heid estinations with assigned groups Heid estinations with assigned groups <t< th=""></t<> |
| +44 Peters Country Description Name Peters + Hide destinations with assigned countries Pages: 1 Total: 1 1:13 - Destination Country Description Retail Description - Velocom Brasil Mobile Retail Description - Velocom Colombia 255, 258, 260, 261 - Velocom Colombia 263 - Velocom Velocom Velocom - Velocom | 44 Prefix Country Description 14 Hede destinations with assigned groups 14 Hede destinations with assigned countries gges: 1 Total: 1 1 Destination 2 Country Destination Country Description A B C D E F G H I J K L M HO P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Heid estinations with assigned groups Heid estinations with assigned groups <t< td=""></t<> |
| + 44 Prefix County Description A Holde destinations with assigned groups Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Group Set Group Description A Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Group Set Group Description A Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Group Set Total: 1 County Description Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Group Set Total: 1 Total: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Group Set Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Operator County Description Wit MOBILE VODAFONE Pages: 1 Total: 1 255, 258, 260, 265 Pages, 258, 258, 260, 265 Pages, 258, 258, 260, 265 Pages: 1 Total: 1 255, 258, 260, 265 Pages, 256, 2759, 297, 297 Pages, 256, 2759, 297, 297 Pages, 256, 258, 260, 265 Pages, 200, 265 Page | 44 Prefix Country Description A rest Hide destinations with assigned goups File destinations with assigned countries Prefixes ges: 1 Total: 1 1:3 of 13 Group Set Group Set Group Set Destination Country Description 4473 UNITED KINGI V UK MOBILE VODAFONE Retail Brask-Mobile X:Telecorn Colombia Atras 2976, 29 |
| Hide destinations with assigned groups Hide destinations with assigned countries Pages: 1 Total: 1 Oroup Set: Country Destination Country Destination Country Destination Country Destination Country Destination Country UK MOBILE VODAFONE Aptics Liternet Aptics Internet Aptics Internet Aptics Internet Aptics Internet Aptics Internet Aptics UK Mobile Notth Ampted US&Canada Nott Nott Nott Nott Nott Nott Nott Nott Nott Retail UK Mobile Nott Nott Nott N | I Total: 1 1:13 of 13 Hole destinations with assigned countries Prefexes ges: 1 Total: 1 Obstination Country Destination Country Outry Description I 4473 UNITED KINGI VIK MOBILE VODAFONE I 4473 UNITED KINGI VIK MOBILE VODAFONE I 1 Total: 1 I Total: 1 Internet Artics East Africa 265, 258, 260, 283, 2 Internet Internet Aptics East Africa 265, 258, 260, 283, 2 Internet Internet Aptics Internet |
| Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Country Image: 2 Country< | International countries ages: 1 Total: 1 Obstination Country Description A4473 UNITED KINGI * UK MOBILE VODAFONE Aptics Fetal Brasi-Mobile Aptics Country Description Aptics Country UK MOBILE VODAFONE Aptics Description Aptics Description Aptics North Arryndra US & Canada 1201, 1202, 120 |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 Pages: 1 Pages: 1 Total: 1 Pages: 1 | ages: 1 Total: 1 TesSurflower Asia 29750, 29750, 29775 Destination Country Description TesSurflower Asia 29750, 29750, 29775 X-Telecom Brasil-Mobile Brasil-Mobile Brasil-Mobile Retail Brasil-Mobile 4473 UNTED KINGI * UK MOBILE VODAFONE Internet Internet Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 283, 2 Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile UK-Mobile UK-Mobile Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet Aptics Total: 1 US-R Canada 1201, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12021, 1202, 12022, 12021, 12021, 12021, 12 |
| Attain Country Description Attain Brasil-Mobile Retail Brasil-Mobile Attain Bra | N:Telecom Brasi-Mobile 4473 UNTED KINGI UK MOBILE VODAFONE Retal 4473 UNTED KINGI UK MOBILE VODAFONE Retal Aptics East Africa 255,259,260,263,2 Aptics East Africa 255,259,260,263,2 Aptics East Africa 255,259,260,263,2 Aptics Internet Internet Aptics Internet Internet Aptics Internet Internet Aptics Internet VOICEONNET X:Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET Aptics Internet VOICEONNET X:Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET Aptics Zimbabwe 283 Aptics Zimbabwe |
| Petal Brasil-Mobile Address East Africa 255, 258, 260, 261 Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 261 Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 261 Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TOperator TTLocal VOICEONNET Toperator TTLocal VOICEONNET Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobil | Destination Country Description Retail Brasi-Mobile 4473 UNITED KINGI VIK MOBILE VODAFONE K.Telecom Colombia Aptics Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TTOperator TTOcal VOICEONNET TTOcerator TUCcal VOICEONNET Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TTOPerator TTLocal VOICEONNET Aptics Zimbabwe 263 Aptics Zimbabwe 263 Aptics Total: 1 1-13 of 13 Clear Aptics Total: 1 1-13 of 13 Clear Aptics Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © America/Access Profix Aptics Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © America/Access Profix Aptics Internet Access Internet Access Profix Aptics Zimbabwe 283 Clear Profix Aptics Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © America/Acceuve Profix Internet Access Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © America/Acceuve Profix Inteatinationswith assigned countries Profix |
| Retail Brasili Mobile X-Telecon Colombia Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 260, 260, 100 Internet Internet Aptics UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile North Amplea US & Canada Apper: 1 Pages: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Image: 1 Image: 1 Image: 1 <t< td=""><td>Hetal Brask Mobile Hetal Brask Mobile Aptics Colombia Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 263, 26 Internet Internet Internet Access Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TOperator TLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET Aptics US&Canada 1201, 1202, 1202, 1202, 1 Aptics US&Canada 1201, 1202, 1202, 1202, 1 Aptics US&Canada 263 Total: 1 1:1 of 13 Cose Medit Perfix Netal Cose Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' Amencal/Maccound 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Imadetination swith assigned counties</td></t<> | Hetal Brask Mobile Hetal Brask Mobile Aptics Colombia Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 263, 26 Internet Internet Internet Access Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TOperator TLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile VOICEONNET Aptics US&Canada 1201, 1202, 1202, 1202, 1 Aptics US&Canada 1201, 1202, 1202, 1202, 1 Aptics US&Canada 263 Total: 1 1:1 of 13 Cose Medit Perfix Netal Cose Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' Amencal/Maccound 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 1:1 of 1 1:1 of 1 Imadetination swith assigned counties |
| Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 263 Internet Internet Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TOperator TLiccal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile North Amplea US & Canada Aptics Zimbabwe 283 Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Create New Destinations | Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 263, 2 Internet Internet Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS Thermet Internet Internet Access NETACCESS Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' O Americal Valcouver Access Res Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' O Americal Valcouver Access Res I Total: 1 Internet Internet Access Res Internet Access Res Internet Access Res I Total: 1 Internet Internet Internet Access Internet Acce |
| Aptics East Africa 255, 258, 260, 263 Internet Internet Aptics Internet Access INETACCESS Toperator TrLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile NUK-MOBILE NUK-MO | Aptics East Africa 265, 258, 260, 263, 2 Internet Internet Internet VOICEONNET TTOperator TTLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail Reta |
| Internet Internet Aptics Internet Access Internet Aptics TOperator TILocal VOICEONNET X.Telecom UK-Mobile Retai UK-Mobile North Amorta US & Canada Aptics Zimbabwe 283 Pages: 1 Total: 1 Pages: 1 Total: 1 Pages: 1 Total: 1 Create New Destinations | <pre>internet internet Aptics NETACCESS TOperator TiLocal VOICEONNET Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TOperator TiLocal VOICEONNET X.Telecom UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail</pre> |
| Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TTOperator TTLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile North Angela US & Canada 1201, 1202, 1202 Aptics US & Canada 263 Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Pages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' @ America/Varcover Objects Create New Destinations | Aptics Internet Access NETACCESS TTOperator TTLocal VOICEONNET Xrelecom UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile North Angela US & Canada 1201, 1202, 12021, 12 Aptics US & Canada 1201, 1202, 12021, 12021, 120 |
| Pages: 1 Totat: 1 Pages: 1 Tot | TTOperator TTLocal VOICEONNET X-Telecom UK-Mobile Retail UK-Mobile North Angels US & Canada 1201, 1202, 12021, 12 Aptics US&Canada 283 Trotal: 1 1 1:1 1:1 1:13 of 13 ages: 1 Total: 1 1:1 1:13 of 13 request 1 Total: 1 1:13 of 13 Retail US&Canada 283 Arges 2 Zimbabwe 283 Total: 1 1:1 1:13 of 13 Close Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' America/Valocoved 28 rects 1 Total: 1 1:10 0:10 0:000 Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' America/Valocoved 28 Total: 1 1:10 0:000 0:000 Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' America/Valocoved 28 File destinations with assigned groups Hide destination Country Description Destination Groups I 1:1 of 1 Destination Country UK-Mobile Country I 4473 UNITED KINGI UK MOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Country I 4473 UNITED KINGI VK MOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Country I A A I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I |
| Vic-Mobile Retai Uic-Mobile North Amplita US & Canada Applica US & Canada Applica Zimbabwe 263 | X. Telecom UK-Mobile Retai UK-Mobile Retai UK-Mobile Retai UK-Mobile Retai US&Canada Actor US&Canada |
| Retail UK-Mobile North Amptita US & Canada Aprice US&Canada Aprice Zimbabwe 263 eges: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 Total: 1 Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' C America/Vancouver Objects Create New Destinations | Retail UK-Mobile North Amarka US & Canada North Amarka US & Canada Arasa Zimbabwe 263 ages: 1 Total: 1 1 1-13 of 13 close ages: 1 Total: 1 1 1-13 of 13 close eds Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © North Assigned groups Hide destinations with assigned groups Hide destination Country Descrip |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 US & Canada 1201, 1202, 1202 Aprices US&Canada 203 Pages: 1 Total: 1 US & Canada 203 Pages: 1 Total: | North Angela US & Canada 1201, 1202, 12021, 11 Aptics US & Canada 283 ages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 of 13 ages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 of 13 exts Image: 1 Total: 1 1-13 of 13 recate New Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' Americal/varcource Image: 1 recate North Assigned groups Image: 1 Total: 1 Image: 1 1-1 of 1 Inde destinations with assigned groups Image: 1 Total: 1 1-1 of 1 Image: Destination Groups Image: 1 1-1 of 1 Image: Destination Groups Image: 1 1-1 of 1 Image: Destination Groups Image: 1 1-1 of 1 Image: Image: Image: 1 Image: 1 Image: Image: Image: 1 Image: 1 Image: Image: 1 Image: 1 |
| Peges: 1 Total 1 Peges: | Aptice US&Canada Aptice US&Ca |
| Peges: 1 Total: 1 Peges: 1 Total: 1 Peges: 1 Total: 1 Create New Destinations | App 3 Zimbabwe 283 ages: 1 Total: 1 1-13 of 13 ages: 1 Total: 1 Close Ages: 1 Total: 1 Close Ages: 1 Total: 1 Close Age: 1 Total: 1 Close Age: 1 Total: 1 Close Age: 2 Age: 2 Close Age: 1 Total: 1 Close Age: 2 Age: 2 Close Age: 1 Total: 1 Close Destination with assigned goups Hide destinations with assigned countries Close age: 1 Total: 1 1-1 of 1 Close Destination Country Description Tartific Other Image: 1 Total: 1 1-1 of 1 Close Image: 1 Total: 1 1-1 of 1 Close Image: 1 Close Close Close Image: 1 Close Close Close |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 | ages: 1 Total: 1 Tota |
| Pages: 1 Total: 1 Pages: 1 Tot | ages: 1 Total: 1 |
| Create New Destinations | Integet and the second seco |
| | 44 Prefix Country Description A B C D E F G H I J K L M H O P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Hole destinations with assigned countries Hild destinations with assigned countries Interview ges: 1 Total: 1-1 of 1 Destination Country Description Tariff Other Tariff Other 4473 UNK HOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Retail |
| | 44 Prefix Country Description A B C D E F G H I J K L M H O P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Hole destinations with assigned countries Hild destinations with assigned countries Interview ges: 1 Total: 1-1 of 1 Destination Country Description Tariff Other Tariff Other 4473 UNK HOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Retail |
| | Hide destinations with assigned groups Hide destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 Destination Country Description Country Description Tarrit Cother Retail Country UK MOBILE VODAFONE Country Coun |
| | Hide destinations with assigned groups Hide destinations with assigned countries ages: 1 Total: 1 Destination Country Description Automatical Structure Tarrif Cother Country UK MOBILE VODAFONE UK Mobile Country Coun |
| | Ide destinations with assigned countries I Total: I 1-1 of 1 Destination Groups 1-1 of 1 Destination Country Description Destination Groups Destination Country Description Destination Groups Image: Image |
| Hide destinations with assigned goops | ages: 1 Total: 1 1-1 of 1 Destination Country Description Destination Groups Tariff Other UNITED KINGI ~ UK MOBILE VODAFONE BUK-Mobile |
| | Destination Country Description Destination Groups 1 4473 UNITED KINGI ~ UK MOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Retail G UK-Mobile - |
| Destination Groups | Destination Country Description Tariff Other 4473 UNITED KINGI ~ UK MOBILE VODAFONE B UK-Mobile Retail B UK-Mobile E |
| | 4473 UNITED KINGI ▼ UK MOBILE VODAFONE UK Mobile GUK-Mobile |
| | 4473 UNITED KINGI V UK MOBILE VODAFONE UK-Mobile |
| 4473 UNITED KINGI VK MOBILE VODAFONE UK-Mobile | • |
| | |

Multiple similar destinations

In our example you may notice that there are several destinations (55123, 55124, 55125, etc.) which look very similar. That's because they belong to the same country (Brazil) and they are in the same destination group (Brazil-Mobile).

| | - 1 | | | | | | |
|--|--------------------|------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------|-------|--------------|----|
| Cre | ate New | Destinations | | | | | |
| | | Prefix | Country Description | A B C D E F G H I J K L M | | | |
| | ide destinations w | ith assigned groups | Country Description | ABCDEFGHIJKLM | порок | 5107 W X Y Z | |
| Concession of Co | | ith assigned countries | | | | | |
| Pages | : 1 Total: 1 | | | | | 1-10 of | 10 |
| | Destination | Country | Description | Destination Groups | _ | | |
| | | | | Other | | | |
| | 551692 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | - | | |
| | 553392 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Ð | - | | |
| | 551580 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | - | | |
| | 552286 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | E | - | | |
| | 559888 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | æ | Ξ | | |
| | 57562957 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | Ð | - | | |
| | 57591564 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | Ð | - | | |
| | 57591562 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | - | | |
| | 5759096 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | - | | |
| | 57562959 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | ۲ | Ξ | | |
| | | | | | | | |

In order to save time and avoid assigning parameters to each one of them manually, you can do the following: assign the required parameters to just one of them, select the others using the checkbox on the left side of each row and then move the mouse over to the rows that don't have parameters assigned. A popup menu will appear – choose **Apply to Selected** and this will automatically change all the rows.

Please see how the change is applied to several prefixes for Brazil below.

| ۵ | | 8 🚯 🔛 1 | | R | ate Upload for Tai | riff 'X-Telec | om' | | Interica/Vancouver | andrew | ? Help |
|---|---------|-----------|-------------------|---|--------------------|-----------------|-------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 8 Close | 🐮 Objects | | | | | | | | N Logout | Log |
| | | ► Hi | de destinations w | Destinations Prefix ith assigned groups ith assigned countries | | A B C D E F G H | IJKLMNO | PQRSTU | V W X Y Z | | |
| | | Pages | 1 Total: 1 | | | | | | 1-12 of 12 | | |
| | | | Destination | Country | Description | | on Groups | | | | |
| | | | | | | Tariff | Other | _ | | | |
| | | | 551692 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | | | | |
| | | | 553392 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | • | • | Apply to sele Reset select | | | |
| | | v | 551580 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | æ | | - | | | |
| | | | 552286 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | E | E | - | | | |
| | | v | 559888 | BRAZIL - | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Ð | Ð | - | | | |
| | | | 57562957 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | Ŧ | - | | | |
| | | | 57591564 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | ٠ | - | - | | |
| | | | 57591562 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | • | - | | | |
| | | | 5759096 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | æ | | | | |
| | | | 57562959 | COLOMBIA - | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | | - | • | | |
| | | Pages | : 1 Total: 1 | | Back | Next | | | 1-12 of 12 | | |

Porta 🌠 Switch

| a ⊞ ► ⊗ | S 🕄 🗼 S Close < Obje | | | K | ate Upload for Tai | rim X-Telec | om | | America/Vancouver | andrew MD Logout | HelpLog |
|------------|-------------------------|-------|------------------------------|---|---------------------|---------------|-------------------------|------|-------------------|------------------|------------------------------------|
| | с | rea | te New | Destinations | | | | | | | |
| | • | | | Prefix | Country Description | ABCDEFGH | IJKLMNO | PQRS | тичжхчг | | |
| | | | | th assigned groups th assigned countries | | | | | | | |
| | Pi | | Total: 1 | th assigned countries | | | | | 1-12 of 12 | | |
| | | - | | | | Destinati | on Groups | | | | |
| | | | Destination | Country | Description | Tariff | Other | | | | |
| | | | 551692 | BRAZIL | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | Ξ | Â | | |
| | | | 553392 | BRAZIL | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | - | | | |
| | | | 551580 | BRAZIL | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | Ξ | E | | |
| | | | 552286 | BRAZIL | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | | | | |
| | | | 559888 | BRAZIL • | BRAZIL CELLULAR | Brasil-Mobile | Retail Brasil-Mobile | | | | |
| | | | 57562957 | COLOMBIA 🔻 | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | • | • | - | | | |
| | | 111 | 57591564 | | COLOMBIA CARTAGENA | TRE | T#I | | - | | |
| | P | ages: | 1 Total: 1 | | Back | Next | | | 1-12 of 12 | | |



Tip: You can filter the list of new destinations by country or hide the destinations that have already been assigned a country or destination group. For this action, use the **Select All** button in conjunction with **Apply To Selected** to quickly apply settings to hundreds of destinations.

If I add a new destination while uploading rates for carrier ABC will it affect my other carriers?

Customers who are used to old-style routing systems are very concerned about adding new prefixes, since on many of those, a carrier with a longer prefixes in their tariff would all of a sudden get priority routing (although it is not the cheapest or the one with better quality). Attempts to "harmonize" the prefixes (to ensure that all carriers use the same prefix set) require lots of manual labor and are Sisyphean in scope: the moment you finish changing the prefixes and things are finally looking good, one of the carriers sends you an updated prefix list and you have to start the task all over again.

This is not the case with PortaBilling®, which uses a true real-time routing engine giving each carrier their own set of prefixes for the tariff. When the routing is calculated, available routes are compared based on cost, preference and route category – never on the prefix length. So if you upload the rate for 4471 for carrier A (and other carriers only have prefixes 44 and 447) – when a routing for a call to 4471234567 is computed, the 4471 rate will be compared by price and preference with the rates for 44 or 447 from other carriers (who don't have the 4471 prefix). Consequently, the system always produces a correct routing and you don't have to worry about adding new prefixes that are only used by a few carriers.

I do not want to add a destination right now, what do I do?

You can delete the destination from the list of destinations that will be automatically created during the import by using the \Box delete button. Note that in this case, the rate for this destination will not be imported

(since there is no destination to associate it with). To undo the delete destination action, click the 🛨 button, respectively.

Summary

On the **Summary page**, you will see an overview of information about the number of rate records to be processed. You can also specify a name under which the current import settings will be saved as a template. Later you can re-use them when uploading rates into this or other tariffs.

| ۵ | II \$ \$\$ # | P | | 1 | Rate Upload for Tariff 'X-Telecom' © America/Vancouver | andrew | ? Help |
|---|--------------|----------|---|---------------------------|--|----------|--------|
| • | 🛞 Close 🕷 0 | ojects | | | | M Logout | 🖬 Log |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | s | Summary | | | |
| | | | | itatistics ile name: | rates2.csv | | |
| | | | | otal rates: | 84 | | |
| | | | | lew destinations covered: | 79 | | |
| | | | N | lew destinations created: | 12 | | |
| | | | | ave as template | x-telecom | | |
| | | | S | end notification to | rates@mytelecom.com | | |
| | | | | | Back Start Import | | |

You may specify who should receive a report about the rates being uploaded, and then click **Start Import** to launch the rate import process. The report will contain following information:

- Total rates processed the total number of rates in the imported file
- Total rates created the total number of rates created including the newly created rates (the rates which were not present in the tariff prior to the import) and the overwritten ones
- Old rates overridden reflects the total number of rates, which were updated (i.e. the previous rates were replaced by the new ones for some destination)
- Skipped (due to errors) the number of rates that contained errors (e.g. a typo in the price column) and therefore were not added to the tariff. The information about the occurred errors you can see in the e-mail with the tariff upload report
- Skipped (duplicates) the number of skipped duplicate rates. It means that if some rates (rate parameters) in the uploaded file were identical with the ones already present in the tariff, the system skipped the duplicates i.e. no extra (excess) rate were inserted into the tariff
- Rates for destinations, previously absent in this tariff, created the number of rates created for destinations which were not in the tariff prior to the import
- Destinations, previously absent in the system, created the number of new destinations created in the system (billing environment)

In the attached file you can see the detailed information about the result of the rate upload procedure in order to quickly understand exactly how the existent rates were changed. You can also see information about new rates added if there are any. See the example of the file on the screenshot below:

| N | licrosoft Exce | el - Tariff_Upload_Rej | oort.xls | | | | | |
|----------|-------------------|---------------------------|---|------------------|-------------|------------|----------|----------|
| : 🛛 | <u>Eile E</u> dit | <u>View</u> Insert Format | . <u>T</u> ools <u>D</u> ata <u>W</u> ind | low <u>H</u> elp | | | | |
| 1 | 🖻 🗖 🖪 | 1 🗃 🖪 🗳 🛍 1 | 🐰 🗈 🖺 • 🖋 🛛 🤊 | - (°I - § | Σ. | | 4 100% | - 👩 🗌 |
| · 💷 | B5 | |) KINGDOM | | 29 - | | -0 | |
| _ | | | | | _ | _ | - | |
| | A | В | C | D | E | F | G | H |
| 1 | Destination | Country | Description | First Price | Change | Next Price | Change | Status |
| 2 | 4470000 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.25300 | 0.00000 | 0.25100 | -0.00200 | decrease |
| 3 | 4470020 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.25300 | 0.00100 | 0.25300 | 0.00000 | |
| 4 | 4470431 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.46000 | 0.00000 | 0.46000 | -0.01000 | decrease |
| 5 | 447060 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.25300 | 0.00100 | 0.25300 | 0.00000 | |
| 6 | 4470740 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.25300 | 0.00000 | 0.25200 | -0.00100 | decrease |
| 7 | 4470775 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.47000 | 0.01000 | 0.46000 | 0.00000 | increase |
| 8 | 4471 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.42029 | 0.01000 | 0.41029 | 0.00000 | increase |
| 9 | 4472 | UNITED KINGDOM | UNITED KINGDOM | 0.41029 | 0.00000 | 0.41029 | 0.00000 | |
| 10 | 44551 | UNITED KINGDOM | Mobile | 0.32000 | 0.00000 | 0.32000 | 0.00000 | new rate |
| 11 | 44552 | UNITED KINGDOM | Mobile | 0.33000 | 0.00000 | 0.33000 | 0.00000 | new rate |
| 12 | | | | | | | | |



4. Wholesale Termination via a Gateway

Wholesale voice is a growth market, with service providers building new capacities and launching new services. The primary wholesale service is long-distance transport and aggregation, with the key advantage being that country-specific features and domestic calling regulations are not required. The principal beneficiaries are developing countries, where, in many cases, the quality of VoIP is superior to that of traditional PSTN services.

Typical Business Case

Central to the delivery of wholesale voice services are voice points-ofpresence (POPs), which are interconnected to other service providers. The Minutes Aggregation and Resale service (including ASP Termination) allows wholesale network providers to collect traffic from multiple originating providers, then aggregate and deliver it to the termination providers they select.



The provider in this scenario is the owner of termination node (POP) gw-example. This is a typical example of a VoIP network where customers pay the provider to terminate traffic at point (An), while the provider himself pays the vendor for traffic at point (B). The provider makes his profit on the difference between:

- the tariff he charges his customer (An), and
- the tariff he is being charged by the vendor (B).

The following configuration assumes that the service is provided using only PortaBilling® and a termination gateway. Please consult the *Setting up a Wholesale Traffic Exchange* chapter for an example of advanced wholesale VoIP services using PortaSIP®.

Setting up Your Network Components

Configuring Gateway

Obtain the remote authentication script

The default Cisco remote IP authentication application (app_remote_ip_autneticate.2.0.0.tcl) is provided free of charge to all users with a valid Cisco support contract (CCO). Please note that this script does not support the extra features available in PortaOne's **Advanced Remote Authenticate** script, such as:

- Ability to perform authentication by tech-prefix, ANI, DNIS, fixed string or SIP username, in addition to just an IP address
- Ability to translate the authentication ID in the script before sending it to RADIUS (e.g. remove the last part of the IP address after the dot)
- Ability to perform authorization (as opposed to only performing authentication)
- Ability to forward calls to an account's redirect number defined in the billing
- Using an authentication method different than the default (so that authentication requests from this script may go to a different RADIUS server)

You may obtain the **Advanced Remote Authenticate** script by contacting PortaOne sales team.

Place the authentication script on your TFTP server. For your convenience, the TFTP server is already pre-configured in the /tftpboot directory on the PortaBilling® slave server.

1. Basic router configuration

It is highly recommended to use the latest telephony IOS and DSP firmware, and that the hostname be the same as the h323-id.

```
hostname <h323_id>
ip domain name <default domain>
```

NOTE: VSA h323-gw-id="hostname.domain"

2. NTP

NOTE: It is very important to have reliable time services.

ntp server <name/IP>



ntp server <name/IP>
ntp master 5
clock timezone <your time zone> 1
clock summer-time <your summer time zone> recurring <your rules>

NOTE: It is important that you only use well-known time zone abbreviations which are supported by the billing engine. If unsure, use the UTC time zone.

3. AAA

```
aaa new-model
aaa authentication login h323 group radius
aaa authorization exec h323 group radius
aaa accounting connection h323 stop-only group radius
```

4. VoIP interface

```
interface <your interface to the world>
h323-gateway voip interface
h323-gateway voip id <gatekeeper id> ipaddr <IP> <port>
h323-gateway voip h323-id <h323_id>
```

NOTE: If you want to use a virtual interface then add the line:

h323-gateway voip bind srcaddr <IP>

5. Enable gateway functionality

gateway

6. Enable gateway accounting

For older IOS versions: gw-accounting h323 vsa For newer IOS versions (12.2T or 12.3): gw-accounting aaa acct-template callhistory-detail

NOTE: VSA does not work for all platforms.

7. Radius

IMPORTANT NOTE: Ports 1645 / 1646 are the traditional Radius ports used by many vendors without obtaining an official IANA assignment. The official assignment is now ports 1812 / 1813, and users are encouraged to migrate to these new ports when possible.

Cisco notes:

- "radius-server" commands will be available only after issuing "aaa new-model" command.
- UDP port for RADIUS accounting server default is 1646 (see note above)
- UDP port for RADIUS authentication server default is 1645 (see note above)

Keep in mind:

- Default ports for Cisco are 1645 / 1646
- Defaults in /etc/ services are 1812 / 1813

```
radius-server host <name / IP> auth-port 1812 acct-port 1813
radius-server key <key>
radius-server vsa send accounting
radius-server vsa send authentication
```

8. Voice-card

9. Controller

10. Voice-port

Depends on your hardware configuration

11. Call application voice & dial-peers

```
call application voice remote_ip ftp://.../app_remote_authenticate.tcl
call application voice remote_ip authenticate-by ip
call application voice remote_ip authorize yes
!
dial-peer voice 10 pots
destination-pattern .
port 0:D
!
dial-peer voice 11 voip
application remote_ip
incoming called-number .
```
Checklist

Print the following page and use it to check off the operations you have completed while performing system setup according to the instructions in this chapter. Please be sure to perform all of the operations (all of the boxes must be checked), otherwise the service will not work.

| Operation | De | one |
|--|----|-----|
| General configuration | | |
| Enter company data under My Company. | [|] |
| Specify a base currency. | [| 1 |
| For any other currency you plan to use, specify the exchange rate | [| 1 |
| source and define exchange rates. | - | - |
| Create all the required destinations. | [|] |
| Network configuration | | |
| Create a node for your gateway. | [|] |
| Configure your gateway. | [| 1 |
| Rating configuration (Vendor) | | |
| Create a tariff A, which describes your termination costs. | [|] |
| Insert rates in tariff A for destinations you will terminate to | [|] |
| PSTN. | | |
| Create a vendor. | [|] |
| Create a connection for this vendor using tariff A. | [|] |
| Rating configuration (Customer) | | |
| Create a tariff B, which will apply to customers who send you | [|] |
| traffic for termination. | | |
| Insert rates in tariff B for destinations which will be covered by | [|] |
| your termination service. | | |
| Create a wholesale product. | | |
| Create one rating entry for this product, using the node you | [|] |
| created and tariff B. | | |
| Account provisioning | | |
| Create a customer class which will apply to your customers. | [|] |
| Create a retail customer who owns the accounts representing | [|] |
| emote gateways. | | |
| Create an account for each of this customer's remote gateways. | [|] |
| Testing | | |
| Try to make a test call. | [|] |
| | | |

PortaSwitch® Configuration

Please refer to the **PortaBilling Web Reference Guide** PDF file for detailed instructions on how to navigate and operate the web interface, as well as detailed explanations of particular fields.

Initial Configuration of PortaBilling

The following steps are normally performed only once, after the system has been installed. This includes:

- Visit **My Company** from the main menu. Enter information about your company and set up a base currency. Of course this does not limit your operations to this currency only. However, on reports such as cost / revenue different currencies will be converted to the one you specify here.
- From the main menu, choose **Users** and create login entries for users who will be working with the system. It is not recommended that the default PortaBilling® root user (**pb-root**) be used for any operations other than initial set-up.
- Make sure you are able to login as the newly-created user and change the password for the **pb-root** user.

NOTE: It is possible that you will require assistance from PortaBilling® support personnel in the future. In order to provide support, they will need access to the web interface. Therefore, when you submit a problem report please either provide them with a new password for the **pb-root** user, or create a special user for them.

• If you plan to do billing in more than one currency, define them and specify exchange rates in **Currencies** section.

Create Destinations

This step is only required if you have not defined the necessary destinations before. There are two ways of entering new destinations into the system:

- One-by-one, using the 🖪 Add functionality on the web interface
- A bulk update, by uploading destinations from a file

NOTE: A file with the default destination set is supplied with PortaBilling[®]. You can download it and then upload it to the server. However, it may be possible that your business requires different types of prefixes, so please check the data in the file before uploading.

Creating Destinations "One-by-One":

1. In the **Rating** section of Admin-Index, choose **Destinations**.

| | II \$ | 88 | •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | 1 🔍 | | Destina | ations | | ④ America/Vanco | uver d | emoroot | ? Help |
|---|-------|--------|--|------------|-------------------|------------|-------------|--------|-------------------------|--------|---------|--------|
| • | 🔁 Add | 🖬 Save | 🛞 Close | 🗵 Download | 🗷 Get default set | 萬 Upload | | | |)I4 | Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | • [| | Prefix | Country Des | cription 🕨 | ABCDEFG | ніјкім | 4 N O P Q R S T U ¥ W : | XYZ | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Prefix * | | Country | | Subdivision | | Description | Delete | | |
| | | | 1202 | | REPUBLIC | V Not | | ~ | Prague | X | | |

- 2. Click on the 🖪 Add button.
- 3. Fill in the required information. This includes the phone prefix and country. The country subdivision is optional. You can use the **Description** column to store some extra information about the destination (for example, if it is a mobile or fixed number).
- 4. Click **Save**.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 for each additional destination.

Uploading a Set of Destinations from a File

- 1. In the **Rating** section of Admin-Index, choose **Destinations**.
- 2. Click on **Get default set** to download a set of destinations as a CSV (Comma-Separated Values) file.
- 3. Open this file in Microsoft Excel or any other suitable program. Edit the data if required.
- 4. Save the file and close it in Excel.
- 5. Switch back to the PortaBilling® web interface, and click **Upload** on the Destinations screen.
- 6. Type in the filename of the file you have edited, or click on the **Browse...** button and select the file.
- 7. Click Save&Close.

Create Nodes

This step is only required if you have not entered your gateways into the system before. In this case, you must enter your gateways as nodes. PortaBilling® requires some key information about your network equipment such as IP address, Node ID, Radius shared secret, etc.

NOTE: Only your own gateways have to be entered as nodes. Remote gateways which belong to the customer, or ones which legally belong to you but are used solely by your customer(s), are not considered nodes.

| ₼ | II \$ | 88 🛉 | F 🕨 📈 🔍 | Node | Manageme | nt | | () America/Vancouver | demoroot | 🕐 Help |
|-----|--------|-------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|--------------|----------------|------------|-----------------------|-------------|----------|
| • | 💽 💼 dd | 🛞 Close | e 🔯 Internode Routing | | | | | | N Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | Node ID IP | RADIUS | lient | | | | |
| | | | | | | No 💿 All Sh | ow Nodes | | | |
| | | | | | 0100 01 | | | | | |
| | | | Name | Node ID | IP | Manufacturer | Туре | RADIUS Client Delete | | |
| | | | Huawei - 192.168.0.48 | 192.168.0.48 | 192.168.0.48 | Huawei | ASN | 2 | | |
| | | | PortaSIP - 193.28.87.41 | 193.28.87.41 | 193.28.87.41 | PortaOne | PortaSIP | 2 | | |
| | | | PortaSIP - 193.28.87.48 | 193.28.87.48 | 193.28.87.48 | PortaOne | PortaSIP | 2 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| ል | | 88 k | | ٨ | dd Node | | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | [?] Help |
| LUL | Save | Save | | ~ | au noue | | | (g) America Vancourer | N Logout | Шпсір |
| - | Save | save | & close (&) close | | | | | | Fill Logout | |
| | | Node | Name Cisco-gw | · · · | | | | | | |
| | | Manu | facturer Cisco 👻 | | | | | | | |
| | | Туре | VOIP-GW - | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Node info | | | | | | _ | |
| | | Node | ID | cisco-gw.mydomain.com | RADIUS CI | ient | | | | |
| | | NAS- | IP-Address | 192.168.0.99 | RADIUS Ke | y. | asinc9en | - Auto | | |
| | | Auth. | Transl. Rule 🔞 | | RADIUS So | urce IP | 192.168.0. | 99 . | | |
| | | RTP | Proxying | Optimal 👻 | RADIUS DI | ctionary | Cisco | | | |
| | | | | | POD Serve | | | | | |
| | | | | | 1 OD Serve | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | U | | | | | | | | |
| ۵ | II \$ | 88 🚯 | 10 M A | Node | Manageme | nt | | | demoroot | ? Help |
| • | 🔁 Add | 🛞 Close | 🔀 Internode Routing | | | | | | N Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | Node ID IP | RADIUS C | lient | _ | | | |
| | | | | node ib iP | | | | | | |
| | | | | | O Yes ON | lo 💿 All 🔄 Sha | ow Nodes | | | |
| | | | Name | Node ID | IP | Manufacturer | Туре | RADIUS Client Delete | | |
| | | | Huawei - 192.168.0.48 | 192.10 0.48 | 192.168.0.48 | Huawei | ASN | 2 | | |
| | | | PortaSIP - 193.28.87.41 | 193 85.37 41 | 193.28.87.41 | PortaOne | PortaSIP | 2 | | |
| | | | PortaSIP - 193.28.87.48 | 193.28.67.48 | 193.28.87.48 | PortaOne | PortaSIP | 2 | | |
| | | | Cisco-gw | cisco-gw.mydomain.com | 192.168.0.99 | Cisco | VOIP-GW | 2 | | |

- 1. In the **Networking** section of the Admin-Index page, choose **Nodes**.
- 2. In the Node management window, click the **Add** icon.
- 3. Fill in the New Node form:
 - **Node Name** A short descriptive name for this node (will be used in the select menus).
 - Manufacturer Select Cisco or Quintum.
 - **Type** VoIP node type; select **VOIP-GW**.
 - o Node ID h323-id (recommended hostname.domainname)
 - **NAS-IP-Address** IP address of the gateway.
 - Auth. Transl. Rule Leave this empty for now; see the *Translation Rules* section of the PortaBilling Administrator Guide.
 - RTP Proxying Leave the default selection (Optimal); for more details regarding NAT traversal, see the PortaSIP Administrator Guide.
 - RADIUS Client Make sure this check-box is enabled, since the gateway (node) must be able to communicate with PortaBilling via RADIUS.
 - **RADIUS Key** Enter the RADIUS secret key you have specified in the configuration of the gateway.
 - **RADIUS Source IP** Unless your gateway has multiple network interfaces, the value here should be the same as the NAS-IP-Address.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

5. Repeat steps 2-4 until all of your nodes have been entered.

Create a Vendor Tariff

A tariff is a single price list for call services. A tariff combines:

- conditions which are applicable to every call regardless of the called destination;
- per destination rates.

| ► Description For Parameters Par | E Log |
|---|--------|
| lete demoroot | 2 Help |
| lete demoroot | 2 Help |
| lete demoroot | 2 Help |
| demoroot | ? Help |
| demoroot | ? Help |
| demoroot | ? Help |
| | ? Help |
| | 🕐 Help |
| | |
| Syour | 目 Log |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

- 1. In the Rating section of Admin-Index, choose Tariffs.
- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose Add.
- 3. Fill in the **Add Tariff** form:
 - **Name** A short name of the tariff object. This is the name you will see later in the select menus.
 - **Currency** Indicates the currency, in which the vendor charges you.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff is chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

- **Applied To** Choose **Vendor** as this tariff will be used to calculate costs associated with your vendors.
- **Routing** Leave the **Routing** box checked.
- Service Choose Voice Calls here.
- Short Description A short tariff description.
- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click **Save**.

Enter Rates

Rates are per-destination prices. Please refer to the *Call Billing Parameters* section in the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide** for more details on billing parameters.

Managing Rates Online

Managing rates online is very convenient for maintaining existing rate tables, as well as for reference purposes. In the case of new price lists or major updates, the offline method is better.



- On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of available tariffs. Click the Rates icon in front of the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on Rates in the toolbar.
- 2. In the Edit Rates screen, click 🖪 Add.
- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - Destination A destination prefix may be entered directly, e.g.
 420 for Czech Republic, or you can access the destinations directory by clicking the Destination link (in the column header). Here you can find the desired prefix by country name.

NOTE: The phone prefix you are trying to create a rate for must already exist in Destinations.

- **Route category** You can split your available routes into several categories, such as "High quality", "Premium", etc., then create routing plans for your customers. Use the **Default** route category for now.
- **Preference** The routing priority for the specific destination. 10 is the highest priority, 0 is the lowest (i.e. do not use this destination for routing at all). For now, you can just set all of your vendor rates at preference 5, and the system will organize available routes according to cost (LCR).
- Huntstop Do not try any routes with a lower preference.
- Interval First First billing unit in seconds.
- Interval Next Next billing unit in seconds.
- **Price First** Per-minute price for first interval.
- **Price Next** Per-minute price for next interval.

- Off-peak Interval First First billing unit in seconds for offpeak time.
- Off-peak Interval Next Next billing unit in seconds for offpeak time.
- **Off-peak Price First** Per-minute price for first interval of off-peak time.
- Off-peak Price Next Per-minute price for next interval of offpeak time.

NOTE: Off-peak fields appear only if an **off-peak period** has been defined for the tariff.

- Rate Formula Wizard Launches the wizard for creating a custom rating formula
- Effective From If you want this rate to take effect sometime in the future, you can either type in a date manually, or use the calendar (click the DD-MM-YYYY link). Click on the ⁽¹⁾ Stop Watch icon to make the rate effective immediately.
- **Payback Rate, Hidden, Forbidden** or **Discontinued** flags are optional
- 4. Click the Save button in the toolbar, or the icon on the left end of the row.
- 5. Repeat these steps if you need to enter more rates.

Managing Rates Offline

You also can upload rates from a .CSV or .XLS file – please refer to the description of this process in the previous chapter.



Perform the *Create Tariff* and *Enter Rates* steps described above until you have created a tariff with the termination costs for each termination partner you have.

Create Vendors

This step is only required if you have not entered information about your vendors into the system before. Vendors are your termination partners or the providers of incoming toll-free lines.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. On the Vendor Management page, choose 🖪 Add.



| ۵ | II \$ | 88 1 | | ₽ | ~ | Q | | | Vend | or Mana | agem | ent | | 0 | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|--------|-------|----------|--------|---------|--------|-----------------|------|------------|------------|-----------|--------|------------|--------|-------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🔁 Add | 🛞 Clo | se | | | | | | | | | | | | | 💐 Logout | 目 Log |
| | - E. | | | | | | | | | Search | | _ | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Searci | Sea | rch | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | xDRs | | Cor | | s Currency | | | E-mail | Delete | | | |
| | | | | | | Q | DID Supplier | | X 2 | USD | 0.0000 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | <u>DIDX</u> | | <u>× 3</u> | USD | 0.0000 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Q | <u>GlobaNet</u> | | 🔀 2 | USD | 0.0858 | J | | | | | |
| | V | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ₼ | ≣ \$ | 88 🚯 | 8 | Þ. | ~ 0 | 1 | | | 1 | Add Ven | dor | | | (| America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| • | 🖬 Save | 🕞 Sav | e & Clos | se (| 🛞 Clo | se | | | | | | | | | | 💵 Logout | |
| | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Vendo | r Nam | ie sp | T Tele | com | | | | urrency | | USD - US I | Dollar | × * | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | U | pening l | salanc | e 0 | | | | |
| | | | • | Addre: | ss Infa | Ad | ditional Info | User | Interface | 2 | | | | | | | |
| | | | Compa | any Na | ame | SPT T | elecom | | | Cont | act | | | | | | |
| | | | Mr./Ms. | J | [| | | | | Phon | e [| +4202 | 4555100 | | | | |
| | | | First N | ame | [| | | | | Fax | [| | | | | | |
| | | | M.L | | [| | | | | Alt. P | hone | | | | | | |
| | | | Last N | ame | [| | | | | Alt. C | ontact [| | | | | | |
| | | | Addres | s | [| | | | | E-ma | il (| info@s | spt. cz | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Desc | ription [| | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Provinc | e/Sta | te [| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Postal | | | 11721 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | City | | | Pragu | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Countr | y/Reg | | | Republic | | | | | | | | | | |

3. Fill in the **New Vendor** form. Please note that there are three tabs available on the screen. The most important fields are:

Main form (top)

- Vendor Name A short name for the vendor object; this will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** The currency in which this vendor charges you.
- **Opening Balance** Starting balance for the vendor; default is zero.

Additional Info

| ۵ | | \$ | 00 | • | • | ~ | 3 (| Q | | | | A | dd Ve | endor | | | | | | demoroot | 🕑 Help |
|---|------|-----|----|--------|------------------------|------|-------|-------|------------------|----------|---------|----------|-------|------------------------|--------|--------------|------|---|-----|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Sa | ive | | Save & | Close | 0 |) (I | ose | | | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | |
| | | | | Ve | ndor N | am | e s | PT Te | lecom | | | * | | Currency Opening Ba | alance | USD - US Dol | llar | * | ~ * | | |
| | | | | _ | Add | lres | s Ini | fo | Additio | nal Info | User In | nterface | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ca | tegoria | ring | and | Defa | ults | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Bil | ing Pe | riod | | | | Daily | • | | | ~ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Bil | ateral | Traf | fic E | xcha | inge | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | <u>set Ba</u> nimum | | | | ustome offset | r | | * U | SD | | | | | | | | |

o Billing Period – Split period for vendor statistics.

User Interface

| 奋 | | \$ | 88 | 1 | ₽ | ~ | Q | | | Add Vendor | | | Ω M | nerica/Vanc | ouwar | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|------|-----|------------|---------|--------|-----|---------|--|-----|--------------------|-----|---------------|-----|-------------|-------|----------|----------|
| | | _ | | | | _ | | | | Auu venuoi | | | w m | nencayvanu | ouver | | Ef theip |
| • | 🖬 Sa | ive | a s | ave & C | lose | 0 | Close | | | | | | | | | M Logout | |
| | | | | Ven | dor Na | me | SPT T | elecom | | Currency | USI | D - US Dollar | | * | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Opening Balance | 0 | | × | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | e permity permitte | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Add | ess | Info | Additional Info User Inter | fac | e | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Logi | n | [| spt_tel | ecom | | Time Zone | E | urope/Prague | | * | | | |
| | | | | Pass | sword | | uthrv2l | 7 Auto Web Interface Language en - English | | | | | | * | | | |
| | | | | Acce | ss Le | vel | Vendo | · · | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Outp | out Fo | mat | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Date | | | m | /-MM-DD | - | 2003-12-31 | • | | | | | | |
| | | | | Time | э | | HH2 | 4:MI:SS | 1 | User Defined | 1 | | | | | | |
| | | | | Date | & Tir | ne | m | /-MM-DD HH24:MI:SS | 1 | User Defined | 1 | / | | | | | |
| | | | | Inpu | t Forn | nat | | | | | | _ | | | | | |
| | | | | Date | | | m | /-MM-DD | | 2003-12-31 | 1 | • | | | | | |
| | | | | Time | 9 | | HH2 | 4:MI:SS | 1 | User Defined | 1 | / | | | | | |

- **Time Zone** The time zone which the vendor uses for his billing period. Statistics will be divided into periods according to this time zone.
- 4. Click Save&Close.
- 5. Repeat steps 2-4 to add all of your vendors.

Define Connections

This step is only required if you have not entered information about your vendors into the system before. Vendors are your termination partners or the providers of incoming toll-free lines.



Porta 🌄 Switch

| û II \$ \$\$ ₽ ₽ ₽ < Q | Add Connection For 'SPT Telecom' | Vendor 🕓 Ame | rica/Vancouver demoroot 🛛 ? He | elp |
|--|---|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----|
| 🕨 🖬 Save 📓 Save & Close 🛞 Close | | | 🕅 Logout 📒 L | .og |
| Description Term Service Type Voic | ination to SPT Telecom * Type e Calls * Routing Criteria | PSTN to Vendor 🛛 🛛 | | |
| General Info | | _ | | |
| Routing Protocol | H323 SIP | | | |
| Node | PortaSIP - 193.28.87.36 | | | |
| Remote Gateway ID | | | | |
| Port | | | | |
| Tariff | Termination to SPT Telecom 💌 * | | | |
| Capacity | 25 * | | | |
| Translation Rule | | | | |
| Outgoing Rule | 0 | | | |
| CLI Translation Rule | 20 | | | |
| | | | | |
| | Connection Management for 'SPT 1 | elecom [*] [©] Am | erica/Vancouver demoroot ? He | |
| ► 🗄 Add ⊗ Close | | | M Logout 目 L | og |
| 3 | ervice Type S | earch | | |
| Voi | e Calls 💌 ANY | Search | | |
| Description Service Type | Gateway/Node IP Port Access Co Pref | | Tariff Del | ete |
| Termination to SPT Telecom Voice Calls PSTN to Vende | r frsip.portaone.com 193.28.87.36 | | Termination to SPT Telecom | × |

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. Click on the **Connections** icon next to the vendor name.
- 3. Press 🗄 Add to add a new connection.
- 4. Fill in the connection information. If you send traffic to the vendor via telephony, choose the node and enter an optional port pattern. If you send traffic via VoIP, enter the remote IP address. Choose the tariff which defines your termination costs for this connection / vendor. **Description** and **Capacity** are mandatory for all connection types.
- 5. The **Translation Rule** is necessary if you send calls to the vendor in a format different from the one you use (e.g. the number 420296111222 is sent to the vendor as 004202111222), so that you can convert the phone number to the correct format. **Outgoing Rule** is only present if PortaSIP® is installed, and is used to convert the number into the vendor-specific format.
- 6. Click Save&Close.
- Repeat steps 3-6 to add more connections to the same vendor, then click Close in order to exit to the Vendor Management screen.
- 8. Repeat steps 2-7 to add connections for other vendors.

Create a Customer Tariff

Normally you need a separate tariff for each of your customers.

- 1. In the Rating section of Admin-Index, choose Tariffs.
- 2. On the Tariff Management page, choose 🖸 Add.
- 3. Fill in the **Add Tariff** form:
 - **Name** A short name of the tariff object. This is the name you will see later in the select menus.

• **Currency** – Indicates the currency in which you charge your customers.

NOTE: The currency for the tariff is chosen only once, and cannot be changed later.

- **Applied To** Choose "**Customer**", as this tariff will be used to charge your prepaid customers.
- Managed By Choose Administrator Only here.
- Service Choose Voice Calls here.
- **Default Off-peak Period** If you do not differentiate between peak and off-peak rates, just choose **Not defined**; otherwise, select one of the previously defined off-peak periods.
- Destination Group Set If you wish to enter rates in the tariff not for each individual prefix, but for a whole group of prefixes at once, you should create a destination group set and destination groups beforehand. Leave this select menu empty for now.
- Round Charged Amount Instead of calculating xDRs with a 5-decimal-place precision, round up xDR amount values (e.g. XXXXX.XX000 means rounding to cents, so that 1.16730 becomes 1.17).
- **Default Formula** The default rating formula which will be applied to every new rate created in the tariff. If you leave this empty, "old-style" rating will be used.
- Short Description A short tariff description. This will be shown in the rate lookup on the admin interface and the self-care pages for your accounts and customers.
- **Description** An extended tariff description.
- 4. Click 🖬 Save.

| ۵ | II \$ | | | j 🛰 📢 📲 | | Tariff Man | agement | | • | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|--------|-----|-------|--------------------|-----------------|-------------|------------|------------|---------|-------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🗈 💼 dd | I 8 | Close | 🔱 Off-Peak Periods | 🔋 xDR Re-rating | 🗵 LCR Rates | | | | | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Applied To | Service | | Managed By | | | Search | | |
| | | | ANY | ~ | ANY | M ANY | | ~ | | Seard | - | |
| | - 21 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - vi | | Rates | Name | Currency | Applied To | Service | Managed By | Routing | Description Del | ete | |
| | V | | | | | | | | | | | |





Enter Rates

- On the Tariff Management page you will see a list of available tariffs. Click the Rates icon in front of the name of the tariff. When you are in Tariff Management for a particular tariff, click on Rates in the toolbar.
- 2. In the Edit Rates screen, click 🖪 Add.

- 3. Fill in the required information (please refer to the *Enter Rates for Vendor Tariff* section above for a detailed description of the available rate attributes):
 - Effective From If you want this rate to take effect sometime in the future, you can either type in a date manually, or use the calendar (click the DD-MM-YYYY link). Click on the ⁽¹⁾ Stop Watch icon to make the rate effective immediately.

NOTE: When using the calendar, you can specify that the date you are entering is in a different time zone than your current one. PortaBilling® will then automatically adjust the time.



- 4. Click the **Save** button in the toolbar, or the **i** icon on the left end of the row.
- 5. Repeat these steps if you need to enter more rates.

Perform the *Create Tariff* and *Enter Rates* steps described above until you have created a tariff for each account's billing scheme. For example, if you plan to have two types of service packages (Termination-Easy and Termination-Gold) with different rates, you will need to create two separate tariffs.

Create a Product

 $\overline{\mathbf{X}}$

Each of the remote customer gateways will be represented as an account and billed accordingly. Hence we need to create a product for this account in order to have a defined way of billing it. If you have per-customer specific rates / tariffs, then you will need a product for each customer.

- 1. In the Rating section of the Admin-Index page, choose Products.
- 2. On the Product management page, click the **Add** icon.
- 3. Fill in the "Add Product" form:
 - **Product name** Product object name.
 - **Currency** Product currency; only tariffs which have the same currency will be permitted in the rating list.
 - Managed by If you plan for this product to be used for your reseller's accounts, so that the reseller himself can change the parameters of this tariff and create new accounts with this

product, choose the customer's name from the menu. Otherwise choose **Administrator only** here.

General Info

- **Breakage** This parameter is typically used only for prepaid accounts, so leave it empty.
- Account default ACL The access level assigned by default to new accounts created with this product. The ACL determines which operations may be performed by accounts on the self-care pages. The default value is "Account self-care" (pre-defined ACL), which allows all possible operations.
- Default Discount Plan Leave None as the selected entry if you do not plan to offer discounted rates based on call volume. Please refer to the description of volume-based discounts in the PortaBilling Administrator Guide for more details.
- Info URL If you have an external server with a description of product features, enter the URL here (e.g. http://www.myproduct.com). Your customers will be able to go there from their self-care page.
- **Description** Your description of the intended use of this product.

4. Click **Save**.

Click on the Services and Rating tab to edit this product's rating list.

| ₼ | II \$ | 88 | * (| 20 | Þ | ~ | Q | | Product | Managen | ent | 0 | America/Vancouver | demoroot | 👔 Help |
|---|--------------|------------|--|-------------------------------------|--|-------------|--|--|----------|--------------|--------------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------|----------|
| • | 🔁 Add | 8 | Close | | | | | | | | | | | N Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | | Managed | By ▼ | St | earch Search | | | | |
| | | | | | | | \$? | Name | Currency | Managed By | r Descri | ption Delete | | | |
| ሰ | | | Image: A state of the state | 20 | 1 | ~ | ପ | | Add | Product | | ه | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
| • | B ave | _ | Close | _ | | <u> </u> | - | | Add | FIGURE | | Ű, | anonea, rancoa ra | ► Logout | in the p |
| | | | Mar Bre Ove Acc Def | nage Ge akag erdra ount | ed By enera ge ft Pro Defa Disco L | A d | Main Main De L Ac lan No Sn | Termination irator only V tenance Fee bit accounts on: ccount self-care me lat we charge of arthert for cal irminate to us | y v v | rency USD - | US Dollar | | × | | |
| | Ý | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ۵ | II \$ | _ | | | • | | _ | | | | rmination | 0 | America/Vancouver | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
| • | • Add | . 5 | Pro | oduc nage | ave 8 t Nam ed By | e Sn Adr | nartnet ministra | Close B Rate Loo | Curre | ne USD | Subscriptions | Service Features | Notepad | ▶Ø Logout | E Log |
| | | | Plea | | | | | ervices and Rating e | | as and roomy | 2.2.2.2.1 priority | | | | |

Enter Node and Tariff into the Product's Rating Entry

For incoming VoIP traffic we normally do not really need different rating entries, as just one row with "ANY" node and tariff should be enough. However, if, for example, you want to let a customer send traffic to your gateway A but not gateway B, this can be achieved by using rating entries.

| 🕼 🗉 🕏 🗟 🖻 🖉 🔍 🛛 Edit Product 'Smartnet Termination' 🕓 America/Vancou | ver demoroot | P Help |
|--|--------------|--------|
| 🕨 🖻 Add 🖬 Save 🗑 Save & Close 🕺 Close 🖉 Rate Lookup 🖷 Clone | 💵 Logout | 目 Log |
| Product Name Smartnet Termination Currency USD Managed By Administrator only | | |
| General Info Maintenance Online Signup Services and Rating Subscriptions Service Features Notepad Please define at least one Services and Rating entry Service Service Services and Rating entry Service Service Service Services and Rating entry Service | _ | |
| ÷ | | |
| 🕼 💷 🖻 🗟 🖻 🖻 🖻 🖉 🖓 Add Services and Rating to Product 'Smartnet Termination' America/Vancou | | ? Help |
| 🕨 🖬 Save & Close 🛞 Close | 💐 Logout | |
| Product Name Smathet Termination Product Currency USD Service Voice Calls Image: Calls General Overdraft Protection Node Arr Access Code | | |
| Tariff" Termination services V Info Digits | | |
| ✓ | | |
| 🏠 🖩 🖻 🗟 🕞 🖻 🖻 🖉 🔍 🛛 Edit Product 'Smartnet Termination' 🕐 America/Vancou | ver demoroot | ? Help |
| Add Save Save Close Science Rate Lookup Clone | 💐 Logout | 目 Log |
| Product Name Smartnet Termination Currency USD Managed By Administrator only | | |
| General Info Maintenance Online Signup Services and Rating Subscriptions Service Features Notepad | _ | |
| Voice Calls Edit Node Access Code Info Digits Routing Pating Delete | | |
| E ANY Any code ANY ANY — <u>Termination services</u> | | |

- 1. When the **Services and Rating** tab is selected, click on the **Add** icon.
- 2. Choose **Voice Calls** in the **Service** select menu.
- 3. Choose **ANY** as node, choose the tariff with which you want to bill your customer, and leave the **Access Code** field empty.
- 4. Click **Save** to save this rating entry.

Create a Customer Class

Customer class provides the ability to define a group of parameters in a centralized way, then apply those parameters to many customers at once. (If you have already created a customer class that you can use for prepaid card distributors, skip this step and go to the next one.)

- 1. In the **Billing** section of the Admin interface, choose **Customer Classes**.
- 2. On the Customer Class Management page, choose 🖪 Add.

Porta 🖌 Switch

| | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | | | | | | | 1 |
|---|------|-----|----|------|------------|----|----------------|-------|-----------------------------|-----------------|-----------|---------------|----------------------|---|----------|--------|
| 奋 | | \$ | 88 | ÷ | : • | ₽ | ~ | Q | ป | | Add Cus | tomer Class | 3 | | demoroot | P Help |
| • | 🖬 Sa | ave | | Save | & Clo | se | ۲ | Clos | se | | | | | | 📲 Logout | |
| | | | | | | ı | Nam(| | Enterprise neral Info | Taxation | × | Managed by | Administrator only | | | |
| | | | | | | : | Send | l Sta | itistics | | Full Stat | istics | [| ~ | | |
| | | | | | | | nvoid | e Ti | emplate | | Do not cr | eate invoice | [| * | | |
| | | | | | | : | Send | Invo | oices | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Term | IS | | | Due on re | reipt | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | nvoid | ce G | race Perio | d | Days | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Colle | ctio | n Threshol | d | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | Notify | /Cu | stomer | | | | Days before due date | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | Re-s | end | Invoice | | | | Days after due date | | | |
| | | | | | | | Atterr Cred | | o charge th ard | e listed | | | Days after due date | | | |
| | | | | | | : | Busp | ens | ion Time | | Days | | | | | |
| | | | | | | : | Busp | ens | ion Warnir | ng Time | Days | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Closi | ing 1 | Time | | Days | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | Credit Card eriod Is Clo | When The sed | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 | Desc | ripti | ion | | Enterpris | se Customer (| lass | | | |

- 3. Fill in the **Name** parameter; the other fields can be left empty for now.
- 4. Click Save&Close.

Create a Customer

A customer is an owner of accounts. The customer's contact information is used to distribute account usage information, call statistics, invoices, and so on.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of Admin-Index, choose **Customers**.
- 2. On the Customer Management page, choose Add Customer (In this example, we assume that you are creating the customer manually, so choose **Manually** from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options)).
- 3. Fill in the **New Customer** form. Please note that there are several tabs with extra information available on the screen. The most important fields are:

| ۵ • | | S Idd | 8 | 1 Close | | € | | | | | Gubt | omer Ma | nageni | | | | rica/Vancouver | demoroot | 2 | Log |
|--------|----------|----------|------|------------|------|------|-----|----------|-----------|--------------|---------|------------|--------|---------------|--------|--|----------------|------------|---|-----|
| - | | luu | | ciose | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | - I Logour | - | LUI |
| | Туре | | | | | | | | | | | Representa | tive | | Search | | Advanced | | | |
| | Dire | | irec | t Cu | stom | ers | | • | ANY | | | • | | Search | search | | | | | |
| | Direct C | | | | xDi | De N | ame | Accounts | Currency | Credit Limit | Balance | E-mail | 0 | tatus Delete | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | R | | Call Ltd. | a | USD | | | admin@easycal | | | | | | |



| ۵ | II \$ 8 | | Q | | Add Custo | mer | | () America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Help |
|---|---|--------------------|---------------|---|---------------|------------------|---------------|----------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Save 📓 | Save & Close 🛛 🛞 🛛 | Close | | | | | | 💵 Logout | |
| | Customer Name Blocked Type | SmartNet Retail | * | Currency Opening Balanc Customer Class | | | v * | | | |
| | Address Inf | o User Interface | Dialing Rules | Additional Info | Payment Info | Service Features | Custom Fields | | | |
| | Company Name MrJMs J First Name M.I. Last Name Address | SmartNet |]] :et | Contact Phone Fax Alt Phone Alt Contact E-mail BCC Description | info@smartnet | com | | | | |
| | Province/State | WA | | | | | | | | |
| | Postal Code | 90154 | | | | | | | | |
| | City | Seattle | | | | | | | | |
| | Country/Region | USA | | | | | | | | |

| | Add Customer | |
|--|--|----------|
| 🕨 🖬 Save 🔚 Save & Close 🛞 Close | | M Logout |
| Customer Name SmartNet | Currency USD - US Dollar Opening Balance 0 fugtomer Class Enterprise | |
| Address Info User Interface Dialing Rules | Additional Info Payment Info Service Features Custom Fig | ±lds |
| Discount Plan None Subscription Discount Rate % — Distributor Not defined | Billing Period Honthly Next Billing Date 2011-02-01 Shifbilling Date To 100 YYYY-MMH | |
| Representative Not defined Tax ID | Send Statistics Customer class' de Invoice Template Customer class' de Send Invoices Customer class' de | fault V |

| ₲ | II \$ 88 | * * * | Q | | Add Custo | mer | | America/Vancouver | demoroot | 🕐 Help |
|---|----------------------------------|------------------|---------------|--|--------------|------------------|---------------|-------------------|----------|--------|
| • | 🖬 Save 📓 | Save & Close 🛛 🛞 | Close | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | |
| | Customer Name Blocked Type | SmartNet | × | Currency Opening Balan Customer Clas | | | × * | | | |
| | Address Inf | 0 User Interface | Dialing Rules | Additional Info | Payment Info | Service Features | Custom Fields | | | |
| | Credit Limit Balance Warning | Threshold | | | | 1-a | | | | |

| | H H H 🗡 | Q | A | dd Custo | mer | | | demoroot | 🛛 Help |
|---|--|---------------|--|-------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------|---|----------|--------|
| 🕨 🖬 Save | 📓 Save & Close 🛛 🛞 | Close | | | | | | 💵 Logout | |
| Customer N Blocked Type | ame SmartNet | | Opening Balance | USD - US D O Enterprise | ollar (| e * | | | |
| Addres | s Info User Interface | Dialing Rules | Additional Info Pa | ayment Info | Service Features | Custom Fields |] | | |
| Login Password Access Level | smartnet 84gm8zry Retail x Self-Care Enabled (der | Auto V | Time Zone Web Interface La | | ope/Prague - English | v | | | |
| _ | Payments Management E ed Dialing Management I at | | | | | | | | |
| Date Time Date & Time Input Format | HH24:MI:SS | τ | 2003-12-31 Jser Defined Jser Defined | v v | | | | | |
| Date Time | HH24:MI:SS | | 2003-12-31 Jser Defined | v | | | | | |

| 🕼 II \$ 83 i 🗗 | ▶ ~ Q | Add Customer | ③ America/Vancouver | demoroot 🛛 | ? Help |
|---|--|--|------------------------|------------|--------|
| 🕨 🗟 Save 🗟 Save & Cl | ose 🛞 Close | | | NO Logout | |
| Customer Name SmartNet Blocked Type Retail | | Currency USD - US Dollar Opening Balance Customer Class Reterprise | | | |
| Address Info User I | interface Dialing Rules A | Additional Info Payment Info Service Features Custom | Fields | | |
| Service Type Conferencing Data Service Dial-up Internet Messaging Service Internet Access Quantity Based Session Based Voice Calls Incoming Calls Outgoing Calls VM-E1 | Allowed Identity Default Valid Identity * Allowed CLI Override Display Name Hide CLI Hide CLI Prefix Show CLI Prefix | No Pestrictions (Dov Use The Same Rule V No V Never | aneous Calls * 2 No | × | |

Main form (top)

- **Customer Name** A short name for the customer object; will be used on the web interface.
- **Currency** The currency in which this customer will be billed.
- **Opening balance** Starting balance for the customer; the default is zero.
- **Type** Since this customer will be sending you traffic and paying for it, he is a **Retail** customer.
- **Customer Class** Choose the customer class you created in the previous step.

Address Info

- **Email** Email address for distribution of accounting information. After the billing period is over, a list of xDRs and other statistics will be sent to this address.
- **BCC** Delivery to the specified email address of your account representative a copy of every outgoing email sent to the customer; this may be used for debug and archiving purposes.

Additional Info

- **Billing period** Frequency of distribution of accounting information. For more details about different available billing periods, see the **PortaBilling Administrator Guide**.
- **Subscription Discount Rate** Amount of discount applied by default to all subscriptions of this customer (assigned either directly to a customer or to one of his accounts).
- Send Statistics Summary only Distribute a call summary only, and do not attach a details file; this might be useful in the case of a large amount of calls. Other options are **full statistics** (attach a complete list of xDRs) or **do not send** (no not deliver call statistics to this customer via email at all).

Payment Info

- **Credit limit** If left empty, there is no credit limit for this customer.
- **Balance Warning Threshold** Customer can be notified by email when his balance is dangerously close to the credit limit and his service will soon be blocked. Here you can enter the value for the warning threshold as follows:
 - As a percentage (e.g. 90%). A warning will be sent when the customer's balance exceeds this percentage of his credit limit. Thus, if his credit limit is \$1000.00 and the threshold is 90%, a warning will be sent as soon as the balance is over \$900.00. This is only applicable when the customer has a positive credit limit.
 - As an absolute value. A warning will be sent as soon as the balance exceeds the specified value.

User Interface

- **Time Zone** This parameter serves two purposes. First of all, it defines in which time zone the customer will see his xDRs. It also defines which time zone will be used to divide the customer's billing periods. For example, if you choose America / New_York with a monthly billing period here, the customer's invoice will cover the period starting at 00:00 EST on the 1st of every month.
- Web Interface Language The language to be used on the customer self-care web interface.

Service Features

Using this tab, the administrator can activate / deactivate various features of the services provided to customers. Note that features are defined per *service type* (the physical service provided to the user) rather than per *service*.

The **Service Type** links on the left allow you to specify for which service type you would like to define parameters. Click on the **Voice Calls / Outgoing Calls** service type and define the following parameters

- Max number of simultaneous calls Only allow a specific number of concurrent calls for accounts of this customer.
- The other settings on this tab control various IP Centrex features which are available when using PortaSIP®. Leave them as is, since they are not applicable in the case of termination services provided directly on a Cisco gateway.
- 4. Click Save&Close to save your work. See the PortaBilling Administrator Guide for more information.

Create Accounts

- 1. Go to the **Customers** screen (the screen which contains a list of customers).
- 2. Next to the customer name, click on the 🗊 icon (the one in the **Accounts** column), which will take you to the account management for that customer.



- 3. Now click on **■** Add (In this example, we assume that you are creating the account manually, so choose Manually from the drop-down menu (do not use any of the Quick Form options)).
- 4. Fill in the Add account form:
 - Account ID Identification of the account (value to be sent in the User-Name attribute). For an account which represents a remote gateway, this is normally an IP address.
 - **Product** Choose the product which you would like your accounts to use.
 - **Blocked** Check this if you want to create the account as initially blocked.
 - **Opening Balance** The initial balance on the card. For credit accounts, the opening balance is normally zero.

Account Info

- **Type** Account type; select **Credit**.
- Credit Limit Maximum allowed credit.
- Service Password Password for authentication / authorization. If you are using the default Cisco remote_ip_authenticate script, put cisco here.
- **Batch** A batch is a management unit for accounts. If a new batch name is provided in the text field, the created account will be placed into a new batch with the given name. Alternatively, an existing batch could be selected from the drop-down list. If you leave this field empty, the created account will not be tied to any specific batch.

Life Cycle

- Activation Date Account activation date.
- **Expiration Date** Account expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.
- Life Time Relative expiration date; since we are setting up a postpaid service, which should function for a long time, leave this field blank.

User Interface

- **Login** The login name this account will use to access the selfcare pages. This can be the same as the account ID, or a different one may be chosen for increased security. This field is mandatory.
- **Password** Password for the self-care pages.
- **Time Zone** When an account owner accesses the web self-care pages to see a list of his calls, the time will be shown in the time zone most appropriate for him.
- Web Interface Language The language to be used on the account self-care web interface.
- **IP Centrex Self-Care Enabled (demo)** If enabled, account owners will use a new self-care interface to view their profile data and manage settings. To switch back to the default account self-care interface, simply disable this option.
- 5. Click Save&Close; a confirmation screen will indicate that the account has been created.
- 6. Repeat steps 3-5 if the customer has more than one remote gateway.



5. Adaptive Routing and Quality of Service

PortaBilling® allows you to automate the process for controlling the call quality which becomes increasingly important today. That is, if you want to evaluate acceptable vendors for terminating VoIP calls, there is no need to hire numerous human operators or network engineers, who will track and analyze the specific route. All you need is to implement adaptive routing model.

Setting up Adaptive Routing

The main idea of adaptive routing is to dynamically measure a vendor's quality parameters, and adjust the routing priority accordingly. These quality requirements are predefined in the form of threshold parameters on the **Routing Criteria** page, and are then automatically applied to specific vendors. Any vendor who fails to satisfy your quality requirements will go to the "penalty box" – the very bottom of the routing list. This means that the system will try first to terminate calls using other carriers (with a good quality evaluation). However, if all of them fail or are unavailable, the "penalized" carrier will have a chance to terminate the call. It is still better to send a call via an inferior vendor than to have it fail completely.

Thus, if the quality requirements are applied, a carrier's place on the routing list is determined not only by the route category, the assigned preference value, and the cost parameters (LCR model), but additionally by quality criteria.

Add / Edit Routing Criteria

- 1. In the Routing section of Admin-Index, choose Routing Criteria.
- 2. On the **Routing Criteria** page, choose **Add**.

An existing routing criterion can be edited by clicking on its name in the list.

| 6 | | 88 | | | Q | | Routing Criteria | | | 2 | |
|---|-------|----|-------|--|---|--|------------------|--|----------|---|-----|
| • | 🗈 Add | ۲ | Close | | | | | | M Logout | | Log |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Search | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Search | | | | |

- 3. Fill in the required information:
 - **Name** The logical name of the routing criterion for use within PortaBilling®;
 - **Description** A description of the routing criterion.
 - **Sampling Interval** The time interval for which statistics are computed. Smaller intervals will make the system "quicker" to notice any change in a vendor's quality, but there is also a higher chance that a short-term problem on the vendor's side (which can be fixed in a matter of minutes) will penalize his route for a relatively long period of time.
 - **Destination Group Set** A set of destination groups you would like to use for more convenient quality criteria entry.
- 4. In the **Criteria Defaults** table, specify the initial default values to be applied for all routing criteria you will create next:





- **Minimum Calls** The minimal required amount of calls via a given connection for the statistics to be considered representative. If the number of calls is below the specified value, the quality parameters will not be matched against the threshold, and no routing adjustments will be made.
- **Penalty Time** The time interval for which a connection will be "penalized" (at the very bottom of the routing list) if a given vendor does not meet the quality criteria.
- ASR (Answer Seizure Ratio) The number of successfully connected calls divided by the total number of call attempts. (Post Dial Delay) The time interval between the connection request to the vendor and ring-back.
- **PDD** (Post Dial Delay) The time interval between the connection request to the vendor and ring-back.
- o ALOC Average Length of Call
- **PPM** (Profit per Minute) The aggregated profit, i.e. the difference between the actual charged amounts in your customers' and vendors' CDRs.

NOTE: The **ASR**, **PDD**, **ALOC**, **PPM parameters** require two values that define the warning and penalty thresholds, respectively.

5. Click the **Save** button to save your progress when done.

Define Routing Criteria for Individual Destination Groups

1. Click Add in the toolbar to define routing criteria for the specific destination group.





 \mathbf{X}

| ۵ | | • • • ~ | Q | Edit | Routing | Criteria ' | High prio | rity' | ¢ | America/Vancou | ver demoroot | 2 | Help | |
|------|-------------------|--|----------------------|--------------------|------------------------|--------------------|---|-----------------|---|----------------|---|-------|-------|--|
| • | 🗈 Add 🖬 Sar | /e 🔒 Save & C | Close 🛞 Close | | | | | | | | 🔰 Logout | | Log | |
| | | Name * High priority Sampling Interval * 15 minutes Description * Quality Service Destination Group Set * Retail | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Criteria Defaults | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Minimum Calls | * Penalty Time, r | min* Threshold | ASR, % | Min. PDD, r | ms Low PDD C | alls,% Max. PD | D, ms High P | DD Calls,% | ALOC, sec Pro | fit per Minute, USD | | | |
| | 20 | 10 | Warning | 80 | 5 | 30 | - | 50 | | 90 1 | 10 | | | |
| | 30 | 10 | Penalty | 70 |] [3 | 40 | 10 | 70 | | 90 1 | 10 | | | |
| | | | | Please add | a criteria def | inition for at lea | ist one destina | ition group. | | | | | | |
| Edit | Destination Group | Minimum Calls | Penalty Time, min | Threshold | ASR, % | Min. PDD, ms | Low PDD Calls,% | Max. PDD, ms | High PDD Calls,% | ALOC, sec | Profit per Minute, l | ISD D | elete | |
| | Europe | 50 | default | Warning Penalty | ✓ default ✓ default | | ✓ default✓ default | default | ✓ default✓ default | | ✓ 20 ✓ default | | × | |

- 2. Click the **Destination Groups** column header link to choose a group from a searchable list inside the pop-up window. You can access only groups associated with **Destinations Groups Set** defined previously.
- 3. Provide the quality parameters to be applied to your vendors:
 - ASR (Answer Seizure Ratio) The number of successfully connected calls divided by the total number of call attempts. (Post Dial Delay) The time interval between the connection request to the vendor and ring-back.
 - **PDD** (Post Dial Delay) The time interval between the connection request to the vendor and ring-back.
 - o ALOC -Average Length of Call
 - **PPM** (Profit per Minute) The aggregated profit, i.e. the difference between the actual charged amounts in your customers' and vendors' CDRs.

NOTE: The **ASR**, **PDD**, **ALOC**, **PPM parameters** require two values that define the warning and penalty thresholds, respectively.

4. Click the Save button to save your progress when done.

60

Instead of entering the same values for each destination group, you can simply leave quality parameters fields empty. They will be automatically filled with values from **Criteria Defaults** table.

Define Routing Criteria for Specific Connection

After you configure the **Routing Criteria**, you can now apply your quality requirements to specific vendor's connection. Thus, when such a routing model is associated with a connection, PortaBilling® will automatically arrange routes according to your quality preferences.

- 1. In the **Participants** section of the Admin interface, choose **Vendors**.
- 2. Click on the **Connections** icon next to the vendor name.
- 3. In the **Routing Criteria** box, select the routing model you want to apply;



| ₫ | \$ | 80 | * |) 🖁 | • |) [~ | 2 | Q | | Ad | d C | onne | cti | on Fo | or 'X- | Tele | com' | Vendor | 0 | America/Vancouver | demoroot | ? Hel |
|---|--------|----|----|------|-------|-------------|------------|--------------------|---------------|------|----------------|---------|-----|--------|--------------|----------|-------------|----------------------------|---|-------------------|----------|-------|
| • | Save | | Sa | ve & | Close | |) c | lose | | | | | | | | | | | | | 🕅 Logout | 目 Log |
| | | | | | | | | ption e Type | Tern ₹ Voi | | | <-Telec | | * | Type Rout | ing Cr | iteria | VoIP to Ven High priori | | | • | |
| | | | | | | | J Jting | eneral g Proto | | | H323 | 🗹 SII | • | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Rer | note | e IP | | 2: | .6.73. | 20.45 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | e IP Po sch Pre | | | | | | | | | > | | | | | |
| | | | | | | RTF Tari | | oxying | | | irect ermin | | х-т | elecon | | ~ | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Cap | oaci | ty | | 61 |) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Cal | ler I | dentity | | D | o Not | Supp | ly | | | ~ | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Ven | dor | Accou | int | N | one | | | | | v | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Trai | nsla | ition R | ule | | | | | | | | 🤣 😨 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Out | goir | ng Rul | e | | | | | | | | ? | | | | | |
| | | | | | | CLI | Tra | nslatio | on Rule | | | | | | | | 🤣 😨 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Add | itior | nal SIF | Settin | js 🗌 | | | | | | | | | | | | |

4. Click the **Save** button.

When saved, the additional **Tracking** tab will appear.

Tracking Connection Status

When the value of a parameter reaches the predetermined threshold, the administrator receives an e-mail alert about the latest connection threats. The administrator can track the current connection status on the **Tracking** page. This status is represented by different colors, as follows:

- GREY the number of calls is not enough to apply filtering differentiation;
- GREEN the route meets the quality requirements;
- • YELLOW the route is active, but some of its quality parameters are outside the warning thresholds;
- **G** BLOCKED this route is currently being penalized.

NOTE: The penalized route will be on the "penalty row" for a certain period of time, specified in the **Penalty Time** box and then will be unblocked automatically. Alternately, you can click the **Unblock Now** button to unblock the penalized route manually.

• **@** RED – the route was manually unblocked; this status will remain unchanged till the next time interval for which the statistics will be computed.



Adaptive Routing and Quality of Service

| ۵ | | | ÷ | ₽ | <u>~</u> C | Edit C | onnect | ion 'T | ermina | ation to | » Х-Т | elecom' Fo | 'X-Tele6 | om ⁱ Venc | tor er d | emoroot | 🕐 Help |
|----|-------|--------|--------|------------|------------|--------------|-----------|--------------------|----------|-----------------------|--------------|--------------------|--------------|----------------------|-----------------|---------|--------|
| Þ. | 层 Sav | e 🖃 |) Save | & Close | 🛞 Clo | se 🚮 Lo | ad 🤉 R | efresh | | | | | | | ١ | Logout | 📒 Log |
| | | | | Voice Ca | | -Telecom | | ype couting (| | VoIP to Ve High pr | | y 💌 | | | | | |
| | | Status | Destin | nation Gro | up Numl | per of Calls | Threshold | ASR, % | Min. PDD | Max. PDD | ALOC | Profit per Minute | Blocked From | Blocked Till | Unblock No | w | |
| | | 0 | US&C | anada | | 0 | 30 | <mark>0</mark> /70 | 0/40 | 0/70 | 0 /90 | <mark>0</mark> /10 | | | | | |



6. Configuration Examples for Cisco Gateways

Bill Customers Who Are Connected via T1 / E1 Directly to a Port on Your Gateway

Typically, you do not use authentication or authorization for such "portbased billing", since you are always sure that your customer is on the other end of the physical line. Although it might be a good idea to implement call authorization so that you can control which destinations the customer is allowed to call to, we will not discuss this here. For portbased billing, you need only do the following:

- 1. For each such customer, create a tariff that you want to use to bill the customer and a product. Only one row in rating entry is necessary, with the node "ANY" and the tariff you have created.
- 2. Now you must make sure that each call made by that customer is tagged as belonging to him. Use the corresponding application on your gateway to handle the call. You can use the PortaOne's "Session name" application, or create your own.

The often difficult part in gateway configuration is designing dial-peers to match certain voice ports. Dial-peers should resemble the following configuration:

```
dial-peer voice 1 pots
    application client_on_port_1
    direct-inward-dial
    port 1:D
```

They will be listed with an operation status of down, as the port specification must be accompanied by a number matching a specification, for example:

```
dial-peer voice 1 pots
    application client_on_port_1
    incoming called-number .
    direct-inward-dial
    port 1:D
```

This dial-peer is not adequate for our needs, because any number matching the specification will prefer the port specification, i.e. this dialpeer will match any port. The solution is to use a number-matching scheme that will not match any number.

```
dial-peer voice 1 pots
    application client_on_port_1
    incoming called-number A
    direct-inward-dial
    port 1:D
```

This solution may be considered a "hack", yet it is functional and secure. For increased security, you may specify a 32-character string with a random sequence of "ABCD" characters. The probability of receiving such a number is near zero. So the configuration should look as follows:

```
aaa new-model
aaa authentication login h323 group radius
aaa authorization exec h323 group radius
aaa accounting connection h323 stop-only group radius
1
call application voice client_on_port_1
flash:app session name.2.1.0.tcl
call application voice client_on_port_1 user-name abc_ltd
call application voice client_on_port_2
flash:app_session_name.2.1.0.tcl
call application voice client_on_port_2 user-name xyz_inc
gw-accounting h323 vsa
dial-peer voice 1 pots
   application client_on_port_1
   incoming called-number A
   direct-inward-dial
   port 1:D
!
dial-peer voice 2 pots
    application client_on_port_2
    incoming called-number B
   direct-inward-dial
   port 2:D
1
gateway
1
   1. Create customers who will own these accounts.
```

2. Create accounts with an Account ID identical to the name you entered in the configuration for the applications (**abc_ltd** and **xyz_inc** in our example).

Implement Authentication for Incoming VoIP Calls



When your gateway is installed and connected to the Internet via the network interface, it can accept incoming VoIP calls and send them onward. This is fine, assuming that calls are coming in from one of your customers; but potentially *anyone* on the Internet can send you traffic if they know your gateway's IP address. This could happen due to a mistake, or it could be done intentionally; in any case, it is not good for your business if this happens. How to prevent this and make sure that only your customers and you yourself are able to use your VoIP network?

There are a few methods which enable you to do this:

- 1. Set up an access list (ACL) on your gateways so that VoIP traffic will be allowed **only** from certain IP addresses / subnets. This is a very reliable method. Unfortunately it has one drawback: it is difficult to maintain, since everything is configured on the individual gateways. For example, if you have 12 gateways and you wish to add a new customer, you have to change the ACL 12 times.
- 2. Set up an application to handle incoming VoIP calls. This application will authenticate the remote party (by IP address or some other parameter) in PortaBilling® and, if authentication is successful, will connect the call. There are several advantages to this approach:
 - Information about authorized gateways is stored in one place, so it is easy to maintain.
 - The application can include data required for IP-based billing in the call information (so the User-Name attribute will contain an Account ID).
 - It may be combined with authorization, so that you can also check if a remote gateway is allowed to call a particular number.
 - You can use more sophisticated ways of identifying a remote gateway. For example, instead of IP address you can use an IP+MAC address combination.
- 3. An improved version of the previous item is a solution in which all calls to your network arrive to a proxy (such as PortaSIP®) which will take care of call authorization, while your gateways will only accept incoming calls from that proxy. Again, the easiest way to implement this is by using IP authentication on both the proxy and gateways.

We assume that you will use either method 2 or 3, i.e. your terminating gateway will authenticate incoming VoIP calls (to check that the remote gateway is allowed to send you traffic). This may be done by sending an authentication request to PortaBilling®, where the User-Name contains an identification of the remote gateway; typically this is an IP address. You can use the Cisco application remote_ip_authenticate.1.1.1.tcl provided as part of the TCL Ware package, or you can purchase an improved version called **Advanced Remote Authenticate** from PortaOne, Inc. See the configuration guidelines for Cisco gateway below.

Authenticate and Bill Customers by the IP Address of their Gateway

This is another example of how easy it is to implement different billing schemes with PortaBilling[®]. For IP-based billing, you just have to do the following:

- 1. Create a tariff and a product. Since "Node" and "Access Code" are insignificant for this type of service, set node to "ANY" and leave Access Code blank for the IP-based billing product.
- 2. Use the corresponding application on your gateway to handle the call. You can use the Cisco application remote_ip_authenticate, PortaOne's "Advanced Remote Authenticate" (recommended), or create your own. The only important thing is that the IP address of the remote GW be in the User-Name attribute in the AAA requests which will go to the billing. Here is a sample configuration:

```
aaa new-model
authentication login h323 group radius
aaa authorization exec h323 group radius
aaa accounting connection h323 stop-only group radius
!
gw-accounting h323 vsa
!
call application voice remote_ip tftp://.../portaone.tcl
call application voice remote_ip authenticate-by ip
call application voice remote_ip_auth password cisco
!
dial-peer voice 11 voip
application remote_ip
incoming called-number .
!
```

- 3. Create a customer who will own these accounts.
- 4. Create accounts with an Account ID identical to the IP address of the remote gateway, and enter cisco as the Service password for this account. (The password cisco has been chosen only for backward compatibility with the Cisco remote_ip_authenticate script. With PortaOne's "Advanced Remote Authenticate" you can use a different password; just change the list in the application config).

Handle Technical Prefixes and Numbering Formats

Different termination partners often require that you send them numbers in some specific format. For example, your termination partner might require usage of the technical prefix 58901# (so you have to send him 58901#42021234567 instead of 42021234567), while your local phone provider requires that outgoing call numbers be dialed without the country code (so a call to 42021234567 has to be dialed as 21234567). The more partners you have, the more likely it is you will run into these problems with different numbering formats. Of course it is better to use a single numbering format internally. Our recommendation is to use the E.164 format in billing and on your network. An E.164 compliant number is one consisting of *<countrycode><areacode><phone#>*. Examples of valid E.164 numbers are *42021234567* and *16049876543*. The following numbers are not valid E.164 numbers: 6049876543 (NANP format), 01142021234567 (US overseas dialing format), 021234567 (local format).

PortaBilling® provides you with a powerful tool for converting all outside numbering formats into the unified format which is to be used in billing. For every connection to a vendor you can specify a translation rule that will convert the number into E.164 format. Here are some ready-to-use examples of translation rules:

- Convert NANP (North American Numbering Plan) phone number (area code + phone number, e.g. 604 888 7766) into E.164:
 s/^/1/;
- Convert European international dialing format (00 + country code + area code + phone number, e.g. 00 1 604 888 7766) into E.164: s/^00//;
- Convert North American international dialing format (011 + country code + area code + phone number, e.g. 011 1 604 888 7766) into E.164:
 s/^011//;
- Convert Australian international dialing format (0011 + country code + area code + phone number, e.g. 0011 1 604 888 7766) into E.164:
 s/^0011//;
- Convert tech prefix format (tech prefix + country code + area code + phone number, e.g. 6789# 1 604 888 7766) into E.164: s/^6789#//;
- Convert European domestic dialing format (0 + area code + phone number, e.g. 0 5 888 7766) into E.164 (assuming that the country code is 44):
 s/^0/44/;

Porta 🗹 Switch

Always test your translation rules before entering them into the billing. A special test window is available on the web interface. To access it, click on the test icon in next to the translation rule field.

| | Trar | slation Rule Test | ? Help |
|---|------------------|--|--------|
| • | 🛞 Close window | | |
| | Translation rule | s/^011//; 011420222333444 Test Save | |
| | | Input 011420222333444 Output 420222333444 | |

This will enable you to check if your translation rule has the proper syntax, and you can also immediately see if it performs the translation you need.

Configure an Outgoing Connection to a Vendor, matched by Tech-prefix instead of by remote IP address

Although matching the connection by IP address is the simplest and error-proof method, in some situations it is not applicable.

Billing only

It may be that your external switch uses routing via an H323 gatekeeper, where the actual IP address of the remote gateway is provided by the remote gatekeeper only during a call attempt. In this case, PortaBilling® is not involved in the routing, and all that is needed is to ensure that these calls are accounted to the correct vendor. To do this, enter the tech-prefix in the **CLD Tech Prefix** field of the connection; for example, if you are using appending the tech-prefix 334567# to the phone number when sending a call to the vendor, enter **334567**#.

| <u>☆</u> = s # # № ħ ~ Q | Edit Connectio | on 'X-Teleo | com' Foi | 'X-Telecom' | Vendor | Burope/Kiev | andrew | 🗵 Help |
|---|-------------------------------|-------------|----------|-------------|--------|-------------|----------|--------|
| Save Save & Close & Close | se 📓 Load < 🕾 Objects | | | | | | M Logout | 🛢 Log |
| Description X-Telecom Service Type Voice Calls | • Type Routing Criteria | VoIP to Ve | | | | | | |
| General Info Trackir | ng | | | | | | | |
| Routing Protocol 🛛 🖉 🛏 | 1323 🔲 SIP | | | | | | | |
| Remote Gateway ID | | | | | | | | |
| Remote IP 216. | 73.20.45 | | | | | | | |
| Remote IP Port | | | | | | | | |
| CLD Tech Prefix 3345 | 567# | 2 | | | | | | |
| RTP Proxying Dir | rect 🔻 | | | | | | | |
| Tariff Ter | mination to X-Tele - | * | | | | | | |
| Capacity 60 | | • | | | | | | |
| Caller Identity sup | oply 🔻 | | | | | | | |
| Vendor Account Nor | 1e 🔻 | | | | | | | |
| Translation Rule s/^3 | 334567#// | 🏏 🔞 | | | | | | |
| Outgoing Rule s/^/ | 334567#/ | 2 | | | | | | |
| CLI Translation Rule | | 🏂 😨 | | | | | | |
| Additional SIP Settings | | | | | | | | |

NOTE: When a value entered into the CLD Tech Prefix field, this automatically creates proper translation rules for this connection.

Matching by tech-prefix takes lower precedence than matching by remote IP. Thus if a call is sent to remote IP 1.2.3.4 with tech-prefix 123#, and you have defined a connection to vendor A with remote IP 1.2.3.4 and a connection to vendor B with tech-prefix 123#, the call will be billed to vendor A.

Routing and billing

A typical case is one in which a vendor offers you several categories of route quality. Although calls will always go to the same IP address (the vendor's switch), the termination cost would be different based on the tech-prefix transmitted as a part of the number. In this case, PortaSwitch® must also route the calls properly to the vendor, adding the required tech-prefix.

To do this, create multiple connections for the same vendor, for each one of them specify the corresponding tech-prefix in the **CLD Tech Prefix** field (make sure you keep the translation rules, automatically created after that) and use different values in the **Remote Gateway ID** field. Obviously these connections will have different tariffs associated with them. For example, if the vendor's proxy address is 5.6.7.8, and tech-prefix 345# offers low-cost routes, while tech-prefix 789# offers premium routes, there would be two connections, with the Remote IP field containing the same value (5.6.7.8), but the the **CLD Tech Prefix** field will contain 345# and 789# respectively.